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Underlying earnings
Revenue up per share up

11.6%. 2
EI ,usgmillinn 41.6/:'

Underlying profit .
hefore tax up Dividend per share up

0 " -4%tn
e 2285,

PENNON GROUP OPERATES

AND INVESTS IN WATER AND Statutory results are:

SEWERAGE SERVICES, WASTE « Profit hefore tax £184 million
MANAGEMENT, RECYCLING AND (2008/09 £159 million)

RENEWABLE ENERGY. IT HAS « Earnings per share 39.9p (2008/09 25.8p)
ASSETS OF AROUND £3'9 BI LLION A reconciliation to underiying measures of performance
AND A WORKFORCE OF OVER is gven on page 5

4,100 PEOPLE.

PENNON GROUP BOARD’S STRATEGY s to promote the success of the Group for the benefit of its shareholders
through its focus on water and sewerage services, waste management, recychng and renewable energy.

In pursuit of its strategy the Group aims to be a pre-eminent provider of customer services to high standards of quahty,
effictency and reliability whilst having regard to a wide range of matters including:

* the impact of its operations and activities on the community and the environment

* the mantenance of high standards of business conduct

= the need to foster business relattonships with suppliers, customers and other key persons important to the success of the Group
* the hkely long-term consequences of any decisions

+ the interests of its employees

Pennon Group’s business is operated through two subsidiaries

* South West Water Limited ~ holds the water and sewerage appointments for Deven, Cornwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset

* Viridor Limited — one of the leading waste management, recycling and renewable energy businesses in the United Kingdom
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Anocther excellent year with significant achieverments

despite difficult economic condrtions

KEN HARVEY
CHAIRMAN
PENNON GROUP PLC

BUSINESS OVERVIEW
am pleased to say that it has been another excellent year for Pennon
Group with significant achievements by both businesses, despite
difficult economic condiuons

South West Water has delivered strong operational results and has
outperformed the operaung cost efficency and financing targets set by
Ofwat for the K4 pernod (2005.2010)

Virder has once again delivered a very strong finanaal performance
The Greater Manchester Waste PFl contract, the Lakeside Energy from
Woaste (EfvV) project and the latest acquisiions are further major steps
forward in the successful evalution of Vindor

The conunuing prudent approach to financing in the Group, combined
with a dedicated Board, management and staff, has also significantly
contributed to our success

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

Group revenue increased by 11 6% to £1,068 9 million, exceeding

£1 billion for the first ume Underlying® profit before tax increased by
14 2% to £189 | million and undertying* earnings per share increased by
92% to 4| 6p The Group also has 3 strong iquidity and funding posiuon

South West Water’s Regulatory Capital Value (RCY) grew by 31%

over the K4 (2005-2010) penod to £2 6 billon by March 2010, the
highest percentage increase for any quoted UK water company Vindor's
underfying* profic before tax was up by 34 8%, bullding on the growth
achieved by the company over the last eight years

* Undertying measures are defined in the Pennon Group finanaal performanca secoon on page 5
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DIVIDEND

The Board is recommending to shareholders a final dividend per share
of [560p, a 9 5% increase on last year's final dividend This represents
a full year dmidend of 22 55p which 1s an increase of 7 4% compared
with 2008/09 reflectung RPI of 4 4% to March 2010 We have therefore
delivered the policy to increase dvidends from 2005/06 by 3% per annum
above inflanen

Following the setting of price imits for South West Water by Ofwat for
delivery of the K5 (2010-2015) regulatory contract and the expectagon
that Vindor will continue to deliver serong long-term growth, the

Board has reviewed its dwidend policy and 1s pleased to announce that
it Intends to enhance its progressive dividend policy to 4% per annum
real increases from 2010/ to at least unal the end of 2014/15

Dividends have increased over the last five years as follows

DIVIDENDS PER ORDINARY SHARE




BUSINESS PERFOCRMANCE

South West Water increased its revenue in
the year by 2 9% and profit before tax was
up by 8 7% The operating cost efficiency
target set by Ofwat for K4 was achieved in
2008/09, ahead of schedule The company
has accepred Ofwar’s Final Determinadion for
the setung of price limits for the K5 pertod
Notwithstanding the lower returns envisaged
by Ofwat’s Final Determuaton and the
impact of current economic condiuons which
represent a very tough challenge for South
West Water, the company 1s determined to
achieve addiuonal efficiencies despite having
already delivered substantial efficiencies over
the last two decades

Vindor has yet again delivered a strong
financial performance in difficult market
condiions with revenue up by 18 7% and
profic before tax up by 34 8% The company
expects to conunue to deliver long-term
growth through successfully leading the way
in exploiting opportunities ansing from the
Government's targets for recycling, landfill
diversion and renewable energy

Plases, waste electrical 2nd electronic
equipment {VWEEE) and paper processing

in particular are a growing part of Vindor's
recycling business These recychng acavities
were enhanced in the year with two
acquisizons Interconunental Recycling Limited
which processes plastcs into pellet or flake
form and London Recycling Limited with
WEEE and paper processing facilities

Fam alsc pleased to say that the Greater
Manchester PFl waste and renewables
contract and another major scheme,

the Lakeside EfW plant joint venture at
Colnbrock, near Heathrow, are now
operaucnal and trading profitably

HEALTH & SAFETY

Ensuring the health and safety of all our
employees continues to be central to our
ethos as a responsible Group The Corporate
Responsibilicy Commictee and the Board

pay parucular attention to ensuring that we
canunually strive to improve cccupatucnal
hezlth and safety performance We are
therefore very disappointed to report that
tast year our recorded number of incidents in
Vindor increased VWhere incidents do occur
they are fully investigated and every effort:s
made to ensure that they cannot be repeated
through, in partucular, raising the level of
training and support available to staff and
reinforcing strong positive attitudes to health
and safety at all fevels in the Group

GOVERNANCE

WWe operate businesses which can and do
have a matenal impact on the environment
We believe that a responsible approach to
environmental, social and governance (ESG)
matters and our sustainable practuces not
only benefit the communiues in which we
operate, but also enable our businesses to be
more successful This year we have set out

1n full in this Annual Report our Corporate
Responsibility Report which demonstrates our
commitment to ESG and the improvements
we have made in protecung the environment,
carbon capture, energy savings and resource
recovery which all contnbute to a more
sustainable future for everyone We also take
into account the views of our shareholders and
major institutional groups on what they regard
to be the key governance tssues In reviewing
annually our pracuces, policies and procedures
This ensures that we continue to have a strong
and approprately experienced Board with
governance structures in place which can
successfully respond to the challenges we face
in the best interests of our shareholders and
other stakeholders

Underlying profit before tax up

1 4-2% to EI 89-1 million

Full year dividend up

A%.22.99,

QURPEQPLE

We fully recognise that the Group's success
15 due to the quality of the staff and their
support and commitment

| once again express my personal thanks to all
members of staff for therr conunuing dedication
and commitment parucularly as we conunue to
implement further efficiences and develop new
systems and processes to strengthen further
governance across the Group

In addmion | am extremely grateful to
my Board colleagues for their support
and sigvificant contributions to another
successful year

OUTLOOK

Notwithstanding the lower returns envisaged
by Ofwat’s Final Determinauon and the
impact of current economic condicons, the
Group remains well posiuoned to continue
to deliver shareholder value and meet future
challenges South West Water 1s well placed
to achieve Ofwat'’s efficiency targets and
outperform its financing cost assumpuons for
KS Virdor expects to continue to deliver
strong long-term growth through successfully
leading the way in exploiing opportunites
anising from the Government’s landfill
diversion, recychng and renewable energy
targets This anucipated success has enabled
the Board to announce an enhanced dwidend
pohcy for the next five years

1 am confident that we have the nght strategy

in place for the Group to succeed and that

this surategy together wath the management

skills i the Group will steer us throughtoa
ccessful future

Ken Harvey, Chairman
Pennon Group Plc, 24 June 2010
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PENNON GROUP

The Group's 2009/10 financial results showed continued
growth in revenue and profit from the main businesses

DAVID DUPONT
GROUP DIRECTOR
OF FINANCE
PENNON GROUP PLC

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

benefic of its shareholders through its focus on water and sewerage

T he Board's strategy s to promote the success of the Group for the
services, waste management, recychng and renewable energy
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The Group's 2009/10 financial results showed conunued growth in
revenue and profit from both main businesses

All profit and earnings per share figures in this Business Review
on pages 2 to 37 relate to underlying business performance
unless otherwise stated.

The Directors believe that underlying measures prowide a more useful
comparison on business trends and performance Underlying resules
exclude restructuring costs, Intangibles amortusauon and deferred tax
The term underlying 1s not a defined term under International Financial
Reporung Standards (IFRS) and may not be comparable with similarty
uted measures used by other companies

The key measures used by the Directors to assess the financial
performance of the Group are profit before tax and earmngs per
share, shown below




Revenue ahove £1 hillion for

the first time

REVENUE

Group revenue increased by |1 6%

(£110 7 mullion) to £1,068 9 millicn Scuth
YVest Water’s revenue rose 29% (£12 5
million) to £444 2 million as a resule of
tariff increases and new connections
Approved tanff increases, :ncluding the

| 4% K factor, amounted to £20 9 million
Customers switching from unmeasured to
metered charging reduced turnover by £70
million but around 5,000 new customer
connections contributed £0 6 million of
addwional turnover Customer demand
remained constant, reversing the trend

of consumpuon decline seen in recent
years Yindor’s revenue rose by |18 7%
(£98 5 million) to £626 5 million of which
the acquisitions of London Recyching and
Intercontinental Recycling plus the Greater
Manchester Waste sub-contract accounted
for £89 7 milion Existing business increased
by £8 8 millien (1ncluding an increase in
landfill tax of £6 3 million}

Effective management of

interest rates — Group
average 4.1%

OPERATING PROFIT

Group operaung profit increased by 4 9%
(£12 & million) to £269 6 million with South
West Water up 2 6% (£49 milion) to £196 5
miliion and Vindor up 15 1% (£9 6 milhon) to
£73 1 milhon

Details of the financial performance of
Souch West Water and Vindor are set out
in this Business Review on pages || and 12
respectively

FINANCE COSTS

Excluding pensions net interest, discount
unwind on prowvisions and [FRICI2 contract
interest receivable, net finance costs were
£78 2 million {2008/09 £88 4 million) and
were 3 4 nmes covered by Group operaung
profits (2008/09 2 9 umes) On chis measure,
net interest payable equated to a rate of

4 1% on average net debc (2008/09 4 8%)
and demonstrates the Group’s effecuve
management of interest rates

South West Water's interest rate on
average net debt for the year was 4 0%
{2008/09 4 6%)

RECONCILIATION OF UNDERLYING AND STATUTORY RESULTS

Over the last five years the average interest
rate on Group net debt has been

Interest rate management is analysed further
on page 3|

12009/10 2008/09 (restated) Growth
£m im
OPERATING PROFIT
Saatutory operaung profit 2643 2508 54%
Non-underfying costs
- Restructuring — South West Water 50 50
- Intangibles amorusauon —Vindor 03 12
Underlying operaung profit 2696 2570 49%
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Statutory profit before tax 1838 1594 15 3%
Non-underlying costs
- Restructuring = South West VWater 50 50
- Intangibles amorusanon —Viridor 03 12
Underlying profit before tax 189.1 1656 142%
EARNINGS PER SHARE - pence
Statutory earnings per share 399 258 54 7%
Non-undertying costs
- Restructuring {after tax) ~ South West Water 1.2 09
- Intangibles amortsauon ~Virndor ol 03
Deferred tax 04 i
Undertying eartungs per share 416 381 92%

The 2008/0% results have been restaced for the applicauon of IFRIC 12 “Service concession arrangements” as described in note 5 to the

finanetal seaternents on page 71
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Profit before tax was £182 | milhion, an increase of 142% (£23 5 millton)

TAXATION

The UK corporauon tax charge for the year was £43 0 million, including
£0 & million tax relief on restructuring costs (2008/09 £31 3 million
including £1 7 milion of relief on restructuring costs) Employer pension
contnbutions to defined benefit schemes resuited in corporation tax
relief of £5 2 million 1n 2009710 (2008/09 £10 7 million)

The deferred tax charge for the year was £1 3 million (2008/09
£38 3 rulhon} 2008/09 included a nen-recurring charge of £249
million relaung to the abolizon of industrial buildings allowances as
contained in the Finance Act 2008

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share increased by 9 2% wo 4i 6p

The weighted average number of shares in 1ssue duning the year was

3500 million (2008/09 348 | million) MNet assets per share at book
value at 3| March 2010 were 189
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DIVIDENDS AND RETAINED EARNINGS
The statutory net profit of £139 5 mullion has been transferred to reserves

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of 5 60p
per share for the year ended 31 March 2010 Together with the intenm
dividend of 6 95p per share paid on | Apnl 2010, this gives a total
dividend for the year of 22 55p per share, an increase of 7 4% compared
with 2008/09, reflecting RPI of 4 4% at March 2010

Proposed dividends of £79 6 million (2008/0% £73 4 milien) are
covered | 8 umes (2008/09 [ 8 umes) by net profit. Dividends are
charged against retained earnings in the year in which they are pad

DIVIDEND POLICY

Notwithstanding the lower returns envisaged by Ofwat’s Final
Determinanon and the impact of current economic condiions, the
Group remains well positoned to continue to deliver shareholder
value and meet future challenges As a result the Board has announced
its intenuon to increase the dwvidend by 4% per annum abave inflauon
from 2010/11 at least unul 2014/15

Adding value for
shareholders with a
progressive dividend policy




Diversified funding sources

FUNDING POSITION

The Group had a strong iquidicy and funding posiuon as ac 31 March
2010 and 15 well placed in current financial market condinons

* cash and deposits of £494 million {including circa £92 million of
restricted cash from deposits with lenders)

+ commutted undrawn faciliwes of £200 million

* South West Water has commutted funding in place to at least mid-
2011712 and is funding requirements for the remainder of the K5
period thereafter are modest.

Efficient long-term funding

Average debt maturity
23 years

Dunng the year the followang finance ininauves were implemented

= £125 miflion converuble bond

* £215 milhon term loans and Revohving Credit Faciines (RCFs) renewed

* £89 million of new term leans

= arca £200 million finance lease extended to 2052 and converted to
‘bullec’ repayment

« £25 million finance lease for South West Water

* £25 mibon 5-10 year finance lease for Vindor

* new prowider for £35 mullion of Environment Agency bonds sourced

£216 million of loan repayments are required during 2010/11
Refinancing of extsung facilines is being progressed and £100 rmullion of
debt facliues have been established or renewed in Apnl 2010

The fair value benefic (| ¢ the difference between the book value and
fair value) of Group debt has increased over the year by £75 million
to £296 million at 31 March 2010 as a result of the rise in medium and
long-term git rates

The Group’s average debt mawrity I1s now 23 years
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SOUTH WEST WATER

Turning to the future after a successful conclusion

to the 2005-2010 regulatory cycle

CHRIS LOUGHLIN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
SOUTH WEST WATERLIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S OYERYIEW

customer service, delivering further operaucnal efficiencies and

achieving sound financial results It has now successfully completed
the 2005 — 2010 regulatory contract and has a sold platform in place
for conunued success durng the next regulatory period (2010 — 2015}

South West Water performed strongly this year, improving its

The company contnues to be led by its vision of ‘Pure Water, Pure
Service and Pure Environment’ Underpinning this vision is the strategy
of striking the nght balance berween investng to improve our services,
customer affordabilicy and financeability

In November 2009 Ofwart announced its Final Determinauon of the
company’s business plans and set price hmits for the period 2010-
2015 This confirmed average real price increases of | 9% over the
next five years

Throughout the Periodic Review process, our focus was on
safeguarding our many achievements of the last 20 years through
investment where needed whilst delivening stable bills for our
customers Qur future plans conunue to reflect customer prionces but
we have also challenged ourselves to deliver further cost efficencies
beyond those set by Ofwac.

Many of our key operational results and achievements over the last

12 months demonstrate the benefits of our ‘Pure VWater, Pure Service
and Pure Environment’ vision
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During 2009/10, the company delivered significant improvements

n both operational and customer service performance across a
range of key measures, which will provide a springboard to meet the
challenges to come

PURE WATER

Tap water quality 1s measured by Mean Zonal Compliance (MZC)
which i1s the Drinking Water Inspectorate’s preferred method for
water quality assessment It was mantained for a second year at its
highest ever level of 9998% in 2009

Maintaining high water qualicy levels was the target of our recendy
completed £220 mithon water mamns renewal programme undertaken
between 2005 and 2010 During the final year of the project,

104 lulometres of mains ptpes were relined or replaced and all five
DWI-approved programme milestones were successfully completed
The final milestone was achieved ahead of schedule

Carrying out repairs on the network can cause the interruption of
water supplies to customers However during 2009/ (0 there was a
welcome improvement in this area with the number of properues
experiencing unplanned interruptions reducing to 514 properties
from 1,407 in 2008/09




Despite the coldest winter for nearly 30 years
causing a surge in burst pipe incidents for both
our customers and networlk, we sull beat

our leakage control target of 84 Megalitres
per day {Ml/d), and achieved a best ever
performance of 82 Mi/d

We have now achieved or beaten our leakage
targets every year since they were first
introduced by Ofwat in 1999/2000 Our
leakage rate remains amongst the lowest in
the industry at 5 5 cubic metres per kilometre
of mains per day

This has been our |3th consecuuve year
without water restricnons The company

has put in place a comprehensive strategy to
ensure a continued secure supply of water for
the regicn

During the year work on two major new
trunk ma:ns serving South Devon and East
Cornwalil was completed, strengthening water
supplies in each area for decades to come

Park Lake on Bodmin Moor i1s now
operatonal while work has started on
converung nearby Stannon Lake into the
company’s fourth biggest reservoir These
former china clay pits were purchased in
2006 as a cost-effecuve alternatve to buiiding
new reservoirs

PURE SERYICE

Renewing its emphasis on excellent service
has helped the company improve its
performance for customers

We are achieving year-on-year reductions
in operational service contacts, with a 24%
reducton in the last year, and reductions in
repeat service contacts Improvements to
the handling of service contacts have helped
reduce the number of complaints received

Customer satisfaction with the way their
contact with the company has been handled
and the ease of contacung us has improved
resulting m a best ever performance of 4 53
out of a possible 5 0 maxamum

This has been our 13th consecutive
year without water restrictions

Hawever there is always room for
improvement to ensure that we have systems
in place which will provide continuous
advances In our customer service

This will include extending a range of
measures to assist those customers in genuina
financial difficulty as a result of the recession
whilst sull acuvely pursuing those who can pay
their bills but do not.

In parucular, we will be continuing to support
our innovauve ‘WaterCare' programme,
which has assisted over 7,000 households
since 1ts introducuon m 2007

Through WaterCare, customers are advised
on how to better manage therr water use and
household budgets including clarming all the
benefits to which they are enutled The free
installation of water-saving devices has proved
popular with customers and both they and the
company have benefited from moving them on
to affordable and regular paymaent plans

A number of the customers on this
programme are now paying more than double
the level of payments they did before, thereby
reducing the company's outstanding debt.

Between 2010 and 20{5 we will also be
expanding our involvement with consumer
organisatons such as Citizens Advice and will be
implementng a personalised debt advice Inuauve

PURE ENYIRONMENT

South West Warer's record of environmental
achievements was further strengthened
during 2009/10

The company’s focus on proactive maintenance
of its waste water network resulted in an lich
consecunve year without a major Category

| polluion incident and the number of more
minor Category 2 and 3 incidents remained at
a low level

The leng-term transformation of bathing
water quality in the South West, due to the
£2 bilkon Clean Sweep programme, was also
safeguarded with 96 5% of bathing waters
complying with the EU mandatory standard
A decade ago this figure was only 42 6% This
major imprevement in quality has also helped
the South West gain the most Blue Flag
beaches of any region in the UK

The regon’s bathing water quality has been
affected by significant rainfall for the last three
summers. Thus has carned agriculoural and
other surface water pollutants into the sea
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The percentage populauon equivalent served by saniary-complhant
waste water treatment works In the calendar year 2009 was 997%
This consistently high performance contributes co the region having
the highest percentage of high quality nivers in England

A pilot moorland restorauon project ‘Mires’, undertaken on Exmoar
between 2003 and 2010, beat strong competition to win a Water
industry Achievement Award for ‘Sustainable Drainage and Flood
Management Ininauve of the Year' The success of Mires and other
environmental inibatives has fed to a more extensive programme of
catchment management which is being implemented called *Upstream
Thinking' Restoring wetlands will allow slower and steadier flows and
cleaner water from the moors to rivers and reservoirs This in trn
will help mimimise long-term treatment costs

Mires will be expanded across the region with moorland and
farmland projects becween 2010 and 2015 in partnership with
Exmoor Nauonal Park Authonity, Dartmoor Nauonal Park
Authority, Natural England, the Environment Agency, English
Heritage, local farmers and landowners

Focussing on our ‘Pure’ vision has assisted the company in delivering
a strong set of results both financially and operationally This has
alse ensured there is a solid platform tn place for further progress
ta be made Ofwat’s Final Determination represents a tough
challenge for the company but it 1s one we have accepted and are
determined to deliver

To meet this challenge, we have

*+ renegouated our key operational contracts with service partners to
create more Innovative ways of working and further cost efficiencies
through establishing the new incenuvised *H, O’ Delivery Allrance to
deliver the capital programme

* nvested in a more centralised operatng structure employing
increased levels of automauon

* conunued our organisational restructuring drive to sustan our

services through flexible workung while securing efficencies lcis

expected that a further £4 millon will be provided for restructuring

costs in 2010711

successfully reduced our energy consumpuion through our *Megawatt

Challenge' company-wide initative Staff led energy saving projects

resulted in overall energy savings of 6 5 GWh, a reducuon of arcund

3,500 tonnes of CO, and a cost saving of around £600,000 per

annum Further energy savings will be delivered by our ‘PowerDown'

programme which i1s in place to achteve more efficiencies and cost

reductions between 2010 and 2015

This has been another successful year for South Yvest Water
Further significant improvements have been made in achieving service
excellence and new operaticnal efficencies

| would like to thank all our staff and our suppliers for their dedicated

and mnovadve work Their achievements this year have ensured we are
In the strongest posiion possible to deliver in the years ahead
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Well positioned
to deliver the Kb
Regulatory Contract




FINANCIAL REVIEW
Against the background of an uncertain economic recovery, South West Water has had another strong year, with sound financial
performance being supplemented by improved customer service and delivery of further operauonal efficiencies

Operatng profit up by £4 9 million {2 6%) to £196 5 milion {2009 £191 6 million} For the five-year period 2005/06 to
2009/10 operatng profit s shown In the graph below

The company's revenue increased by £12 5 mullion to £444 2 million
* Increases tanff increases approved by Ofwat (£20 92 milhon) and around 5,000 new customer connections (£0 6 million)
*  Decreases customers switching to metered tanffs (£7 0 million} with income from other sales decreasing by £2 0 million
68% of our domesuc customers now receive a metered supply
Operating costs, excluding depreciauon, increased by £3 8 million to £154 | milion
«  Efficiency savings were £4 4 million in the year
+  Addiuonal costs from new capital schemes, £1 8 million
¢ Price increases, including inflation, £6 5 million
* Lower income from assets, including property sales, £1 | million
+  Other cost increases £0 4 million, offset by a reduction in costs of other sales £1 6 million
Restructuring costs were £5 0 milhon in 2009/10 and a further £4 0 million 15 expected to be provided in 2010/11

Despite the downturn in the property market, property disposals in the year contributed £1 O miilion to profit {2009 £1 7 millien}

The bad debt charge increased by £0 % million from £6 4 milon to £7 3 million Collections perfermance on older debt
marginally improved over the year

Capital expenditure was £143 3 million, including £27 million on advanced spend for K5 £37 6 million was spent on
quality schemes, principally on concluding the water mains rehabilitation programme and making progress on waste water

programmes, including the new sewage treatment works for Bossiney, Boscastle and Tintagel

Further contributions totalling £9 % million were made to the defined benefit pension schemes

Further efficiencies
achieved in the year
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VIRIDOR

Viridor profits grew strongly i 2009/10 as it continued to expand

Its resource management activities

COLIN DRUMMOND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
VIRIDOR LIMITED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S OVERVIEW

and renewable energy companies Over the past |0 years we

have evolved from waste collection and disposal into a more
broadly based resource recovery business with major acuvities in
recychng and waste-based renewable energy generauocn At the same
ume we have increased our profits at an average rate of over 20%
{PBITA plus joint ventures) per annum since 2001 Over 40% of our
profit contnbution now comes from recovering value from waste

V|ndor 15 one of the UK’s leading waste management, recycling

We have core competencies in landfill dispesal, recycling and waste-
based renewable energy generation The company operates matenals
recycling factlives {MRFs), waste transfer sanons, treatment plants,
household waste recyding sites (HWRS), composting facihues, landfills
and renewable energy generaton fadiliues in most regions of the UK and
has a collecoon fleet focussed on the industnal and commercial market.

Contnuing developments in the UK’s waste management and
renewable energy policies, driven by climate change and environmental
awareness, create major opportunites for Virndor

In 2009/10 Vindor delivered another year of very strong profic growth
despite the difficult economic condiuons in the UK and woridwide

Az the same ume we progressed various major strategic Initatives,
including in parucular the Greater Manchester waste and renewable
energy project (the largest of its kind 10 the UK) and the Lakeside
Energy from Waste (EfW) plant, both of which commenced profitable
operations We also completed the acquisiion of two further recycling
comparies These and other iniuauves are expected to enhance our
business significantly in future years
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This reflects our focussed strategy of

+ capitalising on our strong posiuon in landfill waste disposal

+ proacuvely developing new recycling operations to meet ambruous
EU/UK targets

* successfully exploiung the huge potentlal in waste-based renewable
energy genaration

Further detall on the climate change and environmental drivers behind
governments’ polictes and Vindor's strategy is given in the sections on
main trends and business and strategy on pages (4 and 15

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Viridor traded very strongly m 2009/10, building further on the
growth achieved over the past eight years Revenue was up 187%
{£98 5 million} to £626 5 million, of which acquisizons accounted for
£897 milhon and existing business £8 8 mitlhion {inctuding landfill tax
of £6 3 million)

Vindor’s earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amorusation
of intangibles (EBITDA) rose 9 1% from £105 2 millien to £114 8
millon Profic before interest, tax and amorusation of intangibles
(PBITA) for the year increased by 15 1% (£9 6 milhon) to £73 |
million, compared with £63 5 milion n 2008/09

With the commencement of the Greater Manchester and Lakeside
projects, joint ventures now account for a significanc part of
Viridor's profits (£4 2 million in 2009/10) and we now focus on
PBITA plus [oint ventures as a key performance indicator Ve profit
from our [oint ventures both via interest on shareholder loans

and via share of the joint ventures’ profit after tax (PAT) PBITA
plus joint ventures grew by (9% in 2009/10 and has grown by a
compound rate of 22% since 200(

Profit before tax (PBT) at £35 4 milhon was up 34 8% on the previous
year and has grown at a compound rate of 19% since 2001 Capital
expenditure for the year was £46 6 million (2008/09 £84 0 mullion)
and we invested £30 8 million in cur Greater Manchester, Runcorn
Combined Heat and Power (CHP) and Lakestide joint ventures




PBITA PLUS JOINT YVENTURES, PBET AND RETURN ON EQUITY

PBITA plus joint ventures (which contributed from 2008) and PBT are key overall measures of Viridor's performance and are set out In the table
below for the ten-year pertod 2001 o 2010 The table also sets out the Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) for these measures, being the rate
of growth between 2001 and 2010 expressed as a single annual average figure over the perrod Rewrn on equiy 1s also a key measure of Vindor's
performance and rs calculated as PBT expressed as a percentage of Pennon Group’s equity investment in Vindor (£252 mullion at 31 March 2010)

Year ended 3} March 2000* 2002 2003* 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 200 CAGR
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m 2001-10
PBITA plus joint ventures 131 152 191 227 300 359 468 581 649 773 2%
PBT "z 138 I57 172 25 235 294 355 408 554 19%
Return on equity investment 6 1% T2%  82%  88% Ho%  113%  142% 171%  197% 220% -

K GAAP

YIRIDOR PROFIT CONTRIBUTICN BY SEGMENT

The pia charts below provide a breakdown of Viridor's profit contribution by segment (before amortsation of intangibles and central
overhead costs including pensions) In 2009/19 landfill accounted for 31% and landfill gas power generaton 28% of Viridor's profit
contribuuon, compared with the previous year's 45% and 25% respecuively Recycling accounted for 16% (last year 16%) and contraces grew
to 15% from 3% in the previous year whilst joint ventures accounted for 4% (last year 2%) In tocal 44% of Viridor's profits come from
recovering value in waste either by power generatton or recycling

FINANCIAL YEAR 2009/10 FINANCIAL YEAR 2008/09
Vs 4% Contracts and other 3% [Vs 2%
Contracts and other |5% Collecton 9%
Recycng 16% n s Recychng 16%
Collecton 6%
Power generation 25%
Power generanon 28% Landfill 31%
Landfill 45%

LANDFILL

capacity brought on In late 2008/09 All of the output increase was
accredited for full ROCs in advance of the banding change Vindor's
average revenues per Megawatt hour {MWh) grew by 21% to
approaching £90 reflecung the growth in the proporuon of output
eligible for Renewables Obligauon Ceruficates (RCCs} Taking
advantage of favourable market condivons tn May 2008, Vindor sold
forward the brown element of s ‘ROC-able’ electricity to March 2010
at May 2008 prices Current power generation prices are significantdy
(arca £30 per MWh) lower This will matenally affect power generation
segment performance for 2010/11

Totwal landfill disposal volumes decreased by 0 7 million tonnes {15%)
to 3 9 million tonnes in the year Approximately 02 milhon tonnes

of this was due to landfill closures, as reported last year The bulk of
the remaining reducton was in third party industrial and commercial
valumes which were heavily impacted by the general weakness in

the UK economy Average revenue per tonne increased by 1 {% o
approaching £22 per tonne (3 1% like for like excluding site closures)
Consented landfill verd reduced from 81 million cubic metres at 31
March 2009 to 77 million cubic metres at 31 March 2010, reflecong | 2
million cubic metres planning gains and usage during the penod of 48
million cubic metres At 2| March 2010 Vindor's [andfill gas power generadon capacity
was 100 Megawatts {MWV) including a small amount of sub-contract

LANDFILL GAS
Virdor's landfill gas power generanon output increased by a further 0%
to 555 Gigawatt hours {GWh) duning the year parocularly reflecang

CONSENTED LANDFILL VOID
As at 31 March 2010 Viridor had a consented void capacity of 77
millron cubic metres

capacicy At 31 March 2010 63% of Vindor’s power generaung
capacity was eligible for ROCs and 37% for the Non Fossil Fuel
Obligauon (NFFO)

POWER GENERATION CAPACITY

Electricity generated is sold to electricity supphers, usually under NFFO
contracts or under shorter term contracts with ROCs As at 3| March

2010 Vindor had 100 MW of operauonal landfill gas generaung capacity
which 1s virtually the same as the previous year These figures exclude 3

MW of sub-contract capacity in Sufiolk In addizon there 1s 27 5 MW of
energy from waste combustion capacity {Bolton and 50% of Lakeside)
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RECYCLING

The UK 1s required under the EU Landfill Directive to reduce the
amount of biodegradable municipal waste going co landfill sites To meet
the requirements of the Landfill Directve the UK Government uses
landfill tax as a price mecharism At the same ume the Government

has set clear rargers for the recycling of household waste, and

local authoriues must also implement strategies for the diversion

of biodegradable municipal waste away from landfill The former
Chancellor's Budget announcement on 24 March 2010, contnuing the
increase In landfill tax of £8 a year from £48 per tonne currently to £80
per conne 1 2014/15, will further enhance the long-term economics of
recycling. In general, recyclate costs are typically significandy lower than
the cost of using virgin matenals for manufacturers

As reported fast year recyclate prices were high in the firse half of
2008/09 and low in the second half, reflecung the prevailing general
world economic condiuons Since then recyclate prices have recovered,
ending the year at around the peak levels seen in early 2008/09
Vindor's recycling traded volumes grew 3 5% to a lictde over | 4

millien tonnes, with an improved recyclate mix Recyclate prices have
conunued to strengthen since the year-and but are expected to ease
back later in the year

In June 2009 Virdor acquired London Recycling Limited for a cash
consideration of £10 é million, plus debt acquired of £1 5 million With
1ts headquarters in East London, the business comprises a full range of
recycling operatons including a fleet of collection vehicles, a "WEEE'
facility, paper processing, confidenual matenal destruction, a MRF and
a waste audiung facility It handles approximately 50,000 tonnes of
materal per annum London Recycling has had a good track record
over recent years in prowiding essentia! recycling services to businesses
in the capital and has an excellent geographic and business fit with
Vindor’s operauons in the South East of England

Plasucs in parucular are a significant and growing part of Vindor's
recychng business and in July 2009 Vindor acquired Intercontnental
Recyching Lmited for a cash consideration of £4 2 million, plus

debt acquired of £3 9 million Based in Skelmersdale, Lancashire,

the company processes High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) and
Polyethylene Terephthalate (PET) plasuc botdes, such as are recovered
by Viridor's MRFs It converts the bottes to pellet or flake for sale
to plastic product manufacturers, mestly within the UK The plant
has the capacity to treat 40,000 tonnes of plastics waste per annum
Interconunental Recycling also has a good geographic and business
fit with Virdor's exisung operatons and is partucularly well-placed to
receive volumes from the Greater Manchester Waste PFI

CONTRACTS

Contracts profits were well ahead with continued good performance
from the West Sussex PFl and 10 other municipal contracts The
sludge contracts business which performed poorly in the second half
of 2008/09 was back in profit. There was also a significant contrnibuten
from the Greater Manchester Waste PF| sub-contract

Gontinued strong
growth in PBT
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PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIPS AND PRIVATE
FINANCE INITIATIVES

Public Private Parcnership (PPP) and Private Finance Ininauve (PFI)
contracts are a key part of Vindor's strategy

Financral close on the Greater Manchester Waste PFl 25-year contract
was achieved on 8 April 2009 ltis the UK’s largest ever combined waste
and renewable energy project, managing | 3 million tonnes of waste per
year The total potenual energy generaton will be approaching 140 MW
from Phases | and |l of the Runcorn plant, the four anaerobrc digesters
(ADs) and the exisung Bolton Energy from ¥Waste {EfW) plant.

The PFl 15 a joint venture between Virdor and John Laing

Infrastructure Cperation of the associated facllicies 1s being carried out
on a sub-contract basis by Vindor In October 2009 it was confirmed
tha all required faciliues planned for development had recerved
planning permission At 3| March 2010 of these 42 faciliues 22 had been
completed and handed over to Viridor to operate

Assoctated with the Greater Manchester PFl is an EfWW CHP facility
{Runcorn Phase ) which is a three-way joint venture between Ineos
Chior, Vinder and John Laung Infrastrucwure  Plannung permussion was
achieved by Ineos Chior for both phases of the EFW CHP plant at
Runcorn in September 2008 and construction of the first phase has
commenced Total capital expenditure for the Greater Manchester
PFl 15 projected to be £405 million with an addinonal £235 miilion for
the associated EfWW CHP plant (Runcorn Phase 1) Virndor’s funding
contribution will be £85 milion In additon we have secured all of the
rights to Phase Il of the planned EfVY CHP facility at Runcorn This
will be targeted at the North West markec more generally and 1s a
significant upside to the imual project given nising landfill tax and the
shortage of competng capacity In the North West.

In addiuon to the above contracts we conunue to bid selectively for
other projects We are the preferred bidder for the Oxfordshire PPP
and one of the last two for the Cheshire PFl and the South West Devon
Waste Partnership YVe are one of the last three for the Peterborough
Efvy and MRF contracts and one of four stll in the bidding for the
Gloucestershire PFl and South Lendon Waste Partnership contracts
Most of these projects include renewable energy

MAIN TRENDS AND FACTORS LIKELY TO AFFECT THE
FUTURE DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND POSITION
OF THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

The waste management and renewable energy business 1s heawly
nfluenced by environmental and chimate change consideranons and
associated Government policies Viridor's strategy reflects this Our
behef is that being green 15 good for business, as is demonstrated by the
company’s financial performance

Government polictes are designed in the first instance to minimise the
amount of waste generated, then to maxamise reuse and recycling,
followed by treatment and energy recovery via EfWV faciliues and other
technologies This is underpinned by final safe disposal in landfills The
Government 15 implemenuong the EU Landfill Cirective and reducing the
amount of waste to go to landfill This Directive was a response in part
to methane emissions from landfills, although 1n fact the bulk of dus in
the UK 1s now captured for renewable energy generaucn




Government targets of diverting muntcipal
waste away from landfill up to 2020 are leading
to a decline in the landfill market. However,
with only around six or seven years' consented
capaaity in the UK as a whole (according to
Ermironment Agency esumates) and with

new consents difficult to achieve, Vindor's

77 million cubic metres 1s regarded as a very
valuable resource, with 15 years’ average
capaciry avallable at current races of fill

At the same time it is increasingly recognised
that waste is a major renewable energy
source, accounung for approximately 25%

of the current UK’s renewable energy or
roughly | 5% of the total UK's electricity
producuon | 2% of this comes from landfill
gas utthsavon, which has grown by 600% over
the past 10 years, and 0 3% from energy from
waste combusuon As the energy produced
from waste Is a product of waste treacment,
1t1s effecuvely low cost Unlike certain other
renewables it provides baseload power which
1s distmbuted around the grid typically close
to where energy 1s required

There 1s scope for a major increase in

the amount of energy recovered from

waste in the UK parucularly m EfWW

facihues (especially with CHP) as well as in
developing technologies such as Anaerobic
Digestnon (AD) Vindor estimates that waste
could account for 6% of UK electricity
production by 2015 If planning barrers could
be addressed, and has called upon the UK
Government to set this as a target

The need for councils to avoid steeply
increastng landfill tax and to achieve thelr
landfill diversion targets creates attractuve
opporwniues for PFI/PPP and other contracts
Examples include Vindor's contracts with
West Sussex, Somerset, Greater Manchester
and the South London Waste Partnership,
faciliwes such as the Lakeside Ef¥V plant and
the Runcorn EfvW CHP plants, recycling
operatons such as those of Vindor Resource
Management and our electrical goods and glass
recycling services

Whilst the long-term trends in favour of
Vindor's business are very posinve, the
weakness of the UK economy 1s having a
significant effect on waste volumes and power
generation prnces It i1s certain that public
expenditure will be reduced in the face of the
UK’s massive budget deficit

Greater Manchester 25-year PFl
contract operating successfully

This 1s ltkely to put particufar pressure on
local counals’ budgets and may result in theirr
delaying new major waste PPPs/PFls or in
seeking other ways to reduce their waste
management costs

BUSINESS AND STRATEGY
Our strategy is to delver strong growth and
add value by

= capitalising on our strong position in landfill
waste disposal

« proacuvely developing new recycling
operauons to meet ambwous EU/UK
targets

* successfully explomting the huge potential in
waste-based renewable energy generation

Vindor's landfill market consists of municipal,
commeraal and industnal wastes, along with
certain other special types of waste Landfill
is currently the major final disposal route for
these wastes

Virdor 1s a major landfill site operator within
the UK with a total consented landfill capaaity
of approximately 77 milien cubic metres as

at 31 March 2010 Vindor is at present filling
this at a rate of arcund five milhen cubic
metres per anhum, which results in an average
remainung life of 15 years at current rates of
fill, which 1s significandy longer than for the
industry as a whole

Gas produced from decomposing waste on
tandfill sites 15 increasingfly used to generate
electrnicry Itis a form of renewable energy
and now represents | 2% of the UK's toral
electricity generanon EfWW represents

a further O 3% according to Defra The
Government's stated strategy Is to Increase
the percentage of electrcity generated
from all renewable sources from the
current figure of around 5% to a target of
10% in 2010 and 15% 1n 2015 Vindor has
called on the Government to set a target
of 6% of electncity to be generated from
waste sources by 2015 The UK has an EU
target of generaung 5% of toual energy
from renewable sources by 2020, which

1s likely to require over 30% of electnicity
wo be generated from renewable sources
Histonically, renewable energy projects were
supported by the Government through
the NFFO scheme Under this fixed prce,
Retail Prices Index {RPI) contracts with
terms of up to |5 years were awarded to

the most compentve renewable projects

in five tranches of bidding In Apnil 2002

the NFFO regime was replaced by the
Renewables Obligation (RO) regme Under
the RO, eligible generators recerve the brown
energy price plus the value of the associated
Renewables Obligauon Ceruficate as
described on page 23

The overall price for electricity supphed

under the RO regime is currendy subseantally
higher than that achieved under the most
recent NFFQ scheme This has facilitated the
increase of Vindor's toral landfill gas power
generauon capacity to (00 MW ac 31 March
2019, compared with 27 MW in March 2002
Of chis power generation capacity, 63%

1s under the RO regime and 37% 1s under
NFFO Vindor's existing NFFO contracts end
in tranches over the next six years after which
the capacity can transfer to ROCs

To take advantage of opportunities presented
by the Government's developing waste
strategy, Virdor Is pursuing EfWY schemes
detailed below (including, where feasible,
CHP) and a range of recycling or related
treatment opportunites, including macerials
recycling facthues, mechanical-biological
treatment, anaerobic digestion, composting
and household waste recycling sites These
facities may be combined in integrated waste
management CONTracts

Viridor 1s pursuing possible [ong-term EfWY
opportunites, including proposals i Cardiff
(which recerved pfanning permission in June
2010). Avonmouth, Dunbar and Oxfordshire
(which have had planning permission turned
down locally and are being appealed), and near
Plymouth Construction of the consented
Exeter EFVW plant 15 expected to start

during 2010/11

In pursuing i1ts strategy, Yindor seeks wo grow
its recycing, renewable energy and waste
management business, both organically and
through acquisition It has continued to be

an active parucipant in the consclidation of
the UK waste market to date and, between
Qctober 200 and March 2010, has made 17
acquisitons in the waste sector for an aggregate
considerauon of over £310 millon These
businesses have now been integrated inco the

Vindor group

Lakeside Energy from Waste
plant commenced operations
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ABOUT OUR BUSINESSES — SOUTH WEST WATER

REGULATORY AND
COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

South West Water is the licensed water
and sewerage service provider for Devon,
Cornwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset
The company serves a region of nearly
10,300 square kilometres with over | 65
million residents In addicion over 39 million
visitor nights as recorded by South West
Tourism were spent in the region in 2009
On average each day it distributes over

420 Megalitres (M1} of treated water and
disposes of around 235 Ml of waste water
through an asset base comprising

Water distnbution mains 15,058km
Sewers 9,288km
Impounding reservoirs 15
Water treatment works 39

Waste water treatment works,

including 55 works with

ultra-viclet treatment and

three with membrane filtraton 634

Intermittent discharge points,
including 1,029 combined
sewer overflows 1,668

Since privansanon in 1989 the company

has successfully delivered the largest capimal
programme per capita of any of the water

and sewerage comparies with an ininal focus
©on Improving coasta! waste water treatment
and disposal The region currently has |44 EU
desygnated batung waters, almost one third
of the total In England and Vales, and 132 of
these have benefited over the last |9 years from
the company’s marne investment programme
Following completon of an enare overhaul

of water resources, water treatment and
distnbuton cver the same penod we are able
to dernonstrate Major IMprovements In water
supply quality and relabtlicy for our customers

Over 420 MI
of treated
water supplied
per day

South West ¥vater expects to create value
through delivering the regulatory contract
agreed with Ofwat. The contract scope

1s reviewed every five years As well as
determining outputs, Ofwat sets prices

to enable efficient companies to earn a
reasonable rate of return on their assets

For the new regulatory period which started
in April 2010 Ofwat assumed that the equiy
cost of capital for all companies will be 7 1%
real after tax with an overall weighted average
cost of capital of 4 5% real after tax.

Customers using more than 50 Ml of water
per year can contract with alternatve
suppliers for water supply South West
Water has 36 customers in this category
whose aggregate water charges account
for approximately | 5% of its total water
and sewerage revenue or 3 2% of its water
revenue No single customer accounts for
more than 1% of revenue

The Government's independent review of
competiion and innovaton in the warter
industry led by Professor Martin Cave
published its final recommendauons in April
2009 Legislanon will be required for any
further significant extension of competiuon
in the water and sewerage markets During
the year Ofwat consulted on extending the
current 50 Ml crteria for competiuon under
water supply licensing arrangements to
cover customers using more than 5 M! This
extension to the exisung compeuucn regime
15 expected w apply during 20{0/11 Cfwat
has published a number of consultauon papers
concerning the potenual for future retall and
upstream market reform
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The review inte farrer water charges
commussioned by Defra, known as the
Walker Review, was concluded 1n 200%

The review noted that, while the regulatory
regime in the water |ndustry has served
customers well over the last 20 years,
improvements can be made to address the
twin aspects of affordability and fairness

for water customers The Government has
asked Ofwat w0 advise 1t on one or more of
a number of options to address the issue of
water bills in the South West

* a one-off or other financial adjustment
by Government

* contnbutons by other water customers
across the country

* a package of tanff proposals for South
West Water customers

Ofwat and South West Water have
established a joint working group to develop
and examine the opuons which could address
the recommendations n the ¥Walker Review

PRICE CAP REGULATION

Ofwar regulates water and waste water
charges by determining the maximum
increase n charges which a company can
impose In any year The water regulator
conducts a Pertodic Review and sets price
limits every five years Prices are set by
reference to inflaion as measured by the
Retail Prices Index (RPI) plus an adjustment
factor known as ‘K* which 1s specific for
each company

The ‘K’ factors for the period 2010 to 2015
for South West Water were determined
by Ofwat in its Final Determination in
November 2009 and are shown in the
table below




GROWTH IN REGULATORY

CAPITAL YALUE

Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) is the financial
base used by Ofwat to allow a rate of return
and set pnces at each Periodic Review

The RCV at 3|1 March 2010 amounted to

£2 621 billion After adjustment for PRO9

log up/down and other Final Determination
adjustments the figure 1s £2 555 billlon which
represents an increase of 3 8% in the year
From 31 March 2005 to 31 March 2010 the
company achieved a 31 % growth in RCV, the
highest percentage increase of any quoted UK
wrater company

The gearing ratic i relaton to adjusted year-
end Regulatory Capital Value improved to
60 6% from 63 8% n 2008/0%

The growth in RCV adds directly to shareholder
value as the allowed retumn 1s attnbuted to
South West Water's asset base by Ofwat.

The 2004 Final Determination provided for total capital expenditure of £762 mullion (2002/03
prices) over the five-year period 2005-2010 All major projects required in the period
2005-2010 were delivered in line with Ofwat’s, the Dnnking Water Inspectorate’s and the
Environment Agency's expectations The required customer service and infrastructure
outputs at 31 March 2010 included

Activity 2005-2010 Target Status at 31 March 2010

Adequacy of water resources  Security of Supply Index to be

mantained at {00

Security of Supply Index was
100 No water restrictions
for the 13th consecutive year

{eakage control based on Maintain at 84Ml/d 82MI/d achieved in 2009/10

three-year rofling average

Asset condinon above ground  Maintan seable Stable
Asset condinon below ground  Maintam stable Stable
Meet Dnnking Water Complete five milestone Completed
Inspectorate milestones for packages of improvements

water mains rehabilitation

Improvernents to conunucus  Complete 95 schemes by Completed
discharges 31 March 2010

improvermnents to intermittent  Comgplete 113 schemes by Completed

sewage overflows 31 March 2010

PERIODIC REVIEW 2009

Following submission of South West Water's Final Business Plan in Apnl 2009, the company's
Final Determinaucon was made by Ofwat on 26 Novemnber 2009 Key elements of the Final
Determinaton for the company included

« a cost of captal of 4 5% (real, post tax basis), applicable to the whole industry

+ ‘K’ price increases {above RPl inflaton) averaging | 9% per annum over the five years

* acapital programme of around £705 million at 2007/08 prices

* a Caputal Incenuve Scheme (CIS) score of 105 (water) and 110 {(sewerage), in line with the
Industry average

+ operatng efficency improvements of 2 8% per annum, comparable with K4 delivery

* over the period 2010-2015 average bills decreasing by % before inflauon

+ capital investment priontes, including protection and mantenance of the improvements made
over the last 20 years, further improvements to meet EU Direcuves and their corresponding
UK legislanon, achievement of operaung cost savings and delivery of projects to increase levels
of renewable energy generauon and to improve sustainability of the company's acuviues

Further informaucn on the Final Determinauon 1s available on the company's website
southwestwater.co.uk

PENNGN GROUFP ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS | 2010 { P17




LEGISLATIVE DRIVERS

The water industry in the UK 15 subject to
substantal national and EU regulauon This places
significant statutory obligauons on Souch West
Warter with regard to, amongst other things, the
quanaty of water absgracted, and the quality and
quantuty of waste water discharged Examples
of relevant EU direcuves include the Dnnking
Water Directive, the Habitats Direcuve, the
Urban Waste Water Treatment Direcuve and
the updated Bathing Water Directive

The Water Framework Directive was
incorporated into UK law in 2003 It
provides a framework for the protecuon
and improvement of the qualicy of water
resources, together with the promoton of
sustamnable water consumption To comply
with the Water Framework Direcuve,

EU member states wll have to achieve

the challenging target of ‘good’ status for
groundwater, rivers, estuarine waters and
coastal waters, In three six-year cycles, the
first runnung from 2009 to 2015 The Final
River Basin Management Plan, published by
the Environment Agency in December 20085,
confirmed dhat the Plan’s implicauons are
unlikely to require changes to South West
Water's assets at least unui 2015, due to the
successful delivery of a wide range of river,
estuanne and coastal water environmental
improvemnents by the company since 1989

Further legistative regulations are expected
for the water industry followang introduction
of the Flocd and Water Management Actin
April 2010 Many of the changes are expected
to implement the recommendatons of the
Pitt Report which was commissioned after the
severe flooding in other parts of the country
in summer 2007

CLIMATE CHANGE

South West Water 15 working closely with
many organisations to assess the implications
of cimate change for water supply and waste
water services Adaptation and mitigation
plans are being developed which will invelve
innovaove approaches and new methods of
influencing catchment behaviour upstream of
its water supply systems. In sewered areas and
downstream of its waste water systems to
protect the wider environment

The company’s fina! Water Resources Plan
for the next 25 years was published in the
summer of 2009 and was approved by Defra
It includes informaaon relaung to rammfall and
temperature vanagons The plan includes
allowances for demand changes associated
with climarte change Predicuve models are in
place to address uncertainty Infrastructure
developments have been |denufied, the tming
of which can be adjusted If the expected rate
of chmate change alters Increasingly efficient
and careful use of water plays a major partin
adapang to the expected effects

INCIDENTS

There were no Category | inadents for the
tHeh year in succession Two Category 2
{significant pollution) events and 69 Category
3 events were recorded by the Envircnment
Agency in 2009 which were deemed non-
complhiant with discharge consents This
compares with three Category 2 incidents and
&4 Category 3 inaidents in 2008 The total
number of waste water polluton inaidents in
2009 was 106 (2008 92) 41% of the Category
2 and 3 inaidents in 2009 were idenufied by
the company and self-reported

Flexible plans in place
for climate change
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PROSECUTIONS

During the year the company was convicted
on four occasions for environmental offences
and fined a total of £11,500 (2008/09 four
convictions and fines of £28,100)

The company always self-reports incidents 1t
becomes aware of and co-operates fully with
any Investgation undertaken by the relevant
regulatory authority After each polluton
incident, the company takes such steps as are
necessary to ensure as far as possible that the
incident will not be repeared and also seeks
to ensure thatlessons learned are widely
disseminated throughout the company

CUSTOMERS, COMMUNITY
AND EMPLOYEES

HEALTH AND SAFETY

PERFORMANCE

The health, safety and welfare of South West
Water's employees remain paramount 1n all its
acuvitles The company has a health and safety
strategy which focuses on providing strong
leadership, engagng with employees, buillding
competence and measuring performance
These principles are promoted by a health and
safery steering group ncluding a cross-secuon
of the company’s directors, managers and
employee representatives

Occupatonal health and safety are key
elements of South West Water’s risk
management and internal control processes
We conunue to pursue initiatves to iImprove
further the welfare of the company’s
employees through the provision of traming
on, and promouon of, good health and

safety pracuces

RIDDOR accidents and incidents per 1,000
employees totalled 13 in 2009 compared
with 21 1n 2008 and we welcome this
Improvement.




CUSTOMERS

South West Water has consulted with
customers about its prioriues for 2010-

2015 and this feedback has been central

to the development of customer service
improvement plans to deliver its Pure Water,
Pure Service and Pure Environment strategy

Prowiding help and support to customers 1n
need s at the heart of the company's Pure
Service strategy and accordingly the company
remains an industry leader in the provision

of prianty services ta vulnerable customers
In 2009/10 the company helped thousands of
such customers with reading their meters or
by prowiding extra help in an emergency

‘WaterCare', che company’s industry-leading
programme to support customers who have
difficulty in paying their bills, completed a
third successful year Since the stare of the
programme over 7,000 customers have been
helped with benefit entidement checks, tanff
advice and water-saving measures

The WaterCare programme has been
commended by the Government.

Customers are kept informed about

our services through "WaterLevel’ (our
company newspaper), leaflets, the media

and our website southwestwater.co uk
Consultaton with customers and stakeholders
has an influence on the iImprovements made
to our literature and website as we seek to
prewide informauon of nterest in increasingly
accessible ways

The company meets regularty with the
Consumer Counal for Water (CCWater),
which champions the interests of water
customers |t consults with CCWater and
other stakeholders such as pensioners’ forums
and Ciuzens Advice, prior to introducing
major changes or inimatives

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION OVERALL
South West Water's ‘Customer Plus’
programme is transforming the customer
experience with the aim of making it
amongst the best in the indusery In 2009/10
customer contact performance improved
significanty The number of complaints
about billing, charges and water and
sewerage services has fallen

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION CALL
HANDLING

Ofwat measures the overall manner in which
a customer call 1s handled The measure

is obtained by quarterly tracking surveys
undertaken by an independent company
engaged and managed by Ofwac. The data s
averaged for the year to assess a performance
trend For 2009/10 the sausfacuon score was
4 53 (2008/05 4 5) The maximum score 15 50

The company continues to promote the
efficient use of water with advice and pracucal
support for householders and non-domesuc
customers An educatuon programme for
schools has also been developed this year to
extend the spread and reach of this work

As part of the WaterCare programme

and to investigate customers’ high water
consumption quenes, 2,83] audits were
completed  2009/10 (2008/09 3,088}

South West Water conunues to support
business customers through water
efficiency reviews, waste minimisation
projects, providing advice for water
management plans and by highlighung
opportuninies for reduction, re-use or
alternative sources of supply

Business custemers conunue to have access
to a secure online system which tracks and
displays consumpuen on their sites South
West Water's ‘Business Accounts Online’ also
offers a water efficency calcutator with a free
water audit. Since the launch of the calcufator
tool in November 2007 211 businesses with
over 7,150 water service accounts have
registered to use the water effictency element
of this service

OVERALL PERFORMANCE
ASSESSMENT

The Overall Perfermance Assessment (OPA}
index 1s maintained by Ofwat as a comparatve
tocl to measure companies’ performance
The OPA 15 based on performance in areas
stich as customer service, complaint handling,
billing, debt collection, asset serviceability,
environmental comphance and quality of
drinking water delivered in 2008/0% South
West Water's performance moved to eighth
place amongst the ten water and sewerage
companies (seventh in 2007/08)

Ofwat has announced that OPA will be
replaced with a new measure of water
industry customer performance, called the
Service Incentive Mechamism 2010/1} data will
be reported on this new basis
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COMMUNITY, CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY AND SPONSORSHIP
South West Water concentrates its
sponsorship on communicy projects and
organisations within its service area which are
hnked to water, benefit the environment or
promote youth participaton

Highlights 1n 2009/10 included the staging

of a series of environmental walks with
Comwall Wildlife Trust around the coastine
to mark the completon of a pipe replacement
scheme at Looe and sponsoring the “Nipper’
youth championships of the Surf Life Saving
Associauon of Great Britain at Falmouth

Cther supported events ranged from the
TRAIL environmental art sculpture fesuval on
the South West Coast Path between Dawlish
and Shaldon and the opening of Pynes water
treatment works, Brokenbury waste water
treatment works and Mary Tavy hydro power
stauon for guided public tours during the
nateonal Hertage Open Days

For the third year the company also
co-sponsored South West Tourism’s annual
awards and funded the sustainable tourism
prize This demonstrates how 1ts ‘Clean
Sweep' project has helped underpin the
renaissance of tourism, the region’s number
one industry

The company 1s proud to support the
water industry charity, WaterAud, through
sponsorship and many other fund-

raising acuviues such as the publicauon

of a calendar featuring water-themed
photographs taken by Group employeas

South West Water achieved a ‘Green Apple’

award for transforming a disused sludge lagoon

into a pond for wildife with a number of
other habitat improvements around 1ts water
treatment works site at Totuford, near Bovey

Tracey This project was shortlisted as a finakst

in the Community Campaign of the Year
category of the Water [ndustry Achievement
Awards This recogrises the way South West
Water engaged with adules with learning
difficulues for the supply of bat, bird and
dormouse boxes now fitted across the site

EMPLOYEES

South West Water's people strategy
continues to focus on recruiting and
developing indmduals who can support

the delivery of the company’s ‘Pure’ vision,
enabling the provision of a high quality
service to customers and the achievement of
operational efficiencies

Technicai and managertal skills training have
underpinned the comparry’s Puros project.
A range of other learning programmes to
support the development of customer facing
and operatonal skills contnue to form a
fundamental part of our strategy

Employee involvement and partcipation in
all aspects of business and crganisational
change 1s encouraged and supported through
the company’s Staff Council and craft and
industrial consultatve forums

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

REGULATORS AND OTHERS
Relanonships with regulators, Government
and 1ts agencies, customer representative
organisauons and Its customers are central
to South West Water’s operatons The
company maintains a conunuing dialogue with
Ofwat, the Environment Agency and the
Drnkang Water Inspectorate It contributes
to natenal policy on developing issues
through 1its membership of Water UK, the
industry trade body

The company works with the Consumer
Counclil for Water to ensure that customers’
1ssues and concerns are addressed and a full
understanding of the company's actvities 1s
maintained

PROCUREMENT AND SUPPLIERS
South West Water’s procurement strategy
15 focussed on partnering and strategic
alliances with 60 key suppliers who account
for the large majonty of expenditure
Regular meeungs are held to manage
performance, encourage sustainable
business activity and to idenufy and deliver
contnuous iImprovement opportunites for
reducing costs further whilst improving
performance and service levels

The company has successfully completed a
programme of tendering strategic contracts
in preparation for the K5 period and has
established a new ‘HgO’ Delivery Alhance \
structure for delivery of its 2010-15 capical
programme This will enable the company
to work closely with suppliers, partcularly
small and medium-sized businesses

across the South WWest, ensuring value for
money for customers and supportng the
regional economy

No supplier {revenue) accounts for more
than 5% of revenue and South West Warer
sources all its purchases from competitive
markets South West Water's electnicicy
supplies have been secured to 2014 through
recently negonated fixed price contracts

‘0" Delivery Alliance in place for
the 2010-15 capital programme
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SOUTH WEST WATER'S PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk
Tighter price contrals over the revenue of

the campany’s regulated business

Failure to deliver the capital investment
programme

The company may be unable to raise
sufficient funds to finance its funcuons

Failure to deliver operaung cost savings
wmplicit in the regulatory review

Environmental regulavons and quality
standards could increase the company's
costs

Climate change

Contaminauon of water supplies

Non-recovery of customer debt

Water resource adequacy

Operatonal falures

Reduced revenue from falling customer
demand for water

Financial loss anising from the insotvency of
a major suppler or contractor

Impact of competiuon in the industry

Mitigation

The current penodic review was completed in November 2009 when Ofwat set water
company charges for the years 2010-2015 South West Water has met Ofwar’s efficiency
rargets in the last three Perodic Review pericds

The company has a track record of delivering its capital programme in accordance with
regulatory requirements and progress is regularly monitored and reviewed The K4
capital programme has been delivered and the company has developed plans to deliver
che KS programme

Pennon Group and the company have robust treasury policies in place. These include policies
that there are always pre-drawn or committed facilioes to cover at least one year’s esumarced
cashflow and that no more than 20% of borrowing matwres in any one year Treasury policies
and nsk management are described in more detail on pages 29 to 31

In line with s track record, the company rematns confident of delivering the assumed
operaung cost savings A major restructuring programme is currendy being implemented to
contnbute towards the addiuonal efficiencies required for the K5 penod

These I1ssues are addressed through the five-year regulatery review mechanism

The company has plans ready and will adapt the way 1t conducts 1ts business to respond
effectively to the hotter, drier summers and wetter winters which are anucipated

The company has established procedures and contrels in place, as well as conungency plans
and incident management procedures It also maintains insurance policies in relation to these
nisks, although there can be no assurance that all or any of the costs associated with these nisks
would be covered or that coverage will continue to be available in the future

In addinon to exasung strategies, which are kept under review, South West Water conunues to
implement new Initaaves to iImprove and secure cash collecuon, including the use of property
charging orders Stretching debt and collection targets — with incenuves — have been agreed
with the customer service contractor The accounts of majer customers are kept under close
review Prowision has been made in the K5 Final Determinauon for companies to make an
applicauon for an Intenm Determinaucn in the event of household bad debts betng significandy
above the amount allowed by the water regulator due to worsening economic circumstances in
the company’s operatng area

The company has a number of schemes in place 1o maintan water rescurces {such as pumped
storage for certain reservmrs) and promotes conservation measures

In parucular, Scuth West Vvater prepares a new YVater Resources Plan every five years and
reviews it annually for a range of cimate change and demand scenarios The Water Resources
Plan indicates that no new reservoirs are required before the planning honzon of 2035
Hawever, investment is needed to develop the overall trunk main infrastructure, to expand
treatment capacity and to enhance certain pumped storage faolites

The company Is able to monitor its sigmificant assets by automated and remote cperation and
has routine contrels and operating procedures in place that are constantly kept under review
Asset management techniques are employed to pre-empt the fallure of assets

The reduced demand expertenced in the K4 regulatory penod has been taken into account
by the regulator in setting a baseline turnaver leve! for the KS period A revenue correcuon
mechanism 1s in place from the start of the K5 pertod, which allows water companies to
recover a shortfall in Income for a five-year regulatory period in the next period

The company uses a third party credit monitoring service to track changes to major
suppliers’ financial status and credictwortchiness to supplement an annual risk review of key
and strategic suppliers

South West Water conunues to consider and evaluate developments and proposals in relavon
to the development of compeution as part of its sk management and business strategic
planming processes Legislanon will be required for any further extension of competiton in the
water and sewerage markets
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ABOUT OUR BUSINESSES — VIRIDOR

REGULATORY AND
COMPETITIVE ENVIRONMENT

The UK 15 required under the EU Landfill
Direcuve to reduce the amount of
biodegradable municipal waste going to
landfill sites to

— 75% of 1995 level by 2010
— 50% of 1995 level by 2013
— 35% of 1995 level by 2020

The Pre-Treatment Regutations 2007
require all waste going ca landfill to have
undergone some form of pre-treatment
(including recycling)

At the same ume the Government has

set targets in England for recycling and
composting of municipal waste to increase
from the current level of around 35%

to 40% by 2010, 45% by 2015 and 50%

by 2020 Higher targets are in place for
some of the devolved administravons The
Government Is promoting recycling by
various measures including encouraging
councils to provide separate collection of
recyclables which enhances the recycling
rate obrainable at MRFs There are specific
argets for recycling of all packaging with
financial incentives in the form of Packaging
Recovery Notes (PRNs) and Packaging
Export Recovery Notes (PERNs) Specific
regulations affect waste electrical and
electronic equipment {WEEE) which has its
own system of Evidence Notes

Viridor's growth
strategy is
focussed on
pecovering value
from waste
through recycling
and generation of
renewable energy

The Government introduced landfill tax

as an incenuve to divert waste away from
landfill sites Landfill tax applies to all waste
disposed of at a licensed landfill site, unless
the waste 1s specifically exempt, such as sail
from historically contaminated sites up to
2012 Landfill tax s chargeable by weight
For inert waste, landfill tax was chargeable
at £2 50 per tonne from | April 2008 and
this has been frozen to 2010/11 A standard
rate of £48 per tonne apples to all other
taxable waste (up from £32 in 2008/09)
which 1s due to nise by a further £8 per
tonne per annum to reach a level of £80 per
tonne in 20/4/15

In order to meet the requirements of

the Landfill Direcuve, individual local
authornitres have also been set stacutory
targets for the diversion of biodegradable
municipal waste from landfill Each waste
disposal authority has been allocated an
allowance of the amount of bicdegradable
waste It may dispose of to landfill for the
years 2005 to 2020 These allowances are
designed to ensure that the UK as a whole
achieves the requirements of the EU Landfill
Direcuve Subject to some constraints,
local autherities can carry forward or trade
allowances under the Landfill Allowance
Trading Scheme (LATS) Any authority
exceeding 1ts allocation without such an
allowance faces a penazlty of £150 per
tonne in addition to the cost of disposing
of the waste This 15 expected to resultin
the introduction of afternative treatment
and disposal processes at higher cost than
current routes
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The Government Is currently consulting on
possible long-term bans on the disposal of
certain types of waste to fandfill

Under the Environmental Permitung (England
and Wales) Regulatons 2007 all waste
handling, treatment and disposal faciliues
previously operating under either a waste
management licence or a Pollution Preventuon
and Control {(PPC) permit require an
Ervironmental Permic

PLANNING FOR WASTE AND
RECYCLING INFRASTRUCTURE

All waste managernent facilines, including the
development and expansion of landfill sites,
are subject to planmng permission from the
relevant local authonty Major facilities such
as EfVV plants above 50 MW must recerve
consent from the relevant Secretary of State

Yirdor believes that good environmental

and operaucnal management 1s important

to winning future planning consents It has
now implemented its integrated Business
Management System incorporaung externally
accredited environmental, qualicy and health
and safety management standards (13O 14001,
SO 900! and OHSAS 18001)

Planning applicauons are subject to rigerous
assessment by local authoriues who

will consider them against the backdrop

of policies contained within the local
developrnent plan framework which have
been adopted for their areas Applicauons
have to address a wide range of issues

and the relevant regulators are statutory
consultees in this process




INTEGRATED MUNICIPAL WASTE
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS AND
THE ROLE OF PRIVATE FINANCE
INITIATIVES OR PUBLIC PRIVATE
PARTNERSHIPS

To assist in meenng their landfill dversion
targets, many local authortues are seeking to
let integrated waste management contracts
covering a range of actviues often including
household waste recycling sites (HVVRS),
compasung, recycling and recovery, EfWV, waste
transfer and bulk transport and final disposal

In a number of iInstances thase will be financed
under PFl arrangements where local authonues
apply to the Government for che funding of
capital projects which fall within the eligibilicy
cntena. Successful applicants receive cash

funds (known as PFl credits) which do not

have to be repaid and can be used by the local
authorines wo fund a proporaon of the capital
and operatng expenditures needed for projects

Councils may also choose to let long-term
contracts using PPP arrangements Under this
they avoid the complexiues of securing PFI
credits Vindor considers that the operational
nature of the contract is very similar whether
it1s a PFl or a PPP

Vindor has been operatng a 25-year PF
contract with West Sussex County Counal
since 2004, and a 25-year PPP contract with
Somerset County Council since 2006 In

early Apri 2009 the Vindor/Laing consoruum
reached financial close for the 25-year Greater
Manchester PFi waste and renewable energy
contract, the largest of its land in the UK

Vindor recognises that there 1s 2 range of risks
asscaated with entenng into such contracts,
which are often for a 25-year term However,
subject to a careful assessment of the risks on
a contract-by-contract basts, the company wll
conunue seeking to secure such contracts

WASTE REGULATION
ENVIRONMENT

EU Direcuves and related UK legistacion,
as well as planning and licensing, have been
referred to previously

The Environment Agency (EA) and the
Scotush Environment Protecuon Agency
(SEPA) monitor performance against
permit and licence conditions and general
envtronmental law Major breaches are
subject to prosecution The EA and SEPA
can also require the operater to
undertake upgrades to ensure future
compliance and, where a pollution incident
or permit or licence breach has occurred,
remedial action

Waste facilities are also subject to the same
regulations as other industnes, including
health and safety, Control of Substances
Hazardous to Health (CoSHH) and the
Working Time Directive In addiuon the
transport of waste and recycled materials 1s
subject to specific regulanion and controls

RENEWARBLES OBLIGATION (RO)
ORDER 2009 (ROO 2009)

Under the RO the Government has a target
to generate 10% of UK electnarty usage
from renewables by 2010, and |5% by 2015
{compared with around 6% generauon from
renewables at present) The EU has set the
UK a target of (5% of total energy, including
heating, transport and other energy

uses, to be generated from renewables

This potentally equates to aver 30% of
electricity from renewables in the UK

Producuon of renewable energy is
incenovised under the RO whereby
renewable energy generators get a premium
for the Renewables Obligation Ceruficate
(ROC) in addition to the underlying ‘brown
energy' price for their production

This premium relates to the balance
between actual UK output and target UK
output At present the UK 1s behind target
and many believe 1t will reman so for some
considerable tme In addivon, ROQO 2009
has introduced a mechanism so chat such
‘headroom’ will be maintained Ehgibility for
ROCs 1s governed by complex rules Landfill
gas, anaerobtc digesuon (AD) and certain
other waste technologies incuding ‘good
quality’ CHP {such as the planned Runcorn
EfW CHP plant) are eligible

A recent change in RO 1n 2009 was the
introducuon of the banding of ROCs The
impact of this change 1s chat all landfill gas
projects accredited by { April 2009 will
conunue to receive one ROC per Megawatt
hour This will alse apply to any addinonal
capacity provided 1t is commisstoned by

| Apnl 2011 Those accredited after that
date will only receive 25% of one ROC
Vindor ensured that the vast majority of
s potential capacity was appropnately
accredited by | April 2009 In addition
certain technologies such as AD have been
incenovised with double ROCs Vindor ts
pursuing a number of AD opportuniues and
has currently secured six planning consents

37% of Vindor's fandfill gas power
generauon output is under NFFQ schemes
These contracts are due to end in tranches
over the naxt six years after which the
output can transfer to the RO Pror to
the RO renewable energy generation was
incenuvised under the NFFO Under this,
users of relevant technologies could sell
their output on medium/long fixed price
contracts nsing in ine with inflavon The
overall price per MWh achievable under
NFFO contracts is fower than that currently
received under the RC

44% of Viridor's profit now comes from recovering

value from waste
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CUSTOMERS, COMMUNITY
AND EMPLOYEES

The company employs a comprehensive range
of technical and professional managerial and
operational and support personne! Many

are vocaucnally trained and have extensive
operational experience Membership of
relevant trade umions and professional bodies
15 widespread and 1s encouraged

Vindor's equal opportunities policies and
procedures seek to ensure that bias and
discnminauon in the treatment of job
applicants and employees are eliminaced
Traning and appropnate support is provided
to implement this throughout the company
Every effort i1s made to accommodate any
form of disability by the use of reasonable
adjustments in the workplace

Vindor 1s pursuing a number of occupanonal
health and safety imuauves, parucularty
focusing on reducing ship, trip and fall type
acadents, conunuing MProvements in
transport management, reductng vehicle/
persennel Interfaces and improving manual
handling performance Accreditation to the
OHSAS 12001 international health and safety
standard has been achieved across all sites
with the excepuon of two electrical recycling
sites which are planned to be cerufied by

the end of this year This accreditauon 1s
part of the company’s integrated business
management system (BMS), which provides
the vehicle for delivering health and safety
standards and procedures

Vindor's reportable acaident and incident rate
per 100,000 employees 1s an important KPI
and 15 set out below for the period 2005 wo
2009 The company Is very disappointed that
the rate rose from |,505 in 2008 to 2,445 per
100,000 employees in 2009

This increase in reportable accidents (to

67 In total) was due primarily to manual
handling type injuries and ships, trips and falls
which are the company’s largest cause of
acadents Despite comparing favourably with
industry averages in prevtous years, Yindor's
focus on health and safety improvement and
performance has been further strengthened
The company has recrurted addiional health
and safety professionals and conunues to rase
the level of traming and support avalable to
its staff Parucular efforts are being made

to reinforce strong positve atutudes to
health and safety at all leve!s in the company
and health and safety 1s a key aspect of
management incentive schemes

ENVIRONMENT

Yindor's operavons create significant posiave
environmental impacts including safe and
efficient treatment and disposal of society’s |
waste matertals, Increased resource and

energy efficency from its recycling and energy

recavery cperauons, the capture of methane

(a2 greenhouse gas 2| umes as potent as

carbon dioxide (COs4)), the generation of

renewable energy; and the restaration of

despoiled landscapes such as disused mineral

workings through the controlled depesit of

waste matenals Significant negative impacts

include transporavon and associated

emissions, methane producuon (where not

hamessed for energy generauon or flared),

leachate producuon, energy use in materrals

processing, and potennal local impacts such as

dust, noise, licter and odour

Having led the industry in the development
and implementauon of an Environmental
Management System, Vinder's integrated
Business Management System (BMS)

now Incorporates externally accredited
environmental, qualicy and health and safery
systems This dllows clear targets to be set
and met to maximise benefits and posiuve
impacts and reduce and prevent adverse
impacts, resulung in conunuous improvement
in these key areas !

Accreditation to the BMS across all sites and
operacions has been retained dunng 2009/10,
accredited shorty The company continues to
report against the environmental performance
indicators for the waste industry which ic
helped to develop and which are endorsed by
the Green Alliance

The amount of waste recycled and traded by
the company grew by 3 5% to a litde over 1 4
millon tonnes

Accreditation

to OHSAS 138001
international health and
safety standard planned
across all sites
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Viridor promotes positive

working relationships with regulators

and communities

SOCIAL AND COMMUNITY ISSUES

A ‘good neighbour’ policy 1s implemented at all faciliues managed by
Vindor This includes local haison groups meeting regularly at major
sites, enabling local community stakeholders to be consulted and to
be informed about the company’s plans and operating procedures
Liaison group members include locally elected representatives of the
community as well as representauves of the regulator, the relevant
planning and waste authonty and other local stakeholders

Vindor supports two ‘adopted’ charities, Scope and che Primary
Immunodeficiency Associaon (PIA) The comipany match-funds
amounts raised by employees for these charities and also prowvides

a ‘payroll gnang' factlity enabling employees to directly donate ta

their chosen chanity Vindor also fully parucipates in the Landfill
Communiues Fund, a scheme whereby a proporuon of Landfill Tax
can be clamed as credits and distnbuted to qualifying commurity and
enviropmental projects During the year Vindor provided £94 milkon

to Vindor Credits Environmental Company, an independent distnbutive

environmental body Funding ts aflocated ac grassroats level by steering
groups established to serve areas close to operauonal landfill sites

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

All waste and recycling facilities in England and Wales require
envirenmental permits, or waste management licences or PPC permits
n Scodand These are issued and monitored by the EA and SEPA
respecuvely Vindor maintains a posiuve waorking relauonship with the
regulators via proactive laison and 1ssues management, at both a site-
specific and strategic level

Local authorities are the largest single customer group accounting
in total for 31% of the company's revenue No individual authority
accounts for more than 11% Virder's ROC contracts account for
7% of revenue primanly with one customer No supplier accounts
for more than 6% of Vindor’s revenue The company sources from
competitive markets
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VIRIDOR'S PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risk

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH CURRENT UK
AND WORLD ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Landfill volumes may decline due to
CONraction In eConoImy

Landfill prices

Recyclate pricas

Collection volumes (partcularly industral
customers) are subject to economic condtions

Bad debt collection more challenging in an
economic downturn

Gavernment funding cutbacks may lead to
the delay or abandenment of major waste
projects

INCREASES IN LANDFILL COSTS MAY
NOT BE RECOVERED THROUGH PRICE
INCREASES

Recovery of costs of legislative change

Aftercare costs levels

Residual eontamination

Estimated compaction rates
(tonnes per cubic metre)

Mitigation

Current UK and world economic condiuons are highly uncertain Though less affected than many
compantes, Virdor 15 by no means immune to general economic condimons A full assessment of
the key risks to Vindor's business artsing from current econornic uncertainties has been conducted,
ncluding the following

The majority of inputs are from long-term local authority contracts or Viridor's own collecuon fleet.
This risk 1s most pertinent to the 40% of Yindor’s volumes which are not from these inputs Local
authority and Virdor volumes have been less affected o date

To date landfill prices in general have proved robust. In a prolonged recession such prices may be
impacted by increased pnce compettion

Recyclate prices are, ke any commodity, volatle and are directly mpacted by world ecenomic
condittons The effect 1s most significant on the 40% of Viridor's recyching volumas of
internationally traded commodiues such as paper, card, plastics and metals However

recyclate Is typically cheaper than virgin materials which limits the mpact on prices for good
quality recyclate Recyclate prices have recovered to the levels pertaiming before the global
financial crisis

Viridor's record of bad debts has been, and remains, good based on tight management controls and
the ability to put customers ‘on stop’ z2nd, for example, refusing to accept waste at its landfills
debts are not bemng paid

|
Currently margins are holding up However volumes have fallen significantty

Viridor’s existing business with local authoriuies is covered by contracts on a variety of terms ‘
up to 25 years

The rassing of emvironmental standards 1s leading to a gradual increase in landfill costs in general,
including engineering (resulung n increased depreciation) and restoranien and aftercare costs
Yiridor, with landfills engineered to modern standards with good envirenmental control systems,
should incur fower than average increases in costs

Municipal contracts typically last for up to seven years They usually have provision for price
increases under set formulae refated to inflation and some Include legislative or technical changes
Prices for other types of waste depend more on local markets and competitive conditions Prices, as
a long-term trend have risen fast enough at least to cover cost increases

Costs which are assessed over 30 years are best estimates based on Vindor's own experence and
are updated at each stage of the capital expenditure programme

Yindor's landfill aftercare management includes restoration, maimtenance, supervision,
manitoring and management of gas and leachate levels after the tandfilling acovities have ceased
Provision is also made for estimated costs of remediation if required The EA or SEPA will only
grant a full or partial surrender of the permit once it is satisfied that the landfill no longer poses
any environmental risk

These are best esumates, based on current informaton, which are reviewed every year based on
actual compaction rates assessed by external consultants
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Risk

THE UK GOVERNMENT'S WASTE
STRATEGY, STEMMING FROM THE
LANDEFILL DIRECTIVE, WILL LEAD TO A
REDUCTION IN VOLUMES OF WASTE
BEING DISPOSED TO LANDFILL

PRICING AND OTHER RISKS RELATING
TO RENEWABLE ENERGY

Fluctuaung ‘brown energy’ prices

Changes m ROC pricing mechamism

UK renewable energy generaung capacity &
hcensed electricity suppliers

Valume of gas generated

THE CURRENT PLANNING REGIME
MAY RESTRICT THE AVAILABILITY OF
FUTURE WASTE TREATMENT FACILITIES

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH LONG-
TERM INTEGRATED CONTRACTS
{RISK TRANSFER IS A KEY PART OF
GOVERNMENT PFI PROCUREMENT
GUIDELINES)

Mitigation

Government initiatives are having an impact and the amount of municipal waste being disposed of
to landfill is declining Assuming Landfill Direcuve targets are met, the total amount of mumcipal
solid waste which will be landfilled in 2020 will be five to I millien tonnes The Government s
now seeking to reduce the amount of industrial and commercial waste to be landfilled However
it 1s believed there will sull be a significant tocal landfill market in 2020 and beyond

Scarcity of landfill will ensure avallable voidspace remains a valuable asset With the exception
of the most recent year, Vindor has seen i1ts underlying landfill volumes holding steady probably
reflecting a greater share of the landfill market

Viridor's 'brown energy’ prices were fixed at high levels through to the end of March 2010 Brown
energy prices will continue to be determined by the world and UK energy market and may go down
as well as up Current prices are around £30 per MWh lower than achieved in 2009/10 which will
affect the company'’s 2010/11 power generauon comparative performance in 2010/11

The Government has made a strong commitment to renewables which are key to meeting the
UX's long-term carbon reduction strategy To date the major political parues have stressed

their commitment to ‘grandfather’ nghts under current ROC schemes, which are not subject to
retrospective changes Renewables are also important in mmimising the UK’s increasing reliance on
imported energy

The value of ROCs is increased by the sharing of the buy-out price monies among holders of ROCs
The value of a ROC depends on the supply of renewable electricity relauve to the UK's annual
increasing targets ltis also dependent on the financial strength of those suppliers who opt to pay the
buy-out price The insolvency of a licensed electricity supplier could lead to a drop in the value of the
ROCs which Vinder sells

Current and future waste composinon (including Biodegradable Municipal ¥aste (BMW) diversion due
to Landfill Directive and calordic value) is assessed against costs on each landfill gas project .

Achtevement of the Government’s targets for waste management 1s critically dependent on the
planning system delivering sufficient waste treatment facilines Vindor employs best practice
throughout the pfanning process

Rusks include waste volumes and mix, planning, technology, input costs and recyclate prices

A careful assessment of the risks and apportionment of them between client, main contractor,
technology and equipment suppliers, and sub-contractors 1s a key part of the process of bidding
and finalising 2 contract. Extensive due diligence 1s conducted so that risks are correctly idenufied
Vindor then seeks to protect itself through contractual documentation witch its chent, sub-
contractors and sub-suppliers

Viridor takes a robust approach to this issue. If it cannot miugate the risks satisfactorly or cannot

get a reasonable commeraial return for taking such risks, its policy 1s to accept the loss of sucha
cantract rather than win it on unsausfactory terms
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ABOUT OUR BUSINESSES — PENNON GROUP

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

OPERATING COSTS
Group operaung costs for the year toralled £799 3 million and included
the following major categonies of expenditure

fm
Landfill tax 150
Deprecianon 135
Manpower 132
Transport Sl
Raw materials and consumables 27
Property 26
Power 24
Abstraction and discharge consents 8
Lease rentals — plant and machinery 8
Statutory operating licences and royalues 8

ASSET YALUE OPINION

In the opinion of the Directors, the current market value of land and
buildings 15 not significandly different from the holding cost shown in the
financial statements

GROUP INVESTMENT

Capital expenditure by the Group on property, plant and equipment
was £190 2 milion (2008/0% £231 8 million) The major categones of
expenditure were

CASH FLOW

In 2009/10 the Group once again had a strong operaung cash flow, with

net borrowang increasing by only £3 million The operaung cash flow

was offset by capital expenditure and investment In acquisiions and joint

ventures
Summansed cash flow 2009/10 2008/0%
£m £m
Cash inflow from operauons 380 341
Pension contributions {16) (40)
Net cash inflow from operations 364 30N
Net interest paid (70} (80)
Dividends and tax pad (68) (100)
Capital expenditure payments (192) (236)
Acquisiuons/joint ventures (40) (3)
Ner cash outflow 6) (118)
Shares issued 2 2
Equity component of convertible bond 1ssued 10 -
Debt acquired with acquisiuons (5) -
Debt indexatonfinterest accruals (53] {t3)
Increase in net borrowings {3) (129)

Strong operating cash flow in the year
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LIQUIDITY AND DEBT PROFILE

At 3| March 2010 the Group held cash and deposits of £494 million, and
also had committed undrawn faciliues of £200 millon Durning the year
new borrowings and finance lease drawdowns, less debt repayments,
amounted to £i45 miflon In Apnl 2010 a further £100 mifkon of debr
faciioes have been esmblished or renewed

At 31 March 2010 loans and finance lease obligations were £2,389 mullion,
gving net debt (after the £494 million cash) of £1,895 million, an increase
of £3 milkion dunng the year

The major components of debrt finance at 31 March 2010 were

During the year the following finance iniwatves were implemented

= £125 milion converuble bond

£215 mithon term loans and RCFs renewed

£8% mithon of new term loans

arca £200 million finance lease extended to 2052 and converted to
‘bullet’ repayment

+ £25 million finance lease for South West Water

£25 million 5-10Q year finance lease for Vindor

= new provider for £35 million of Environment Agency bonds sourced

Pennon Group debt has a macurity of 0-47 years with an average
maturity of 23 years

The Group has fixed or put in place swaps to fix the interest rate on
50% of South West Water's net debe for the enore K5 pened The
average rate achieved on the £803 million fixed rate debt s circa 3 65%

In addiuion, Scuth West Water has approximately 23% of 1ts debt
index-linked to 204)-2057, at an overall real rate of | 66%

South West Warter held cash and deposits of £265 million at
31 March 2010 as a result of the prudent pre-funding of the
capital programme

Over 50% of gross debt relates to finance leasing which provides a
long maturity profile and secured credit margins

Interest rates fixed for 50% of

The fair value of borrowings, based on the market value of equivalent
instruments at the bafance sheet date, 1s detailled in note 27 to the
financial statements and amounted to a £296 million funding benefit
compared with book value as at 31 March 2010 (2009 £221 mullion)

The Interest payable on the Group’s finance ieases benefits from
the fixed credit margins secured at the inception of the lease

The above measures and financing structure have ensured that the
Group has the appropnate financing in place to

* meet Its current requirements from existing borrowing facilittes
without breaching covenants or other borrowing restrictions
give sufficient flexibility to implement the Group'’s strategic
objecuves and thereby maximise shareholder value

CAPITAL STRUCTURE - OVERALL POSITION
With year-end net debt of £1,895 million, the Group year-end rato of
net debr to {equity plus net debt} was 74% (31 March 2009 76%}

South West VWater's debt to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) was
60 6% at 31 March 2010 (2009 63 8%), within Ofwat’s ‘opumum
range’ of 55% — 65%

Virdor 1s funded by a combination of Pennon Group equity and
debe (raised by Pennon Group) and direct borrowing by Viridor

At the year-end Virdor's net debt stood at £420 million (2009 £443
million), equivalent to 3 7 umes EBITDA (2008/09 4 2 umes)

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group's treasury function seeks to ensure that sufficient
funding 1s available to meer foreseeable needs, maintam reasonable
headroom for contungencies and manage interest rate risk lc
operates within policies approved by the Board and does not
undertake any speculative trading acevity

The Board regularly monitors the Group's expected financing
requirements for at least the next |2 months These are expected to
be met from existing cash balances, loan faciliues and operaung cash
flows for the coming year

The Group has considerable financial resources together with a broad
spread of business acuvines Consequently the Directors believe that
the Group 1s well positioned to manage its business risks successfully
despite the current uncertan economic outook

INTERNAL BORROWING

For regulatory purpases, South West Water funding 1s meated as effecuvely
ring-fenced Funds raised by, or for, South West VWater are used in the

appomnted bustness (provision of water and sewerage services) and are

not available as long-term funding for the resc of the Group

GOING CONCERN

Hawving considered the Group's funding position and financial projections
as outhined above, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operatonal existence for

the foreseeable future For this reason they conunue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the financial statements

South West Water’s debt to 2015
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TAXATION OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Pennon Group's tax strategy Is to enhance shareholder value by legally
minimising taxes whilst having regard to the longer-term relatonships
with the taxung authonues The Group will consider bona fide business
arrangements which qualify for tax exemption or tax rehef

The Group made a net payment of £4 milhon for UK corporauon
tax In the year (2009 £31 million) The significant reducton in the
net payment, compared tc the prior year, i1s due to refunds received
from HMRC arising on the reassessment of payments made in
previous years

The UK corporauon tax charge of £43 million was less than the charge
which would have ansen from the accounting profit of £184 mullion taxed
at the statutory corporatuon tax rate of 28% A reconciliation 1s provided
in note 9 to the finanaal statements

The Group's total tax contributon extends beyond the corporauon tax
charge A vanety of taxes are incurred by the Group

Total taxes amounted to £250 million, of which £43 million was collectad
on behalf of the authories for net VAT and employee payroll taxes

The most significant taxes involved and their profit impact were

* landfill tax of £146 million was accounted for by the Group on behalf
of HMRC Landfill tax 1s an operatng cost which 1s chargeable to
customers (n turnover In addiwon the Group Incurred [andfill tax of
£24 million on the disposal of waste to third parties This element is
an operaung cost for the Group and reduces profit before tax

» Value Added Tax (VAT) of £7 million (net) was collected by the
Group and pad to the taxaton authontes VAT has no matenal
impact on profic before tax

* business rates of £20 millklon were paid during the year to local
autheriues These are a direct cost to the Group and reduce profit
before tax

« employment taxes of £36 millon included employees’ ‘Pay As You
Earr’ (PAYE) and total Nauonal Insurance Contributons (NICs)
Employer NICs of £9 million were expensed around 93% to
operaung costs and around 7% capitalised to property, plant
and equipment

» Fuel Excise Duty of £11 million related to transport costs
This reduced profit before tax

PENNON'S PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

PENSIONS

The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes for certain

existing staff of Pennon, South West Water and Vindor The main
schemes were closed to new entrarts on or before 1 Apnl 2008

The Group pension schemes had net tabiines {before deferred tax} ac
31 March 2010 of £108 million (2009 £66 milion) The deficit increase
was due to increased liabdities from a reduced discount rate and higher
expected long-term inflanen parually offset by employer contnbunons of
£16m and increases in asset values from market movements

The increase in fund assets from £276 million to £402 mifhon includes
£55 million from the acquisiuon of Greater Manchester Waste Lmited

The net habiliues (after deferred tax) of £78 mihon represented less than
5% of the Group’s total market capiralisauon at 31 March 2010

INSURANCE

The Group manages property and third party nisks by the purchase of
insurance policies The man insurance policies caver property, business
interruption, public lability, ervironmental pellunon and employers' abiiy

There are three vers of insurance coverng operating nsks The first
ver is self-insurance in the form of 2 mederate deducuble The second
tier is covered by the Group’s subsidiary, Peninsula Insurance Limited,
which insures the layer of nsk between the deducuble and the cover
provided by external insurers The third uer of risk is placed with the
external insurance market. The Group’s nsurance brokers assist in
sourcing appropriate insurance cover from insurance companies which
have good credit ratings

KEY RELATIONSHIPS

The key relauonships and contractual arrangements for the Group are
with its debt providers which include a number of finanaial insttunons

The majority of the Group's debt 1s sourced from

« finance leasing

+ European Investment Bank loans
* bank bilateral facliues

* private placements

* index-hnked bonds

« converuble bonds

Contract terms include financral and legal covenants as outhned in the
covenant comphance nsk secuon on page 3

Risk Commentary and mitigation

EARNINGS GROWTH/
SHAREHCLDER VALUE

It may not be possible to conunue to
sustain the same level of earnings and

growth of the Group as in the past

There s a risk to shareholder value if the
Group is not able to continue to grow its
key businesses and produce sustainable

earnings growth
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Thus 1s dependent upon the correct strategies bemng pursued by strong and able management
within the Group as well as on external factors

The Group has mantained earnings and has successfully grown both South West Water and
Vindor and intends to conunue to creata shareholder value through its strategic focus on water
and waste water services and waste management.




Risk
TREASURY

The Company may be unable to rasse
sufficient funds to finance its actvities

Liquidity nsk

Refinancing risk

Covenant compliance risk

Counterparty nisk

Interest rate risk

TAXATION

PENSIONS

The future costs of defined benefit
schemes are subject to a number of nsks

The returns achieved on pension fund
Investrmencs

Movernents in interest rates and inflaton

Pensioner longevity

Commentary and mitigation

Pennon Group has robust treasury policies in place, as listed below

Ensuring chat the Group has cash and committed loan facliies equivalent to at feast one year's
forecast requirements at all tmes Borrowing repayment commitrnents are expected to be met
as required during the coming pericd

Ensunring that no more than 20% of Group net debt 1s permmtted to mature In any one financial year

At 3] March 2010 the Group had cash and deposics of £494 million, and undrawn committed
bank faciines of £200 million, giving access to total cash resources of £694 million

Loan repayments falling due by 31 March 2011 amount to £216 million

Pennon Group and South West Water have entered into covenants with lenders Whilst terms
vary, these typically provide for imits on gearing (primarily based on South West Water's
Regulatory Capital Value and Vindor's EBITDA) and interest cover

Redempuon penalues included in the facility documentation can be invoked if debt faciliues are
redeemed early The redemption penalues vary in each faaliy

The financial covenants included in the Group's debt faciioes are monitored on a regular basis
The financial covenants offered by the Group include a provision to re-test the covenants applying
frozen UK GAAP accounung standards This is to protect the Group from changes in accounang
standards which may have a detnmental impact on che finanaal covenant tesung methodoslogy

Surplus funds of the Group are usually placed in short-term fixed interest deposits or the
overnight money markets Counterparty risk arises from the investment of surplus funds and
from the use of dervatve instruments

The Board has agreed a policy for managing such risk, which 1s controlled through credit
limuts, counterparty approvals, and rigorous monitoring procedures All deposits are
with counterparues which have a credit raung approved by the Board (Aa2 Moody's/ AA
Standard & Poor's)

The Group's exposure to nterest rate movements 1s managed by the use of interest rate
dervatives The Board’s policy is that in any one year at least 50% of net debt 1s fixed Interest
rate swaps are used to manage the mx of fixed and floaung rates The Group has fixed
approximately 50% of South VVest Yater's exasung net debt up to 31 March 2015

At 3| March 2010 the Group had interest rate swaps to convert floaung rate habiliues co fixed
rate, and hedge financial habilities, wich a notional value of £775 million and a weighted average
maturity of 30 years (2009 £760 million, wath 2 4 years) The weighted average interest rate of
the swaps for their nominal amount was 4 0% {2009 4 5%) The notional principal amounts of the
Interest rate swaps are used to determine settlement under those swaps and are not therefore
an exposure for the Group These instruments are analysed in more detail in note 23 to the
financial statements

In addiuon South West Water has index-linked approximately 23% of its current net debt up
to 204|-2057 South West Water’s total index-inked debt of £353 mdlion has an average real
interest rate of | 66% The interest rate for index-linked debt 1s based upon an RPl measure
which 1s also used in determining the taniff increase for South VVest VWater customers

A material tax sk for the Group 1s the possibility that the capital expenditure qualifying for
capital aflowances is mis-allocated or categonsed incorrectly, resulung in under-claims or aver-
clams of tax reliefs Professional tax consultants are employed with expenence of analysing the
types of specialist assets involved

New employees are generally offered defined contributon arrangements

Pension trustees keep investment policy under review and use professional investment advisers

The pension trustees review the nvestment strategy to mprove the match of investments
and labilbies Employee and employer contnbunions are also kept under review and have been
ncreased. Further employer contnbutens of £16 million were made in the year

Independent actuaries have identfied scheme-specific mortality experience which is
reflected in liabihities
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PENNON GROUP'S CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

OUR OBJECTIVES

We have the following corporate responsibility
objectives, to which the targets of South West
¥Vater and Yindor are aligned to

* manage Pannon Group as 2 sustainable and
successful business for the benefit
of shareholders

* am to ensure that all our business activities
have a positive economic, social and
environmental impact on the communites
n which we operate

* engage with all our stakeholders and to

foster good relauonships with them

strive for the highest standards of heakh

and safety in the workplace so as to

minimise accidents, incidents and lost time

= develop and motivate our employees, to

treat them fairly and ensure that they

are fully engaged in all aspects of the

Group's objecdves

aspire to leadership in minimusing

emissions that contribute to ciimate

change, and to develop chimate change

adaptauon strategies

aspire to leadership in all aspects of

resource efficiency

* comply with all legislative environmental
standards and to exceed them where
appropriate

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY
Sustainability in all is three aspects

— environmental, social and economic —1s
fundamental to the Group's business models
and 15 reflected in our corporate responsibilicy
objecuves listed above We believe that green
business 15 good business

1 Environmental Sustainability

The key linked environmental 1ssues facing the
world are cimate change, excessive resource
use, environmental degradation and loss of
biodiversity The Pennon Group has a role to
play in all these areas and is concerned that
the high profile nghtly given to chimate change
may |lead to the other equalfy pressing and
refated challenges being overlooked

a. Environmental Improvermnent
South West Water's £2 billion Clean
Sweep programme has transformed the
coastal and estuanal environment of the
South West, which has over 30% of the
bathing waters of England and Wales With
other improvements carried out by South
West Water under the Urban Vaste
Water Treatment Regulatons to protect
nver quality, the company’s operaung area
now has the best river quality in England
The invesument made since (989 has
also largely met the Water Framework
Direcuve’s first cycle of requiremencs
for 2010-2016

Similarly Vindor has invested heavily to
control and miugate the two most serious
potenual adverse environmental effects of

its operauons, landfill generated leachare
and gas Since 2002 Viridor has invested
£13 muflson in leachate control systems
and £80 mulhon in kandfill gas control and
power generagon

Climate Change/Greenhouse Gases
Both our two main subsidianes generate
signfficant amounts of €Oz and are
strving to reduce this Viridor’s strategy

is based upon helping the UK to meet its
landfill diversion, recycling and renewable
energy targets which are in turn driven,

in significane part, by climate change
consideravons Methane emissions from
landfill are the mest important greenhouse
gas pollutant source for Vindor and for
the waste industry as a whole, methane
being 2| ames as harmful as COy Huge
achievements have been made in the waste
industry n reducing methane emissions
from landfill and putting it to beneficial use
in the generaoon of renewable electnacy
Thus 1s the key factor behind the waste
industry’s 57% reduction in CO; emissions
since 990, the best of any sector in

the UK At the same ume the waste
industry has increased renewable energy
generaton from landfill gas by 600% which
now provides nearly 25% of the total
renewable energy in the UK Vindor has
increased its landfill gas renewable energy
generation capacity from 27 MW in 2002
to |00 MW in 2009/10 and it captures
90% of the methane from its landfills for
power generauon This prowvides major
environmental benefits and produces a
return for shareholders

South West Water recognises that the
water industry i1s a major user of energy,
requiring 2% of the UK's total consumpuon
Following a successful submission in

South West Water's price setdng to
Ofwat, moorland restoranen through the
company's ‘Mires’ programme 1s being
undertaken One of the most valuable
outputs is the ability of wetted peat to
capture significant quantdes of COy South
West Water secured in Ofwat's Final
Deterrminaton £5 milion of funding to
increase its renewable energy output from
15 GWhin 2010 o 30 GVWh by 2015 This
investment will help South West Water

to meet 1ts CO; ermissions reducuon
target by |8% over the five-year penod
The company's longer term targets are to
produce 50 GWh from renewable energy
by 2030 and to reduce energy consumpuon
by 10% by 2015 and by 30% by 2030

Resource Productivity

It is generally believed that the world has
used as much resource since 1950 as i

all previous history There are developing
shortages in a number of key areas
including hydrocarbons, water, topsoil and
in a number of key metals
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Mimimising resource use has become a
major prionity for seciety Vindor has
invested heavily in maximising recycling

and composung, at a value approaching
£200 million n the past three years We
are convinced that such investment makes
long-term economic and environmental
sense Our total recycling traded volumes
and composang have grown from about
100,000 tonnes in 2001 to | 4 miliion
tonnes in 2010 The supply of good quality
recyclate 1s a profitable business ylelding
twice as much profit per tonne for Virdor
as does landfill This 1s an example of where
the interests of shareholders and the needs
of the environment are aligned

The best use for low quality residual

waste, after recycling has been optimised,
Is to generate renewable energy either

by anaerobic digestion of organic wastes

or through controlled energy from waste
combusuon These are the main current
alternauves to landfill with methane
capture and wtlisaton Including 1ts Bolton
EfW plant and 1ts 50% share in the recendy
opened Lakeside EfWY plant, as well as
landfill gas uuhsanen, Vindor now has a
wtal renewable energy capacity of close

to 130 MW and plans to increase this to
300 MW in the next five years Pennon

Is pleased that the Government now
recogmises the significant contribution that
energy from waste in all ics forms can make
to UK renewables and energy production
Energy from waste currently accounts

for 1 5% of the UK's total electriaty
producoon As the energy generated 15 a
by-product of required waste treatment it
1s cheaper than other forms of renewable
energy ltalso provides base load energy
distributed round the electricity grid, which
is a significant advantage over wind power
Qur asumare 15 that energy from waste
could provide 6% of the UK’s electrcicy

by 2015 and we have called upon the
Government to set this as a specific target.

South WWest Water is ensuring, as part of
its environmental and quality management
systems, that all wastes are mimmised and
segregated for recycling so that wastes
taken off site for disposal are kept to

the absolute minimum We work with
contractors and our partners to minimise
the quanuues of waste produced Sice
waste management plans are in piace for all
capital schemes

2 Social Sustainability

Both our businesses strive to be goed
neighbours and to show exemplary concern
for our employees Iz is acknowledged that
required waste water or waste management
installayons may be opposed in certain
locations Qur policy 1s to consult and engage
fully with communities and stakeholders on
planning applications




Where new infrastructure is builc we work
closely with the communities in which we
operate to be as good neighbours as possible

Virndor continues to benefic from the high levels
of skill and expertise amongst its workforce
and acknowiledges their valuable contrbuton
The company employs around 3,000 people at
all levels and across all socio-economic groups
During this recessionary period we have striven
to mantain morale and mouvation despite
having to implement a modest programme

of downsizing and restructuning. Ye have
mantaned our trainng programmes and are
confident that as the recession lifts we will sull
have first class, well qualified teams of capable
people ready to meet future challenges

South West Water's focus 1s on achieving an
appropriate balance for customers, mvestors
and other stakeholders Costs are being
ngorously controlled to outperform the
Regulatory Contract. Capital i1s being invested
IN a55ets O SecUre operatng cost savings

and to protect the mprovements made over
the lase 20 years through increased capital
mamntenance expenditure The combined effects
of these approaches are to ensure long-term
improvements In quality of serace for our
customers, supported by enhanced employee
rraining and development programmes for our
managers and staff

3 Ecoenomic Sustainability

This involves having business strategies and
pelicies which are geared towards long-term
shareholder value creanon The Company's
strategy 1s to aim for long-term shareholder
value creation while being fully aware of our
ervironmental impacts Both businesses are
planning and invesung on a 25-year basis Our
financial policies are designed to avoid short-
term gains which might damage long-term
shareholder value creation Debt funding 1s an
important component of South West Water's
capital structure and its debt/RCY rano

and other financial racios remam well within
Ofwat’s guidelines

Qur Corporate Responsibility objectives

Iink with our sustainability aims Progress is
monitored by measuring performance aganst
a number of associated KPIs listed below

Both South VYest VWater and Yindor publish
detalled venfied corporate responsibilicy
reports which support and amplify the Group’s
overall objecuves The 2010 Corporate
Responsibilicy Reports, which will be avallable
at the end of August, wall include an audited
assessment of the businesses’ performance
against published targets for 2009/10 and will
set out their new targecs for 2010/11

OUR KPIs

The targec for 2009/10 of ‘maintain
corporate standing of Pennon Group Plc on
sustainability credenuals’ was measured by

« the Carbon Disclosure Project awarded
Pennon Group of 35th place out of the
FTSE350 i the 2009 Carbon Disclosure
Leadership Index for the Group's ability
to log i1ts carben footpnint and assess how
¢hmate change will affect its business

« membership of the FTSE Ervironmental
Opporwniues All-Share Index

= conunued participation in the FTSE4Good
Index which measures corporate responsibilicy

For 2010/1 the Board has agreed the
following six KPls for the Pennon Group
Performance will be measured and reported
against them

+ capital investment

* community support and donations
* RIDDOR staustics

* renewable energy generauocn

¢ CO;z emissions data

* recychng volumes achieved

OUR SOCIAL AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our objecuves demonstrate that we are
committed to exemplary engagement
with society and to the conservauon and
enhancement of the natural environment.

QOur social and environmental policy ensures
that these activities are pursued Particular
atrention Is given to

= operating through best pracuce to ensure
the sustainabilicy of our acavities by
maximising the efficiency of resource
uses, effecuve project and programme
delivery, and minimising waste

+ ensuring compliance with all health and
safety and environmental legislauon,
regulations and codes of pracuce so
that our conduct I1s of the highest
possible standard

* undertaking our activities in a way that
minimises potential adverse effects on
soclety, the environment and those
Iiving or working in proximity to the
Group's sites

= procuring goods and services through
approved suppliers and contractors
whose products and services meet the
Group's requirements and whose quality
and environmental practices correspond
with cur own

* undertaking loenger term strategic
assessments of our acuvives and
opportunities and adepung whole life
assessment methods for approaches
which are designed to benefit society,
customers of the Group, suppliers and
partners, all other stakeholders, and
the environment

+ the challenges of chimate change involve
action to optimuse energy and resource
efficiency, maximising cpportunities
for renewable energy generaton,
and reducing the emissions of
greenhouse gases

* reportng openly and transparently on
Group performance, setung targets for
conunuous improvement and monitoring
progress, and addressing risk and adopting
policies related to wider sustainability
considerauons in relauon to our key
actuvites of water supply, waste water
treatment, waste management, recycling
and renewable energy generation

« regularly assessing the Group's built
heritage and ensuning its long-term
preservauon

* making non-operatonal land accessible to
the public where pracucable to satsfy, as
a mimmum, the Group’s cbligauons under
the Countryside and Rights of Way Act
Wherever possible addiuonal opportunities
for conservation, access and recreation are
provided for, subject to health and safety
and environmental considerauons

QURETHICAL BUSINESS POLICY
Alongside our socral and envirenmental policy
1s our ethical policy The preservation of a
reputauen for integrity and fair dealing 1s of
parameount importance to the Group Such a
reputaton is essential to the Jong-term well-
being of the Group itself, its shareholders,
employees, customers, suppliers and

the communities in which it operates

To mancain this reputation, our Group
companies are required to

* conduct all transacuons with faimess and
honesty and In a professional manner

*  build and mantain relavonships with all
parties based on trust and the treatment of
everyone with respect and digmity

+ not make any promises and commitments
which our businesses do not have the
intention to fulfil or which they do not
beleve they have the resources to meet

= carry out all financial transactions and |
finanaial reporung with due observance i
of all relevant laws, regulabions and |
financial scandards '

+ avoid any acuvioes that could involve or lead
to Involvement in any unlawful pracoce or
harm the Group's reputation or image.

VVe have a ‘whistleblowing’ policy which
supports our approach to ethical employment
practices by encouraging employees to raise,
i accordance with a formalised procedure,
concerns which relate to potenual unlawful
conduct, financial malpractice, dangers to

the public or damage to the environment
This policy 1s reviewed regularly

Through our Corporate Responsibiicy

Committee, we monitor performance against

our ethical business policy, our social and

environmental policy and our health and .
safety policy and related targets Further

details of the work of the Commuttee are set

out on page 51

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY
HIGHLIGHTS

Both South West Water and Vindor have
contnued to advance their environmenal
performance, and thewr engagement with the
community, as detaled i their respective
Corporate Responsibility Reports which will
be available online in August on the Company’s
website pennon-group.co uk

ENVIRONMENT AND CLIMATE
CHANGE

The Group’s strategy to combat climate

change 15 to maximise its opportunites for
renewable energy generaticn, to promote
energy efficiency and to reduce its emissions of
greenhouse gases wherever possible In planning
for the future it strives to ensure that it can
adapt to the impacts of a changing cimate whie
maintaning high standards of customer service
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Green energy generation

Renewable energy 1s generated by both
subsidiartes Vindor's renewable power
generauon capacity from landfill gas ac 31
March 2010 was 100 MW In addiuon during
the year the Lakeside joint venture EfWW
plant commenced operation with a total
power generation capacity of 37 MY (50%
Vinder) and Vindor also took over the 9
MW Bolwon EfW plant bringing Viridor's
total renewable energy capacity to 1275
MW lts Greater Manchester combined
waste and renewable energy project has the
potenual to provide a further 130 MW of
power generation capacity (making a total of
around 140 MW including the Bolton Efw)
Virdor captures nearly 90% of the methane
anising from its landfills and uses 70% of this
for energy generaton

South West Water generates renewable
energy from hydropower facilhiues in dams
and other structures Combined heat and
pawer is avallable at nine waste water
treatment works South West Water has a
total installed capacity of 74 MW

Net electricity export

Since 1999/2000, the Group has exported
more electrical energy each year than it
has consumed Recent renewable energy
projects commissioned by the Group's
operaung companies have surpassed

the milestone of 200% generauon to
consumption for the first ume In 2009/10
Viridor and South West Water generated
652 0 GWh of renewable energy through
thelr operations This s 223% (2009
188%) of the Group's on-site electricity
consumption of 291 7 GWh

Greenhouse gas emissions

Pennon has registered for the Carbon
Reducuon Commitment Energy Effictency
Scheme which puts the Government’s
carbon reductuon scheme in place for 5,000
UK compantes in the mid-range of CQO»
producers Pennon will be purchasing its
first allowances in April 2011 The price of
carbon will be fixed at £12 per tonne for
the first three years of the scheme, acuve
trading 15 expected to follow

Pennon Group made its third submission
to the Carbon Disclosure Project in 2009
and was placed 55th in the report The
reporung criteria differ from one year to
che next making annual score comparisons
unreliable However, year by year scores
within a sector are made and the Pennon
Group’s perfomance in relanon to its
peers in 2009 was good - it achieved third
place amongst the six water companies
who responded

Greenhouse gas emissions reporung
requirements have changed since last

year The Group 1s reporung against the
Greenhouse Gas Protocel, with different
methodologies used for South West Water
and Viridor to match each company’s
operating characteristics

Group transport

South YWest ¥ater and Vindor review their
transport fleets regularly to meet ctheir
operational requirements Environmental
criterra such as clean engine technology,
fuel efficiency, reliabiity and end-of-hfe
recyclability are considered during the
selection process

ELECTRICITY CONSUMPTION AND GENERATION

One-site electnaty consumed
South YWest Water (1) (3)
Vinder

Total consumed

Electricity generation
No of sites

South West Warer

- Hydro 7

— Biogas from combined heat and power 9
Yindor

— Landfill - biogas (2} 27

— Energy from waste combusuon 2

Total generated

Generated/consumed ratio

(1) Includes actmty of Pennon Group Pic and partners working from Pennon s locaoons

(1) Excludes sub-contracted sites in Suffolk

Capaaity MW

537
|7

000
75

GWh

2652
%5

2917

GWwWh

13
35

8550
822
652.0
223%

(3} South West Water on site electricity consumad includes electricity ganerated and used from on-site renewable plants and stand-by diesel genararors and excludes non-elactrical sources

of energy such as tha consumption of natural gas and LPG used for heating
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Pennon Environmental Awards

In 2009 the winning prize was awarded to the operaung team at Totuford Warter Treatment Works for enhancing waldlife and amenity on site
The project subequently won a Green Apple Award and was chosen as a finalist in the Water Industry Achievement Awards’ Communicy Campaign
of the Year category, as a number of the sice features had been prowided by a local business which employs adules with learning difficuluies

PEF Award Photo the Totuford team receves the award from Ken Harvey, Pennon Group Chairman

PEF Award Photo former process tank converted for wildhife and amenity use

EMPLOYEES

Health and Safety Policy

Pennon Group Board and the Boards of each subsidiary company have
established health and safety policies which are reviewed annually co
ensure the health, safery and welfare at work of all their employees
These focus in paracular on the

* provision and maintenance of a working environment for our
employees that is safe, prevents injury and il health and 1s adequate
as regards factltues and arrangerments for welfare

« protection of members of the public who may be affected by
our work

* promotion of an impraved health and safety culture by consulung
with and training the workforce and by making all employees and
contractors aware of their individual responsibiliuies

+ serung of health and safety objectives and targets within a
continuous improvement framework that will be used to monitor
and measure performance

« conunual improvement of our health, safety and security
performance through the revicalisanon of our health and safety
management systems

Penncn Group and each of its operaung subsidiary compantes

has prepared a statement on their organisation and responsibidines

in respect of health and safety which, together with this policy

statement, i1s brought to the attention of all employees and 1s

displayed on notice boards and each company's intranet

complies with all legislation, regulaucns and codes of pracuce relevant

to their business and consults employees on measures for promoting

health and safety at work

requires its contractors and consultants working for each company |
within the Group to comply with each company's health and safery |
policy Each company communicates openly its policy, related |
objecuves and performance to stakeholders

International Labour Organisation core conventions

We support the principles of the International Labour Organisation’s
eight core conventons for the protectuon and safety of workforces
Details of our employment practices are set out on pages 18, 20 and 24
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COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

Pennon Group and its subsidiary companies aim to be good neighbours in all the communities in
which they operate An important element of this 1s ta provide support to projects which bring
lasung benefic to local communities and which are aligned with the Group’s business

South West Water’s support focuses on water, the environment and youth education in the
South West. A small proportion of its support also goes to Water Aid, which assists water
projects in developing countries

Vindor’s business 1s UK wide Its community support focuses on environmental and science
educauon, and on engagement with the communities In which it operates

Pennon Charitable Donations

The Pennon Charitable Donatons Committee made |99 donauons including pledges to
individuals, local chanues, volunteer groups and small community organisatiens in the South
West Water and Vindor service areas £63,784 was awarded in 2009/10 {2008/09 £65,624)

Pennon Environmental Fund

The Pennon Ervironmental Fund allocates awards derved from the Landfill Community Fund to
qualifying projects developed by local community bodies based in South VWest VWater's operatng
area In 2009/10 it awarded £68.443 to 15 projects, including to church repairs, communicy
amentues, and a number of habmat ¢reation schemes in Devon and Cornwall to benefic biodiversity
(2008/09 £47,404 to || projects)

Viridor Credits Environmental Company .

Durning the year Vindor donated £94 milhon (£97 million in the previous year) via the Landfill
Communiues Fund to Vindor Credits Envirenmental Company, an independent chanity
established to distribute LCF funding in areas close to landfill sites Decisions on funding use
criteria of sustainabrlity, value for money and proven need are made at grass roots level by
established local steering groups for each area Projects supported during the year included
creaung, improving and restortng important habitats, new and improved village and amenicy
halls, sports and playgrounds, vital support for local museums and similar community assets
For further details see Vindor Credits’ website viridor-credits.co uk

‘Back from the Brink’, Simbridge Wetlands Centre, Gloucester Viridor Credits granted
£106,500 for new wetiand homes for once abundant mammals

‘Cricket for Change', Wallington, Sucton Vinder Credits granted £60,000 towards a new
indoor school for young cricketers from mixed backgrounds
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
Pennon Group maintains a regular dialogue
with insttutional investors, City analyses,
retall shareholders, local stockbrokers and
the financial press through its proacuve
mvestor refavons programme Other key
stakeholders are our customers and our
regulators, including the Environment
Agency, local authonues, the Drinking YVater
Inspectorate, Natural England, the Consumer
Consumer Councll for Water and English
Herrtage Vindor has on-going stakeholder
and community relatons programmes

with local liaison groups in place for all

major operatcnal sices South West Warer
proactively worked with customers to idenufy
their prioriues for investment from 2010 to
2015 as pare of the recent Periodic Review
process, and surveys 130 customers' opinions
every month to assess their percepuons of
overall service, value for money, quality and
reliability of dnnking water suppled

South West Water’s Chief Executive chairs
Water UK, the representative organisauon
which brings cogether all of the UK's water
and waste water utihities He also represents
the regulated industrnes on the Environment
Agency's Regional Environmental Protecuon
Advisory Committee

Vindor's Chief Executive chairs the
Government's Living with Environmental
Change Business Advisery Board and 1ts
Environmental Sector Adwvisory Group, which
provides strategic advice to the Government
an the promouon of exports and inward
investment in the UK environmental sector
He is also chairman of the UK’s Envircnmental
Sustainabilicy Knowledge Transfer Necwork,
which improves the compettiveness of UK
environmental industries, a Director of
Sustasnability South Waest, past Master of the
Worshipful Company of Water Conservators,
a sentor visiting research fellow in Earth
Sciences at Oxfard University and a patron of
Energy and Uulity Skills

Pennon’s Group Director of Finance 15 a
member of the CBI Environmental Affairs
Commictee and the CBI South West
Regional Council

CORPORATERESPONSIBILITY
VERIFICATION

Pennon Group’s corporate responsibility
performance for 2009/10 will be audited

by Acona Limited, an independent sk and
compliance management company The
venficauon statements for South West
Water and Vindor will be provided on their
respectve websites with their Corporate
Responsibility Reports




INTERPRETATION

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This Business Review contains forward-
looking statements regarding the financial
position, resules of operations, cash
flows, dividends, financing plans, business
strategies, operating efficiencies, capital
and other expenditures, competitive
positions, growth opportunities, plans
and objecuves of management, and

other matters These forward-looking
statements, including, without imitation,
those refaung te the future business
prospects, revenues, working capital,
hquidity, capital needs, interest costs and
income In relavon to the Pennon Group
and its subsidiarles, wherever they occur
in this Business Review, are necessarily
based on assumpuons reflecung the
views of Pennon Group and its subsidiary
companies, as appropriate They involve

a number of risks and uncertainues

that could cause actual results to differ
materially from those suggested by the
forward-looking statements Such forward-
looking statements should, therefore, be
considered In the light of relevant factors,
tncluding those set out tn the sections
entitled ‘Principal Risks and Uncertainues’
within this Business Review

GLOSSARY
The following are descripucns of some of the terms used in this Business Review

AD " . Anaerobic digesnon

BMS Vindor’s integraced business management system

CAGR .. - . Compound Annual Growth Rate, being the rate of
growth over a pertod, expressed as a single annual
average figure

Category | incident - A major water polluton incident as assessed by the
Environment Agency

Category 2 and 3 inaidents - Significant and less significant water pollution incidents
as assessed by the Environment Agency

Combined Heat and Power

The price imits and expenditure plans determined by

Ofwat for South West Water for a five-year period

CHP .
Determination .. . .

Dwil . [, - Dninking Water Inspectorate

EA . . Emvronment Agency

Efw  _ - Energy from waste

Financial year . . - - .. Financial year of the Group ending 3|1 March

GWh . - . Gigaware hours

HWRS e e - Household waste recycling sites

IFRS e e e - - Intermauonal Anancial Reporung Standards

IDcK e e e o Intenim Determination of K

1SO 9001 .- - —— Internatuonal quality management
accreditaton standard

1SO 14001 - - International environmental management
accreditauon standard

June Return - The annual rewm to Ofwat made by South West Water
on its performance duning the previous financial year

KPls ... . . Key Performance Indicators

LATS . . - . Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme

M s . e Megalitres

MW “on e Megawatts

MZC .. - - - Mean Zonal Compliance or *Overall Water Quality’ as
assessed by the Drinking VWater Inspectorate

INFFO e -~ Non Fossil Fue! Obligauon

Ofwat or water regulator Water Services Regufauon Authonity

OHSAS 1800 ... . . _ - International occupanonal health and safety

management system

WWaste water treatment works loadings from domesuc,
industrial and diffuse sources, averaged and statedas a
populanon equivalent load, expressed as a percentage
The process of determining the water industry’s

price imits and expenditure plans for five-year

regulatory penods

Percentage population equivalent

Penodic Review __ - -

PFI e e e e e Private Finance lnoaove

PPC e e a s Pollunon Prevenuon and Controf

PPP ... . . - — .. Public Private Farmership

RCY i e em e s Regulatory Capital Value

RO _ .. __ - — - .Renewables Obligauon

RIDDOR ...« v wowe o weww o Reporung of Inuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulauons (1995)

ROC ___ _ .. — e—u --e ..Renewables Obligauon Ceruficate

RPI . s o o e — _The UK Government's Retait Prices Index

SEPA ___ _ __ ... we v e SCOtush Environment Protecton Agency

UKGAAP ... .. . — e we . Umted Kingdom Generally Accepred
Accounung Principles

Vindor ... wmm o = am = - Vindor Limited (a subsidiary of Pennon Group Plic) or
a Yindor operatng subsidiary, depending on the nature
of the actmvrty descnbed

WEEE . . e - — Waste electncal and electronic equipment
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OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal acuvities of the Company

and 1ts subsidianes (‘the Group') are the
provision of water and sewerage services,
waste management, recycling and renewable
energy Information regarding the Group,
including events and s progress during the
year, events since the year-end and likely future
developments 1s contaned in the Business
Review set out on pages 2 to 37 of this
Drrectors' report.

In addiwon the Business Review contains a far
and balanced review of the business of the
Group, including ts postuon and prospects, Key
Performance Indicators and a description of
the principal nsks and uncertanties facing the
Group in accordance with the requirements

of the Combined Code and Secuon 417 of the
Companies Act 2006 In addibon in accordance
with the AB| Corporate Social Responsibility
Guidelines, statements are included on any
significant environmental, socral and governance
(ESG) nisks and the actions taken in mrugatng
these nsks within the Bustness Review on

pages 21, 26, 27, 30 and 31 Further mformanon
on ESG aspects of the Group's business are
ncluded in the Corporate Responsibility Report
on pages 32 to 36 The principal subsidiaries

of the Company are listed in Note 39 to the
financal statements on page 106

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
STATEMENTS

The followang disdosures are made pursuant to
Part 6 of Schedule 7 of the Large and Medium-
szed Companies and Groups (Accounts &
Reports) Regulauons 2008 and Rule 72 3R

of the UK Lisung Authorty's Disclosure

and Transparency Rules (DTR) The further
nformation required by DTR 72 1s set out in
the Company’s Corporate Governance and
Internal Control Report set out on pages 49
to 52 of this Annual Report wiuch 1s hereby
ncluded wrthin this Directors’ Report by
reference

As ac 31 March 2010

a) detalls of the Company’s issued share
caprtal, which consists of ordinary shares of
norminal value 40 7 pence each, are set out
in Note 32 to the financial statements on
pages 97 to 9% All of the Company's issued
shares are fully paid up, rank equally in all
respects and are ksted on the Official List
and waded on the London Stock Exchange
The mghts and obligaoons areaching to the
Company’s shares, in addion to those
conferred on their holders by law, are set
out in the Company’s Arucles of Associauon
{"Arudes"), copies of which can be obtained
from Companres House in the UK or by
wrtting to the Company Secretary at the
Company’s registered office

The holders of the Company's shares are
enatled to recerve the Company’s reports
and accounts and in relation to general
meeungs of the Comparry they have the
nght to attend and speak, exerase voung
rights and appoint proxes,

b) there are no restnctions on the wransfer
of 1ssued shares of the Company or on the
exercise of voting nghts attached to them,
except where the Company has exercised
its nght to suspend their voung nghts or to
prohibit their transfer followang the onussion
of their holder or any person interested
in them to provide the Company with
information requested by it in accordance
with Part 22 of the Companies Act 2006
or where their holder is precluded from
exerasing voung nghts by the Finanaal
Services Authonity's Lisung Rules or the City
Code on Takeovers and Mergers,

¢} details of significant direct or indirece holdings
of securdes of the Company are set out In
the shareholder analysis on page 110,

d) the Company's rules about the appointment
and replacement of Directors are contained
in the Arucles and accord wath usual English
company law provisions The powers of
Drrectors are determined by UK legislaton
and the Ardcles in force from ame to ome.
Changes to the Arucles must be approved
by the Company’s shareholders by passing a
speaal resolunon,

) the Directors have the power to make
purchases of the Company's awn shares in
issue as set out In the secoon on page 19
‘Purchase of Own Ordinary Shares’ No
such purchases have been made during the
year The Directors also have the authorrty
o allot shares up to an aggregate nominal
value of £30,448,075 which was approved
by shareholders at the 2009 Annual General
Meeung (AGM) In addition, shareholders
approved a resoluton giving the Directors
a imited authonty to allot shares for cash
cther than pro rata to exisung shareholders
These resclutens remain valid unul the
conclusion of this year's AGM Similar
resolutons will be proposed at this year's
AGM The Directors have no present
intenuon to issue ordinary shares other dhan
persuant to the Company’s Scrip Dmdend
Ahlernative, and

f) there are a number of agreements which
take effece, alter or terminate upon
a change of control of the Company
following a takecver bid, such as bank loan
agreements, Eurobond documentauon,
private placement debt and employees
share plans None of these 1s considered
to be significant In terms of their
potential impact on the business of
the Group as a whole
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FINANCIAL RESULTS AND DIVIDEND
Statutory Group profit on ordinary acuvites
after taxation was £139 5 milhen The
Directors recommend a final dwvidend of

15 60p per ordinary share to be paid to
shareholders on the register on 13 August
2010, making a toeal dwvidend for the year of
22 55p, the cost of which will be £79 6 millien,
leaving a credit to reserves of £599 million
The Business Review on pages 4 and 5 and

28 to 30 analyses the Group's financial results
in more detail and sets out other financial
nformanon, including the Dtrectors’ opimion
on asset values on page 28

DIRECTORS

Gerard Connell and Chris Loughlin are due to
retre at the AGM on 29 July 2010 and offer
themselves up for re-elecoen In addiuon, in
accordance with best pracuce as set out In
the Combined Code, Ken Harvey continues
to offer himself up for re-elecucn annually as
he has been a Director for over nine years
The Board continues to believe that Gerard
Connell, as a Non-execuuve Director standing
for re-elecuon is independent, and that he
makes an effectve and valuable contnbution
to the Board, demonstrating continued
commitment to the role Ken Harvey and
Gerard Connell do not have service contracts
Ken Harvey does have a contrace for services
which is terminable upon 12 months’ nouce
Chns Loughlin has a service contract which

1s due to exptre In three years' ume, being
upon hus normal retrement date Resolutions
for the above Directors’ re-election will

be proposed at the AGM The Directors’
biographies are set out on page 40

No Director has, or has had, a matenal
interest, directly or indirectdy, at any ume
during the year under review in any contract
significant to the Company’s business A ltst
of all the Directors during the year 1s set out
in the emoluments table on page 44 Further
details relaung to the Directors and their
service agreements or contracts for services
are set out on pages 43 and 44 and details

of the Directors’ interests in shares of the
Company are given on pages 45 to 48

DIRECTORS' INSURANCE AND
INDEMNITIES

The Directors have the benefit of the
indemnity provisions contained in the
Company's Arucles and the Company has
maintained throughout the year Directors and
Officers liabiliy insurance for the benefit of
the Company, the Dhirectors and its Officers
The Company has entered into qualifying
third party indemnity arrangements for the
benefic of all its Directors in a form and scope
which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and which was in force
throughout the year and remains in force




STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE

OF INFORMATION TO AUDITCRS

a) So far as each of the Oirectors in office
at the date of the signung of the reportis
aware, there 15 no relevant audit informauon
of which the Company’s audicors are
unaware, and

b) each of the Directors has taken all the
steps each Director ought to have taken
individually as a director in order to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit
informawon and to establish that the
Company’s auditors are aware of that
informauon

RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTS

Each of che Directors, whose names and
funcuions are listed on page 40, confirms
thar, to the best of each person’s knowledge
and belief:

a) the financial statements, prepared in
accordance with Internagonal Financal
Reporung Standards (IFRS) as adopted by
the EU, give a true and fair view of the assets,
liabihies, financial posiuon and profit of the
Group and of the Company; and

b) this Directors’ Report includes z fur review
of the development and performance of the
business and posioon of the Company and
the Group, together with a descripuon of the
prinapal risks and uncertainues they face

The Directors are responsible for the
mantenance and integnty of the Company’s
website pennon-group co.uk Legislanon in
the Unreed Kingdom governing the preparation
and disseminaten of financral statements may
differ from legistauon in other junisdicuons.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Details of the financial nsk management
objectives and policies of the Group and

the exposure of the Group to price, credit,
liquidity and cash flow risks are set outin the
Bustness Review on page 3|

EMPLOYMENT POLICIES AND
EMPLOYEE INVOLYEMENT

The Group has a culture of continuous
improvement through investment in people
at alt levels within the Group The Group 1s
committed to pursuing equality and diversicy
in all its employment activities including
recruitment, training, career development
and promotion and ensuring there 15 no bias
or discnimunaucn in the treatment of people
In parucular, apphcations for employment

are welcomed from persons with disabilities
and special arrangements and adjustments

as necessary are made to ensure that
applicants are treated farly when attending
for interview or for pre-employment apttude
tests VWherever possible, the opportunity 1s
taken to retrain people who become disabled
dunng their employment in crder to maintain
their employment within the Group

Employees are consulted regularly about
changes which may affect them eicher
through their uade uruon appointed
representatives or by means of the elected
Staff Council which operates 1 South West
Water for staff employees

These forums, wogether with regular meeungs
with parucular groups of employees, are used
to ensure that employees are kept up to date
wth the operaung and finanaial performance
of their employer

The Group also uses a menthly informaton
cascade process to provide employees
with important and up to date informaton
abour key events and to receive feedback
from employees

Further informauen about employment
matters relatng to the Group are set out on
pages 18-20, 24 and 35 of the Business Review

The Group encourages share ownership
amongst its employees by operaung an HM
Revenue & Customs (HMRC) approved
Sharesave Scheme and Share Incenuve Plan
At 31 March 2010 around 36% of the Group’s
employees parucipated in these plans

RESEARCH AND DEYELOPMENT
Research and development activiies wichin the
Group involving water and waste treatment
processes amounted to £0 2 million dunng the
year {2008/09 £0 2 million)

PENNON GROUP DONATIONS

Duning the year donauons amountng to
£63,609 (2008/09 £74,781) were made
Further detals are included on page 36 of the
Business Review No poliucal dorauons were
made (2008/09 Nil)

TAX STATUS
The Company is not a close company within
the meaning of the Income and Corporauon
Taxes Act |988

PAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

le1s the Group's payment policy for the
year ending 31 March 2011 co follow the
Code of The Better Payment Practice
Group on supplter payments Informaton
about the Code can be obtained from
the website payontime.co uk The
Company will agree payment terms with
individual supphers in advance and abide
by such terms The rauo, expressed in
days, between the amount invoiced to the
Company by s suppliers during 2009/10
and the amount owed to Iits trade creditors
at 31 March 2010, was 34 days

PURCHASE OF OWN

ORDINARY SHARES

The Company has authonty from shareholders
to purchase up to 10% of its own ordinary
shares (as renewed at the AGM n 2009)
which was valid as at 31 March 2010 and
remains currendy vahid Of the 5,724,131
shares held in Treasury at 3|1 March 2009,
631,557 were subsequenty re-issued under
the Company’s Sharesave Scheme for
proceeds of £1 9 million

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP were
appomnted auditors unul the conclusion of
the twenty-first Annual General Meeting A
resolunon for their re-appointment upon the
recommendauon of the Audit Committee of
the Board will be proposed at the AGM

APPOINTED BUSINESS

South West Water Limited 15 required

to publish addiuonal financial informaton
relating to the ‘appointed business’ as water
and sewerage undertaker in accordance
wath the Instrument of Appaintment from
the Secretary of Scate for the Environment
A copy of this informaton will be avalable
from 15 july 2010 upon application to the
Cornpany Secretary at Perunsula House, Rydon
Lane, Exeter EX2 7HR or on the website
southwestwater co uk

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The cwenty-first Annual General Meeung of
the Company will be held at the Sandy Park
Conference Centre, Sandy Park VWay, Exeter,
Devon EX2 7NN on 29 July 2010 at 11 00am In
addigon o routne business, resolutons will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeting to

* renew the existing authorities to issue a
ltmited number of shares {(with updating
to accord with the latest insututonal
guidelines and the Companies Act 2006)
and to purchase up to 10% of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company

« seek authority to make polmcal donations
under the Poliical Parues, Efectons and
Referendums Act 2000, as amended (lt
1s not the Group's policy to make poliucal
donauons This Is a precauuonary measure
which is followed by many companies o
ensure that there is no inadvertent breach
of the law)

+ re-elect Mr K G Harvey, Mr G D Connell
and Mr C Loughlin as Directors of the
Company

= adopt new Arucles of Association Thisis
proposed prinaipally to bring the Arucles up
to date In accordance with the provisions of
the Comparues Act 2006 which are all now
in force and include changes to the limits
set out In the existing Articles relaung to
Directors’ fees

+ increase the Company's borrowing
power from 2Y, to 3 umes capital and
reserves (and amend the defimuon of
capital and reserves to exclude therefrom
the impact of market price movements
on the accounting treatment of financral
dervatives to which the Company 1s a
party) as set out in the Company’s Arucles

* seek authonty to contnue to call general
meetngs other than an annual general
meetng on not less than 14 clear days’
nouce (pursuant to the EUJ Shareholder
Rights Direcuve (effectve in August 2009),
shareholder authoricy 1s required to
conunue to call meetings on at least |4 clear
days' nouce)

Detatls of the resolutions are set out in the
separate Nouce of Annual General Meeung
which s arculated to shareholders wath this
Annual Report or provided by electronic
communicauon via the Company’s website
pennon-group co uk Informaton required
by Section 311A of the Companies Act 2006 1s
also on the Company’s website

By Crder of the Board

NN 2

KEN WOODIER,
Group General Counsel & Company Secretary

24 June 2010
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

KENNETH GEORGE HARYEY

BSC, ¢9

CHAIRMAN

Appeinced on | March 1997 Ken was formerly chairman and
chief executive of Norweb Plc He was chairman of Nauonal

Grid Holdings 1n 1995 and was previously deputy chairman of
London Electricity and earlier s engineening director He has also
been chairman of a number of mited and private equity funded
companies Currendy he 1s the semor independent non-executive
director of Nauenal Grd Pic

COLIN IRWIN JOHN HAMILTON DRUMMOND MA, MBA,
LTCL, CCMI, 59

CHIEF EXECUTIVE, VIRIDOR LIMITED

Appointed on | April 1992 Prior to joining the Company Colin was

a divisional chief execuove of Coats Viyella, having previously been
corporate development director of Renold plc, a strategy consultant
with the Boston Consulung Group and an official of the Bank of
England He 1s chairman of the Government's Living with Environmental
Change Business Advisory Board, of UKTI's Environmental Sector
Advisary Group, and of the Environmental Sustainabilicy Knowledge
Transfer Network He is a senior visiung research fellow in Earth
Sciences ar Oxford University, an adviser to Beehive Water and VVaste
Holdings LP, and a Past Master of the Worshipful Company of VWater
Conservators

DAYID JEREMY DUPONT MA, MBA, 56

GROUP DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

Appointed on 2 March 2002 Dawvid was formerly regulatory and
finance director of South West Water Limited, having joined Pennon
Group Plc (then South West Water Plc} in 1992 as strategic planning
manager Previously he held business planming and development roles
with Gateway Corporaton He 1s a member of the CBl Environmental
Affairs Commictee and che CBI South West Regional Councit

CHRISTOPHER LOUGHLIN

BSC HONS, MICE, CENG, MBA, 57

CHIEF EXECUTIVE, SOUTH WEST WATERLIMITED
Appointed on | August 2006 Chns was most recently chief operaung
officer with Ltoyd’s Register and previously was an executve director
of Bnush Nuclear Fuels Plc and execuuve chairman of Magnox Electric
Ple Chris started his career as a chartered engineer and subsequently
held a number of sentor pesiuons with Brash Nuclear Fuels He was
appointed chairman of Water UK with effect from | April 2008

GROUP GENERAL COUNSEL &
COMPANY SECRETARY
Ken Woodier Solicitor

REGISTERED OFFICE
Peninsula House,

Rydon Lane,

Exeter

EX2 7HR

Registered in England No 2366640
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MARTIN DAYID ANGLE

BSC HONS, FCA, 60

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appeinted on | December 2008 Marun currently holds non-
execuuve directorships with Savills ple, |SC Severstal, Shuaa Capital
and The Nauonal Exhibiuon Centre where he 1s Chairman Unul
November 2009, he was alsc on the Board of Duba: Internauonal
Capital In addiuen he sits on the Adwisory Board of the Warwick
Business School Formerly he held senior positons with Terra
Firma Capical Partners and various of its portfoho companies,
including the executive chairmanship of Waste Recyching Group
Limited Before that he was the Group Finance Director of

Tl Group plc and held a number of senior investment banking
positions with SG Warburg & Co Ltd, Morgan Stanley and
Dresdner Kleinwort Benson

GERARD DOMINIC CONNELL MA, 52

SENIOR INDEFPENDENT

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appointed on | October 2003 Gerard 1s currently group finance
director of ¥Wincanton Plc Previously he was a director of Hill Samuel
and a managing director of Bankers Trust having wrained originally ac
Price Waterhouse and has held other corporate finance and business
development positions tn the City and in indusery He s also a
governar of King's College School, Wimbledon

DINAH ALISON NICHCLS

CB, BA HONS, 66

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Appoinced on 12 June 2003 Dinab was formerly Director General
Erwvironment at the Department for Ervironment, Food and Rural
Affars and previously held vanious senior appeintments wichin
Government, induding being head of the water directorate duning che
period of water privansaton She is also a Crown Estate Commusstoner,
a non-executive director of Shires Smaller Companies Ple, chair of the
Nauional Forest Company and a director of several charitable Trusts

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
AUDIT NOMINATION
Gerard Connell (Chairman} Ken Harvey (Chairman)
Marun Angle Marun Angle
Dinzh Nichols Gerard Connell

Dinzh Nichols
CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY REMUNERATION
Oinah Nichols {Chairman) Marun Angle (Chairman)
Marun Angle Gerard Connell
Gerard Connell Dimah Nichols
Colin Drummond
Chris Loughlin




DIRECTORS REMUNERATION REPORT

PURPOSE

The Directors’ Remuneration Report is designed to provide for the
benefit of shareholders details of

= the role of the Remuneranon Committee
« the Group's Remuneration Policy
+ Directors’ remuneration

* remuneranon disclosures required by the Directors’ Remuneraton
Report Regulauons which are audited

The Company understands tnvestors’ concerns relating to executive
director remuneration and whilst focus has been on the financal
sector primartly, it is fully recogrised that there is a need for other
sectors to reflect this concern in their remunerauon policies and
overall remuneration practice This is why last year, despite the
Group's businesses being well posinoned in the economic slowdown,
the Remuneraton Committee decided not to increase salanies for
Executive Directors beyond those set in 2008

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneraton Commuttee of the Board compnises three
Non-executive Directors who are all regarded by the Company as
independent. Marun Angle 1s the Chairman of the Committee and the
other two members are Gerard Connell and Dinah Nichols

The Committee’s Terms of Reference 1s avalable from the Group
Company Secretary and ¢an be found on the Company's website
pennon-group.co uk It includes

* advising the Board on the framework of executive remunerztion for
the Group

* determining the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
Chairman, the Executive Directors and Senior Management of
the Group

No Director or any other attendee parucipates in any discussion on, or
determtnagon of, his or her own remuneranon

During the year the Comrnittee met on seven oceasions and recerved
advice or services which matermally assisted the Committee in the
consideration of remuneration matters from Ken Harvey, Charman
of the Company, and from the following advisors who were appointed
directly by the Committee

+ Ken Woodier, Group General Counsel & Company Secretary on
remuneraucon and share scheme matters He also prowvides legal
adwice and company secretanal services to the Company

* Hewirt Associates Limuted, pensions and remunerauon consuftants,
on calculatng total shareholder return for the Company’s Restnicted
Share Plan {now replaced by the Company's Performance &
Co-investment Plan) Hewitt also provide actuaral and investment
pensichs advice to the Trustees of the Group's Pension Schemes

* Towers Perrin Limited (now Towers Watson Limited), remuneration
consultants, who undertook a review of the Group's remuneration
policy and practice for the Committee during the year

REMUNERATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

REMUNERATION POLICY

Last year the Remuneraucon Committee reported that it would
undertake a review of Rermunerauon Policy in September 2009 Having
undertaken thts review with advice from Towers Perrin the Committee
concluded that the current policy remained appropriate This policy
which will be applied in 2010/11, and 15 also currently intended to be
apphed in each subsequent year, is to provide for Executive Cirectors

a remuneration package which is adequate to attrace, retain and
motivate good quality executives and which s commensurate with

the remuneration packages provided by compantes of similar size and
complexity The key guiding prinaples of this policy are to

= design an overall package to be competitive and to take account of
the markets in which the Group’s businesses cperate

* support the overarching business strategy for the Group

* adopt incentive arrangements designed to reward performance
and align the interests of the Executive Directors with those of
sharehclders

+ renforce the mcentve element of the package by mantaining base
salanes for Executive Directors at the relevant market median

= have a remuneration package which 1s fair and consistent with
other companies In the sector and which provides incenuves for
outperformance

The policy in respect of Non-executive Directors’ fees 15 set out on
page 44 in the Non-executive Directars remuneration secuon

In setting exacutive remuneraton the Remuneration Committee not
only takes account of employment market conditions, but seeks to
ensure that there are coherent pzy and benefit structures across the
Group which are consistent with the remuneraton packages of the
Executive Drrectors and Senior Management. From summary reports
on workforce remuneration and terms and conditons of employment
by the Executive Directors with regard to their respective business
areas, the Committee has regard to the general levels of responsibiity,
qualificanons and experience required throughout the Group in
setting salary and other benefits of the Executive Directors and Senior
Management. The Commuctee also ensures the incenuve structures do
not rase environmental, social or governance risks by inadvertently
motivaung irresponsible behaviour A number of iIndividual performance
objectives spectfically relate to achieving non-financial targets

The balance between maximum performance-related remuneratcn
recewvable and direct remuneraton (te excluding pensions, car benefit
and health cover) 1s the same as last year with one-third direct and
two-thirds performance-related This 1s expected to conunue for the
foreseeable future The Company also has a Shareholding Guideline
which applies to Executive Directors and Semor Management It s
structured to demonstrate ther commitment to the future success
of the Group Executive Directors are expected to bulld up their
shareholding over a five-year period to a value which s at least
equivalent te their basic annual salary

Below 1s an outhne of the total remuneration package for Executive Directors

Fixed

Base Salary Short-term — Annual

Pension — Final Salary (Defined
Benefit) or cash alternauve

deferred for 3 years
Other — car benefit and
health cover

Annual Incenuve Bonus Plan - Maamum 100% of
basic salary with 50% paid in cash and 50% in shares  future performance over 3 years

Assessed aganst corporate financial performance
and individual personal achievements relating to a
range of operatenal and compliance targets

Variable (Performance-related)

Long-term - J years
Performance and Co-tnvestment Plan (PCP) —

50% finked to water and waste comparator group
and 50% linked to relative FTSE 250 with an underpin
relaning to operauonal and economic performance
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The following 1s a detailed summary of the
elements of remuneratuon

(i) Basic salary and benefits — these

are set out on page 44 for each Execuuve
Director and are not related to performance
The Committee reviews salares annually
taking account of market data avalable from
independent remuneration consultants A,
pay freeze was apphed in 2009/10 When
reviewing base salanes the Committee takes
account of the performance of the individual
Executive Directors which the Committee
assesses with the advice of Ken Harvey,
Chairman of the Company Other benefits,
not menuoned below, include contrbutory
pension provision (or a cash alternative),
four umes salary life assurance cover; a

fully expensed car, or a cash alternauve and
health cover

(u) Performance-Related Bonus — annua!
performance related bonuses are awarded in
accordanca with the Group'’s Annual Incentive
Bonus Plan {the Bonus Plan} and are based on
the achievement by the Executive Directors
of overall corporate and individual objectives
set by the Committee The maximum

bonus achievable under the Bonus Plan for
Executive Directors for 2009/10 was 100%

of basic salary To achieve the maximum
percentage bonus allocated in respect of

the corporate targets of earmings per share
and profit before tax it is necessary for the
Company to achieve a speoified level of
supenor outperformance Half of any bonus
awarded 15 In the form of ordinary shares

in the Company which must usually be held
for a penod of three years before release
{Deferred Bonus Shares) During this period
the Directors, in respect of the Deferred
Bonus Shares, are enutled to receive any
dividends declared by the Company No
addivoral performance condinons apphicable
to the release of the Deferred Bonus Shares
apart from maintaining continucus service
with the Company, are considered appropnate
by the Committee in view of the stretching
performance conditions applicable to achieve
the imal award of the Deferred Bonus Shares
The Committee, in setung the performance
objecuves for Executive Directors, takes
account of corporate performance on
environmental, social and governance (ESG)
matters Objectives set embrace appropriate
ESG parameters which are important to

the success of the Group and which seek

to ensure that the Group meets a number

of its ESG targers as set out in the Group's
Corporate Responsibility Report on pages 32
to 36 of the Business Review The Commictee
In secung such objectives and in determining
its remuneration pobcy overall ensures

that the relevant incenuves to Directors

and Semior Management raise no ESG nsks

by madvertentdy mouvaung irresponsible
behavicur In addiuon the Committee will take
into account ESG matters in determining the
vesting of any awards under the Company's

Performance & Co-investment Plan referred
to below

In 2009/10 the Committee structured and
operated the Bonus Plan on a different

basis The Bonus Plan was amended by

the Commuttee to permit its operaaon in
conjunction with the Company's Executive
Share Oputon Scheme (ESOS) which received
shareholder approval in 2001 on the basis
that the aggregate pre-tax value of the
awards made under both the Bonus Plan

and the ESOS would be the same as they
would have been if the Bonus Plan had been
operated alone, as in previous years This
has been achieved by providing for Deferred
Bonus Shares awarded to be forferted by the
Directors up to the same value as that of any
gain made tn respect of opuons exercised by
the Directors pursuant to the ESOS at the
end of the three-year restricted period Only
the HMRC approved part of the ESOS was
aperated in 2009/10 which enabled opuons
over ordinary shares in the Company to be
granted to Directors to the value of £30,000
at the then prevailing price Detalls of the
options granted are set out in the table In

paragraph (d) on page 47

Set out below 15 a summary of the
performance targets determined by the
Committee for each Executive Director for
2009/10 and for 2010/t1

Colin Drummond — A bonus of up to 40%
for outperformance of Group earnings per
share against budget, up to 40% caleulated

by reference to outperformance of the profic
before tax and net debt budgets of Vindor,
and up to 20% for personal objecuves relaung
to key business targets for Vindor

David Dupont = A bonus of up to 40% for
outperformance of Group earmings per share
against budget, up to 40% for outperformance
against budget relaung to net debt and net
nterest of the Group and profit before tax

of South West Vvater and Vindor; and up to
20% for personal abjectives relating to Group
financing and other Group ininacves

Chnis Loughiin = A bonus of up to 40% for
outperformance of Group earnings per

share against budget, up to 20% for personal
objecuves relatng to implementng South
West Water's new strategies and projects

and meetng complhance targets, and up to
40% calculated by reference to the average
bonus earned by the other execuuve directors
of South West Water (which relate to
outperformance against the operating costs,
profic before tax, capital expenditure and net
debt budgets of the company, the position the
company achteves in the ‘Overalt Performance
Assessment’ of water and sewerage companies
established by the Water Services Regulatory
Authonty (WSRA), the achievement of a
range of service standards set for the company
by the WSRA, and personal objectives relaung
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to key iitiatives, projects and comphiance
targets for South West YVater)

The achvevernents of the Executive Directors
against thesr mdwdual performance objectives
are assessed by the Commuttee following the
financial year-end when the audited results

of the Company and performance agamst the
parameters set are known This enables the
Commuttee to apply largely objecuve critena
in determining the level of bonus (if any) which
should be awarded, with the advice of the
Chairman of the Company, Ken Harvey

(m) Long-term incentive plan - A
Performance and Co-investment Plan {PCP)
was operated by the Company dunng the
year for Executive Directors and Senior
Management.

The purpose of the PCP is to award shares

to partcipants subject to the achievement of

stretching performance condiuons measured

over three years Awards under the PCP, in

the form of a conditional right over ordinary

shares in the Company, were made by the

Commuttee in july 2009 and, for Executive

Directors, the award was over shares worth

100% of basic salary In accordance with

its discretion pursuant to the rules of the

PCP, the Committee made the vesung of |
the awards also subject to the fulfilment of a

co-investment condition whereby Executve

Directors were required to invest and hold

shares in the Company equal to 20% of the |
value of cheir award over the Restricted Penod

{being a peried of three years from the date of

the award) The percentage requirement for

senior management was suitably scaled back

The number of shares subject to each award in i
the event of vesung will be increased by such |
number of shares as could have been acquired

by reinvesting the dividends which would

otherwise have been received on those shares

prior Lo vestng or exercise

The PCP awards made in July 2009 will vest
based on the Company's total shareholder
recurn {TSR) performance over a three-year
performance penod against two different
comparator groups as set out below This

1s the same performance cntena that was
apphed to the PCP awards made in July

2008 TSR measures the value created for
shareholders through tncreases in share price
and the payment of dividends and was applied
by the Commuttee because, based upon advice
received from remuneranon consultants,
Deloicte & Touche LLP, it beleves that this 1s
an appropnate measure to align the interests
of the Executive Directors with those of
shareholders

= Up to 50% of an award will vest according
to the Company's TSR performance
measured aganst an index made up of
the following six listed water and waste
COMmparator companies




Northumbrian Water Group
Séché Environnement
Severn Trent

Shanks Group

Suez Environnement

United Udliues

These are the Company’s key listed sector
comparators

WATER/WASTE GROUP Vesting

% of total award
Above the index

+15% 50%
Equal to the index 15%
Straight-line vesung i between

the above points

Below the index 0%

+ Up to 50% of the award will vest according
to the Company's ranked TSR performance
aganst the constituents of the FTSE 250
index (excluding investment trusts) This
1s the FTSE index to which the Company
belonged at the tme of the award

FTSE 250 GROUP Vesting
% of total award

At or above the 75th percentle 50%

Above 50th percentie 15%

Scraight-line vesung tn between

the above points

At or below the 50th percentle 0%

In addition to this TSR condition, before any
award s capable of vestng, the Committee will
also need to be sausfied that the underlying
operauonal and economic performance of

the Company s at a satisfactory level This

will include consideration of sustainability and
environmental factors and safery performance,
as well as financial performance

For the first PCP awards made in August

2007 {following shareholder approval at the
Annual General Meeting in July 2007} the same
performance measures were used as set cut
above save that the secter comparater group
included Biffa and Kelda Group (instead of
Séché and Suez) As these companies have now
de-listed, the Committee in respect of the 2007
award at the end of the three-year Restricted
Period will have discretion to include thern in
the cakufation of the index up to the date of
de-lisung {or other earlier date at its discreton)
and exclude them from that date onwards or
adopt an alternative approach

Whilst the Committee intends currently to
apply simiular performance conditions to those
set out above to any future PCP awards, they
will be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure
that they remain appropriate and suitably
stretching for future awards

Between 1997 and 2006 the Company
operated a Restricted Share Plan (RSP) The
final award made in September 2006 reached
the end of its three-year restricted period in
September 2009 with the TSR performance
of the Company agatnst a comparator group
being measured over the three-year perod
ended on 31 March 2009 (details of the RSP
and the TSR performance conditon applied
are set out In the notes to table (b) ‘Restricted
Share Plan and Performance Co-investment
Plan' on page 46) Over this perod the
Company achieved the posiion equivalent to
the 50th percenule of the comparator group
which resulted in no shares vestng from the
award For at least part of the award to have
vested the Company would have needed to
achieve a posiuon at least above the posiuon
of the company at or nearest to (but not
above) the 50th percenule position of the
comparator group For the 2004 RSP award
which vested in 2007, 85% of the award
vested and for the 2005 award which vested
in 2008, 70% of the award vested Any awards
which did not vest at the end of the relevant
Restricted Perod lapsed and therefore 15%
and 30% of the awards which vested in 2007
and 2008 respecuvely lapsed and 100% of the
2006 award lapsed in September 2009

(iv) Other share schemes — Executive
Dhirectors are entitled to participate 1n the
Company’s Sharesave Scheme and Share
Incentve Plan Both are all-employee plans to
which performance condivons do not apply

{¥) Service contracts — In accordance
wath Company policy, all Executive Directors
have service contracts subject to one ysar's
notice They are due to expire when Executive
Directors reach their nermal reurement age
of 60 unless extended by agreement between
the Director and the Company No provision
1s made for termination payments under the
service contracts In the event of terminauon
by the Company of any Executive Diractor’s
service contract, the Board would determine
what payments (If any) should be made to the
Director depending on the arcumstances of
the terminauon The dates of the contracts
are

Cobn Drummond $ March [992
Dawd Dupont 2 January 2003
Chnis Loughhin 16 May 2006

{v1) Provision for pensions — Colin
Drummond and Davtd Dupont parucipate in
the Pennon Group Pension Scheme and the
Pernon Group Execuuve Pension Scheme
These are funded defined benefit schemes
which, dependent on length of service at
normal reurement date, could amount to
two-thirds of final pensionable pay, with the
exception of service to 5 April 2006 where
an Earnings Cap applied in these Schemes to
these two Directors

Both were provided with additional pension
benefits under an unapproved funded
Supplementary Pension Scheme of the
Company in order to bring their pension
benefits up to a level which would have been
provided under the other schemes as If the
Earnings Cap had not applied Wvith effect
from & April 2006 the Eartungs Cap no longer
applied to pension schemes as part of the
simphficetion of taxation of pensions legistauon
The Committee accordingly decided to provde
all of the Directors’ future service pension
benefits above the Earnings Cap level from the
Pennon Group Execuuve Pension Scheme The
Supplementary Pension Scheme was therefore
closed and the accrued benefits were paid out
to its members in Apni 2006

The pensionable pay for Executive Directors
consists of the highest basic salary in any
consecuuve |2-month period of service wichin
five years of reurement Bonuses are not
included in pensionable pay

In heu of the provision of pension benefits,
Chris Loughlin receives an annual payment
equivalent to 30% of his annual basic salary

In determintng remuneration arrangements
for Executive Directors, the Committee
gives full consideraton to their impact on the
pension schemes’ funds and costs of prowiding
individual pension arrangements or payments
1n lieu of pension provision

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN (TSR)

The graph above shows the value, over the
five-year penod ending on 31 March 2010,

of £100 invested in Pennon Group on 31
March 2005 compared with the value of £100
invested in the FTSE 250 Index. The other
poinzs plotted are the values at intervening
financial year-ends This Index 1s considered
appropriate as 1t 1s a broad equity market
index of which the Company has been a
constituent over most of the period covered

The graph above has been produced in
accordance with regulattons made pursuant wo
Secuon 421 of the Companies Act 2006
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND
THE CHAIRMAN

Non-executive Directors’ remuneration
(excluding that of the Charrman, Ken Harvey)
consisting of fees only as set out below,

1s determined by the Board of Directors,
including the Chairman, but in the absence

of the other Non-executive Directors ltis
usually reviewed each year to take account of
market changes in non-gxecutive directors’
fees The Non-executive Directors’ fees were
not increased for 2009/10.n line with the
Executive Directors In reviewing the fees, the
Board takes into account market information
on non-executive directors’ fees For 2009/10
the Non-execuuve Directors recerved a

base fee of £35,000 per annum The Audit,
Remunerauon and Corporate Responsibility
Committee chatrs were pad fees of £10,000,
£7,000 and £7,000 per annum respectively
and the Comrmuttee members received
£4,000 each For this and subsequent years
the policy expected to be apphed in respect
of Non-executve Director fees will be to

set fees around the median level compared
with the market, which the Board believes
15 appropnate to attract and retan suitably
experienced non-executive directors

The Chairman's remuneration Is set by the
Remuneration Commictee The Chairman's fee
was not increased for 2009/10 in line with the
Execuuve Directors

The pohcy of the Comnuttee to be applied

for this and in subsequent years i1s the same as
that of the Executive Directors in reviewing
the fees of the Non-executive Directors as set
out above In addiuon ¢o a fee the Chairman
receives a fully-expensed car benefit and
health cover

No other benefits or remuneraton are
recerved by the Charman

The Non-executive Directors (excluding
the Chairtnan) have contracts for services
setting out their terms and condruons of

The dates of the Non-executive Directors’ contracts are

Director
Martun Angle
Gerard Connell

Dhinah Nichels

Data of contract

28 Novemnber 2008
30 September 2003
10 June 2003

appointment which are subject to the Arucles
of Association of the Company and which
may be extended by agreement between the
Company and the Non-execuuve Directors
No provision is made for any terminauon
payment under these contracts

The Chairman has a contract for services
dated | April 2005 which 15 subject to 12
months’ notce to provide the Company

with reasonable secunty with regard to his
ongoing service No provision s made for any
termination payments under this contract

The contracts for services of the Chairman and
the Non-executive Directors reflect corporate
governance best practice and, together with
the Executive Directors’ service contracts,

are avallable for nspecuion at the Company’s
registered office durning normal business hours

Expiry date of contract
30 November 2011

30 September 2012

Il June 2012

The above contracts do not contatn any notice periods

The informauion set out below and on the remaimng pages of this Remunerauon Report {pages 44 to 48) has been avdited by the Group's
independent auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS

The emoluments of individual Directors helding office duning 2009/10 were

Performance

related cash Other Paymen i heu Total 2010 - Total 2009 -
Diector Salaryffees bonus P‘i;’; emoluments' of pansion’ Year to 3| March Year to 31 March

rYiDUD PaYCDOO £000 £000 £000 £000

Chetrman
Ken Harvey 220 - 26 - 246 246
Executve Directors
Calin Drummond 330 155 22 — 507 432
David Dupont 330 1524 21 — 503 435
Chris Loughlin ils I1SH 22 95 583 527
Non-executive Directors
Maruen Angle 50 - -~ - 50 17
Gerard Connell 53 - - - 53 50
Dinah Nichols S0 - - - 50 48
Total 1,348 458 9l 95 1,992 1,755

Other emoluments are car benefit and health cover

In addivon to the performance-related cash bonus, Executive Directors are due to receive a conditional award of shares as referred to in a note

to (<) "Annual Incenuve Bonus Plan — Deferred Bonus Shares (long-term incenuve element)’ on page 47

In heu of any pension provision by the Company, Chns Loughlin receives a cash payment equivalent to 30% of his annual basic salary
The performance-refated cash bonus payable to Dawvid Dupont includes £4,000 and to Chns Loughlin includes £6,600 which were paid in

February 2010 This was an additional bonus paid to the two Directors for the year 2008/09 due to a reassessment of performance against

budgeted parameters

No expense allowances chargeable to tax or termination or compensation payments were made durng the year
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' PENSIONS
Defined benefit pensions accrued and payable on retirement for Executive Directors holding office during 2009/10 were

Increase in Increase in Transfer value of

zccrued pension Increase in Acgrued Transfer Transfer transfer value Column a (net

duning 2009/10 acerued pension pension at value at valuear (et of Directors of Dwrectors

{net of mflavon) duning 2009710 3| March 2010 31 March 2010 31 March 2009 contribuuecns) contributions)

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Dwector a b c d e f £
Colin Drummond 5 8 146 3,424 2,930 464 79
David Dupont 6 9 131 2,798 2,319 450 91

Column a above 15 the increase in accrued pension during 2009/10 (net of inflation) It recogrises
1 the accrual rate for the addiwonal pencd’s service based upon the pensionabie pay at the end of the pened and
u the effect of pay changes in real terms (net of inflanon) upon the accrued pension at the start of the year
Colurnn b is the actual increase in accrued pension during 2009/10
Column c 1s the accrued pension at 3| March 2010 payable at normal reurement age
Column d s the transfer value of the accrued pensien set cut in column ¢ as ac 3| March 2010
Column e is the transfer value of the accrued pension at the end of the previous financial year on 31 March 2009
Column fis the increase in the transfer value dunng the year (column d minus ¢olumn e) after deducting Directors’ contributions
Column g 15 the transfer value of column a, less Directors’ contributons
Columns d, e, f and g have been calculated In accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note GNII

Under the Company’s pension salary deducuon arrangements, the Company pays all pension scheme members’ contributions to the Group pension
schemes and salaries are reduced by the same amount The figures quoted above have not been adjusted 1o reflect this arrangement

The above Directors have the opuon to pay additional voluntary contnibutions, neither the contributions nor the resultng benefits are included in
the table shown above

DIRECTORS’ SHARE INTERESTS
(a) Shareholdings
The number of ordinary shares of the Company in which Directors held beneficial interests at 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009 were

2010 2009 12010 200%

Ordinary shares Ordinary shares Ordinary shares Ovrdinary shares

Direcrar {40 7p each) {40 7p each) Director (40 Tp each) (40 7p each)

Marun Angle - - Ken Harvey 18,209 13,209

Gerard Connell 4,000 - Chris Loughhin 38,876 29,442

Colin Drummend 239,218 216,363 Dinah Nichals 4,549 4,549
Dawid Dupont 213,510 193,819

Since 31 March 2010 389 additonal ordinary shares (40 7p each) have been acquired by Chris Loughlin as a result of paruapauon in the Company's
Serip Dividend Alternative and the Company's Share Incentuve Plan and 92 additional ordinary shares {40 7p each) have been acquired by David
Dupont as a result of dividend reinvestment in an ISA

There have been no other changes in the beneficial interests or the non-beneficial interests of the Directors in the ordinary shares of the Company
between | April 2010 and 4 June 2010
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(b) Restricted Share Ptan and Performance and Co-investment Plan (Long-Term Incentive Plans)

In addition to the above beneficial interests, the following Directors have or had a contingent interest in the number of 40 7p ordinary shares shown
below, representing the maximum number of shares to which they would become enuded under the Group’s Long-Term Incentive Plans should the
relevant cnitena be metn full

Market price Value of shares Date of end of
Conditional Condiuonal of each share upon vesung Conditonal  penod for quakfying
Director and date awards held awards made upon award Vesong in (beforetax)  Awards hefd at condstion to be
of award at | Apnl 200% in year n year year £000 31 March 2010 fulfilled
Colin Drummend
18/5/06 " 41,363 - 498 62p Lapsed Nil Value - 17/9/09
29/8/07 2 53,859 - 55700p - - 53,859 28/8/10
10/7/082 51,764 - 637 50p - - 51,764 91|
L7092 - 67,831 486 50p - - 67,831 30/6/12
David Dupont
18/9706 " 41,363 - 498 62p Lapsed Nil Value - 17/9109
29/8/07 * 53,859 - 55700p - - 53,859 28/8110
10/7/08 1 51764 - 637 50p - - 51,764 97|
177409 - 67,831 486 50p - - 67,831 30/6/12
Chnis Loughlin
18/9/06 ! 36,099 - 498 62p Lapsed Nil Value - 17/9/0%
29[8!07_’ 49,371 - 55700p - - 49,371 28/8/10
10/7/08 2 49,411 - 63750p - - 43,411 o7
1/7/09 2 - 64,748 486 50p - - 64,748 30/6/12

' These awards relate to the Company's Restncted Share Plan (RSP)

! These awards relate to the Company’s Performance and Co-investment Plan {PCP) which succeeded the RSP in 2007 Detads of the PCP and the
performance conditions applicable to these Awards are set out in secuon {in} ‘Long-Term Incentive Plan’ on page 42 of this report

None of the 2006 RSP Award vested in September 2009 because the performance criterion had not been met The Award therefore lapsed in its
entirety The performance cricenion applicable to this Award was the total shareholder return (TSR} achieved by the Company in the performance
period must be greater than that of the campany at or nearest to (but not above) the 50th percentile position of the comparator group If the

TSR performance condiuion had been met then 50% of an award would have vested with 100% vesung if the Company had achieved the posiucn
equal or closest to, but not above, the 75th percentle posinon of the comparator group The achievement of a position between the 50th and the
75th percentle positions would have resulted in vestng in steps reflecung the number of comparues within that third quarule of the comparator
group The comparator group consisted of nine of the water only, water and sewerage, electncity and gas companes in the FTSE Uthues Index and
quoted on the London Stock Exchange The TSR of each company in the comparator group was reasured by Hewtt Associates Limited assurnng
that all dividends were reinvested and was calculated by taking the average marker value of each company’s shares for the whole of March before
the beginning of the relevant three-year performance penod and comparing this to the average market value of the same shares for the whole of
March at the end of the three-year penod Based upon independent remuneraton consultant’s advice this method of measurement was considered
to be fair and transparent to paruapants in the Plan and also an accurate measure of actual performance The above performance cnterion was
chosen by the Remunerauon Committee because it was considerad to be an appropnate measure of the Group's performance which also aligned
itself to the interests of shareholders

During the year the Directors received dividends on the above shares in accordance with the conditons of the RSP as follows
Colin Drummond £8.686, David Dupont £8.686, Chns Loughbin £7,580

As the 2006 RSP Award was the final award made pursuant to that Plan (having been replaced in 2007 wath the Performance and Co-investment
Plan} no further dwidends pursuant to the RSP will be payabie to the Directors
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(c) Annual Incentive Bonus Plan — Deferred Bonus Shares (long-term incentive element)

The following Directors have or had a conungent interest in the number of 40 7p ordinary shares shown below, representing the total number of
shares to which they have {or would) become entitled under the deferred bonus element of the Annual Incentive Bonus Plan (the Bonus Plan) at
the end of the relevant qualifying period

Normal date of

Market price Value of shares end of period for
Condiaonal Canditionat of each share upon vesting Conditional qualifying
Director and date awards held awards made upon award Vestmg n (beforetax)  awards held at condition to be
of award at | April 2009 in year n year year £000 31 March 2080 fulfilied
Colin Drummond
2617106 16,527 - 486 00p 16,527 75 - 257109
26/7107 * 17,798 - 599 50p 17,798 94 - 25/7/10
27/6/08 22,838 - 620 00p - - 22,838 26/6/H
30/9/09 2 - 16,730 473 40p - - 16,730 2919712
David Dupont
26/7/06 " 16,095 - 486 00p 16,095 73 - 2517109
26/7/07 * 17018 - 599 50p 17,018 90 - 251710
2716/08 21,145 - 620 00p - - 21,145 2616411
30/9/09 - 17,880 473 40p - - 17,880 2919412
2712410 - 755 524 50p - - 755 26/2/13
Chris Loughiin
26/7/07 * 8,767 - 599 50p 8,767 46 - 25/7/10
27/6/08 18,806 - 620 00p - - 18,806 26/6/11
30/9/0% 2 -\ 19.562 473 40p - - 19,562 29/9/12
2772110 - 1,261 524 50p - - 1,261 26/2/13

The amount of the awards made cn 26 July 2006 were adjusted in the rauo three-for-one consequent upon the Company’s share capital split on
31 July 2006 and the awards vested on 25 July 2009 at 2 market price of 454 36p per ordinary share as the performance condition had been met

~

The 26 July 2007 awards vested on |2 March 2010 at a market price of 527 60p per ardinary share The Remuneration Committee varied the
terms of the Bonus Plan to bring forward the vestng of these awards from 25 July 2010 subject to possible clawback in the event that the Bonus
Plan performance condition {refating to service) would not be met at the end of the onginal qualifying peried on 25 July 2010

w

In addiuon to the awards made on 30 September 2009 the Directors also received options pursuant to the Company's Executive Share QOption
Scheme {the ESOS), detalls of which are set out in the table of paragraph {d) below These awards were made in conjunction with the operation
of the Bonus Plan, the provisions of which have been vaned by the Remunerauon Committee to provide for forfeiture of equivalent shares from
the Bonus Plan in the event that the ESOS options are exercised by the Directors Further details of this vanation to the Bonus Plan and to the
operation of the ESOS are set out tn paragraph (n) ‘Performance-related bonus’ on page 42

During the year the Directors receved divdends on the above shares in accordance with the conditions of the Bonus Plan as follows Colin
Drummond £9,649, David Dupont £9,100, Chris Loughlin £5,720

A further condiuonal award of shares will be made in 2010/11 to the value of the amount of the performance-refated cash bonus shown in
the Emoluments of Directors table on page 44 (Paragraph {n) 'Performance-related bonus’ on page 42 sets out the provisions relating to the
conditional award of shares pursuant to the Plan), save to the extent already awarded on 27 February 2010 as set out in the table above

(d) Executive Share Option Scheme

The following Directors have a contingent interest n the number of share options pursuant te the Company’s Executive Share Option Scherne shown
below Further detals relating to the operation of the Scheme are set out i paragraph {u} ‘Performance-related bonus’ on page 42

Options Exercise Market price  Market value of Options

Drrector and held at Granted Exercised price per of each share gach shareat held at Maturcy
date of grant b April 200% In year In year share on exercising 31 March 2010 31 March 2010 date
Colin Drummond

30/9/09 - 6,337 - 473 40p - 52250p 6,337 29/9/12
David Dupont

30/9/09 - 6,337 - 473 40p - 523 50p 6,337 291912
Chns Loughlin

30/9/09 - 6,337 - 473 40p - 521 50p 6,337 29/9/12
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(e) Sharesave Scheme
Details of options to subscnbe for shares of the Company under the all-employee Sharesave Scheme were

Options Exercise Market price of Value of each Options

Director and held at Granted Exereised price per each share share at held at Exercise period/
date of grant | Apnil 2009 in year n year share on exercising 31 March 2010 31 March 2010 maturity date
Cchn Drummeoend

4/7/06 1 2,613 - 2,613 35766p 46| 00p - - 1/9/09 - 28/2/10
617109 - 2,351 - 38600p - 522 50p 2,351 H9/12-28/2/13
Davtd Dupont

317107 3136 - - 52200Qp - 522 50p 3,136 1/19/12 — 28/2/13
Chrs Loughlin

317107 3436 - - 52200p - 522 50p 3,136 119712 - 28/2/13

1 The options held and the exercise price have been adjusted in the ratio three-for-one consequent upon the Company’s share capital split on
31 July 2006

(f) Share price

The market price of the Company’s 40 7p ordinary shares at 31 March 2010 was 522 50p (2002 405 00p) and the range during the year was
404 00p to 549 50p (2008/09 380 75p to 663 00p)

By Order of the Board\\\mw

KEN WOODIER, Group General Counsel & Company Secretary
24 June 2010
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND
INTERNAL CONTROL

INTRODUCTION AND COMPLIANCE

The Board 1s committed to the highest
standards of corporate governance wth the
am of conunuing to enhance its effecuveness
The Annual Reportis the principal means

of reporung to shareholders on the Board's
governance policies This section sets out
how the main and supporting principles

of good corporate governance contained

in Secaen | of the Combined Code (June
2008 version} which apply to the Campany,
have been applted in pracuce The Code s
publicly available on the Financial Reporung
Council website frcpublications com or by
telephontng 020 8247 1264

The Company considers that it has complhed
with the provisions of the Code throughout
the year

The information required to be published

by Rule 72 6R of the LIK Listing Authority's
Dusclosure and Transparency Rules is set out
in the Directors’ Report on page 38

THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

THE BOARD

The Board of Directors at the end of the year
comprised the Chairman, three Executive
Directors and three Non-executive Directors
All three of the Non-execunve Directors

are considered to be Independent as none

of the relanonships or arcumstances set out
in paragraph A 3 | of the Combined Code
apply to them They are also considered to
have the appropnate skills, experience in
their respective disciplines and personality to
bring independent and objectve judgement

to the Board’s deliberauons Gerard Connell
15 the Sentor Independent Non-executive
Director The biographies on page 40
demonstrate a broad range of business and
financial expenence There is a clear division
of responsibilities between the roles of
Chairman and the Chief Execunves of South
West Water and Vindor as recorded in the
descripuons of the roles approved by the
Board All Cirectors are subject to re-election
when they have held office for three years

The Cirectors on the Board during the year
were as lsted in the emoluments table on
page 44 (Directors’ Remuneraton Report)
The Board met in accordance with its
schedule of meetings on twelve occasions
All Crrectors were present at each meeting
with the excepuon of Marun Angle who was
absent on one occasion In accordance wich
Group policies the Board has a schedule

of matters reserved for ts decision and
delegates more detaled considerauon of
certain matters to Board Committees, wo
the subsidiary boards of South West Water
and Vindor; to the Execuuve Directors, and
to the Group General Counse! & Company
Secretary, as appropriate Recognising this
policy, the matters reserved to the Board
include the approval of financial statements,
acquisittons and disposals, major items of
capral expenditure, authority levels for
other expenditure, nsk management, and
approval of the Strategic Pfan and annual
operating budgets

The Board operates by receiving written
reports circulated in advance of its meetings
from the Executve Drrectors and the Group
General Counsel & Company Secretary on
matters within their respecove business
areas in the Group Under the guidance of
the Chairman, all matters before the Board
are discussed openly and presentauons and
adwice are recetved on occasions from other
senior executives within the Group or from
external advisers

Directors have access o the advice and
services of the Group General Counsel

& Company Secretary and the Board has
established a procedure whereby Directors,
in order to fulfil ther duties, may seek
independent professional advice at the
Company's expense The training needs of
Directors are reviewed on a regular basis

The Board has internal procedures to evaluate
the performance of the whole Board, each
Committee, the Chairman, each individual
Director and the Group General Counsel &
Company Secretary The evaluation procedure
relating to the Board and 1ts Committees

was administered for the year by the Group
Genera! Counsel & Company Secretary All
parnicipants’ views were sought on a range of
questions which were specifically designed to
ensure objective evaliauon of performance for
the year 2009/10 The participants’ responses
were then surnmarised and evaluated by

the Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary for the Board and each Committee
to consider and determine whether any
changes should be made to be more effective
Overall performance was considered to be
sausfactory but a number of views expressed
by Directors on the operation of the Board
and certain Committees were considered with
a view to improving performance and overall
governance Anising from the evaluauon the
Board agreed that it would be appropriate to
review the Matters Reserved to the Board and
che financial limies on delegations to Directors

The Board also considered whether there
was aneed In the forthcoming year for

an independent and externally facilitated
performance review to be carnmed out

and noted that the new UK Corporate
Governance Code of the Financial Reportung
Councit which applies to financial years
commencing on or after 29 June 3¢10 stated
that evaluation of the Board should be
externdlly faciltated at least every three years
The Board agreed to consider the opuons
available for an externally facilitated evaluation
later in the year -

The Charman’s performance was evaluated
separately by the Non-executive Cirectors,
led by the Senior independent Non-executive
Director The Chairman’s other significant
commitments outside the Group have not
changed dunng the year and the Board 1s
sausfied that such commitments do not
prejudice the Chairman’s performance in
relaton to his Group role

All Directors are equally accountable for the
proper stewardship of the Group's affars
waith the Non-executve Directors having

a particular responsibibity for ensuning that
strategles proposed for the development of
the business are criucally reviewed The Non-
executive Directors also critically examine
the operational and financial performance of
the Group and fulfil 2 key role in corporate
accountabibty through their membership of
the Committees of the Board In addiwon
the Charman dunng the year holds meeungs
with the Non-execuuve Directors without
the Executive Directors present, to discuss
performance and strategic issues

The Board has in place a procedure for the

consideration and authonisatnon of conflicts

or possible conflicts with the Company's

interests This is in accordance with the

Directors’ interasts provisions of the

Companies Act 2006 and the Comparry's

Arucles of Association which grants to

Directors autherity to approve such conflicts

subject to appropriate condiuons '

Group policies allocate the tasks of giving
detailed considerauon to specified matters, to
maenitonng executive actons and to assessing
reward, to the Board Committees as sat

out overleaf
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was chasred by Gerard
Connell, who has current and relevant
financial expertence The other members of
the Committee were Marun Angle and Dinah
Nichels During the year the Committee

met on five occasions and all members were
present at each meeung with the exception
of Marun Angle who was absent on one
occasion In discharging its Terms of Reference
the Committee receves reports and meets
regularly in partcular to

= monitor the integnty of the financal
stacements of the Group, Including a review
of significant reporung judgements, prior to
approval by the Board,

= keep under review the effecuveness of the
Group’s internal controls, including all
matenal financral, operauonal and
comphance controls and nsk management
systems,

— monitor and annually review the
effectiveness of the Group's internal audic
funcuon and approve the annual internal
audit plan,

~ review the findings of the internal audit
function and review and monitor
management’s responsivenass to such
findings,

— oversee the relatronship with the external
auditors including their appeintment,
remungracon, re-appeinument, remeval,
the monitoring of their independence and
objectvity particularly having regard to the
supply of any non-audit services by the
auditors, and

— receive internal control reports from the
external auditors and meet with them in
the absence of management at least once a
year to discuss their remit and any Issues
arsing from the audit

In addiuon the Commuttee periodically reviews
the arrangements for, and the effecuveness of,
the Group’s ‘whistleblowing” policies (details of
which are set out on page 33 of the Business

Review)

The Committee pays parucular attenoon

to the independence and objectivity of

the auditors having regard to the Audiung
Pracuces Board’s Ethical Standards
Penodically a review of the provision of
external audit services s undertzken in
accordance with gurdance 1ssued by the
Committee The last review was undertaken
in 2006 when the current auditors were
appomnted following the carrying out of 2
detalled compeuuve tender process The
Committee also has an established policy for
the engagement of the auditors for non-audit
work by the Group This involves the Group
Director of Finance setung out in a report
o the Commuttee reasons for appointng

the auditors for any matenal work and
obtaining the approval of the Committee

Such appointment will only be granted if the
Committee 1s sausfied that the auditers’
independence and objectmty are safeguarded
This 1s achieved by reviewing the appointment
wath the auditors as considered approprate
and recerving from the auditors at the year-end
a letter setung out how the auditors believe
thesr ndependence and objecuwity have been
maintained The Company’s current auditors
ensure that the senior partner responsible

for the externa! audit of the Group remains
responsible for such audit for no more than
five years and that there 15 an independent
partner who is involved in planning the audic
and in the reviewing of the final accounts of
the Company including assessing any crnucal
matters which may be 1denufied in the audit
The Audiung Practices Board Ethical Standards
recognise that fee arrangements (both their
nature and size) may give nse to a self interest
threat regarding auditor independence Where
such aircumstances arise there is a need to put
in place appropriate safeguards The auditors
have confirmed to the Committee that they
have complied with all relevant guidance and
have implemented appropnate safeguards
including

* all non-audit related services, where
necessary, being performed by personnel
independent of the audit engagement team,

* no work being undertaken that would
require the auditors to act in a capacity as
an advocate, and

* no aspect of the audit engagement partner’s
performance being assessed on the level of
nen-audit fees charged to the Company

Taking account of the above the Committee
acknowledges that on occasion it 1s necessary
to appoint the auditors to perform non-audic
work in view of their specialist knowledge

of such matters as the financial medelling of
Private Finance Iniwative {PFl) projects There
1s a hmited number of other professional
services firms wath appropnate PFl project
knowdedge and they are often engaged by
other parues to the projects They would
therefore be unable to act for the Company
due to conflicts of interest. This has been a
parucular issue for the Committee and the
Company over the last year because it has
been considered appropriate to engage the
auditors on a number of waste PFis for the
reasons stated above In additon as reported
last year, the auditors provided non-audit
financfal advice in connecuon wath the Greater
Manchester waste PFl which reached financial
close in April 2009 The fees due for successful
completuon of circa £1 2 million are included in
Note 7 to the financial statements on page 74
The auditors are also being considered for
other non-audit work during 2010/11
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The Commuttee has been keeping the balance
between audit and non-audit work under
close review and continues to ensure that

it 1s sausfied the auditors’ independence

and objecuvity ara safeguarded before
granting permission for non-audit work to

be undertaken

The Executive Directors, South West Water
and Vindor Finance Directors, the Group
Financial Controller, the Group Internal
Auditor and the external auditors attend
meetings of the Committee by [nvitation
Provision 1s made for both the external and
internal auditors to have the right of direct
access to the Committee, and in parucular the
Committee Chairman, without the presence
of any Executive Director or other Senier
Management.




REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was chaired
by Marun Angle during the year and also
cormpnrsed Gerard Connell and Dinah Nichols
The Committee met on seven occasions
during the year All members were present at
each meetng. The Committes 1s responsible
for determining the Group's remuneraton
poliey, remuneranon and terms of engagement
of the Chairman and the remuneraccn

and terms of employment of the Executive
Directors and Semior Management of the
Group Members of the Remuneration
Commuttee do not parucipate in decisions
concerning their own remuneragon The
Directors’ Remunerauon Report, which also
provides more imformation on the activities
of the Remunerauon Committee, appears on
pages 4| to 48

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Coemmuttee was chaired by
Ken Harvey and also comprised Martin Angle,
Gerard Connell and Dinah Nichols It meets as
and when required to select and recommend
to the Board suitable candidates for
appomtment as Executive and Non-executive
Directors, determine the nomination process
and review succession plans ltis the pracuce
of the Committee, led by the Charrman, to
appoint an external search consultancy to
assist in any Board appointments  During the
year it met on three accasions to consider
the annual performance evaluation results for
the Commuttee, to review succession planning
for the Group and to consider an Executive
Drirector’s appointment in an advisory role to
an external body All members were present
at each meeung

CORPORATE RESFONSIBILITY
COMMITTEE

The Cerporate Responsibility Committee
was chaired by Dinah Nichols and also
comprised Marun Angle, Gerard Connell and
the Chief Executives of South West Water
and Vindor It met on five occasions during
the year at which all members were present,
The Committee’s duttes, In the context of the
requiremeant for compares to conduct their
business in a responsible manner {iIncluding

1n refaton to environmental, social and
governance (ESG) marters), are to review the
strategies, policies, management, Inuatives,
targets and performance of the Pennen Group
of companues In the areas of occupauonal
health and safety and secunty, environment,
workplace pohces, corporate policies, non-
financral regulatery comphance and the role of
the Group In society

In reporung on corporate responsibilicy, the
Company has sought to comply with the
Assocauon of Bnush Insurers’ Guidelines

on Responsible Investment Disclosure The
Business Review on pages 2 1o 37 contains the

Group's 2010 Annual Corporate Responsibility
Report which includes ESG matters

COMMITTEES’ TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Terms of Reference of the Audit,
Remunerauon, Nominatuon and Corporate
Responsibility Commuttees are avalable

upon request to the Company Secretary and
are also set out on the Company’s website
pennon-group.co.uk

INTERNAL CONTROL

WIDER ASPECTS OF INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board 1s responsible for maintaining

the Group’s system of internal control to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and

the Group’s assets and for reviewing 1ts
effecuveness The system s designed to
manage rather than eiminate the risk of falure
to achieve business objectives and can only
provide reascnable and not absolute assurance
against materral misstatement or loss There ts
an ongoing process for identfying, evaluating
and managing the significant nsks faced by

the Group that has been in place throughout
the financial year 2009/10 and up to the date
of the approval of this Annual Report and
Accounts

The Board confirms that it continues to apply
procedures in accordance with the Combined
Code and the ‘Guidance on Internal Control'
{The Turnbull Guidance) which suggests
means of applying the internal control part

of the Code As part of these procedures
the Board has a formalised nsk managament
palicy which prowides for the identificauon of
key nsks in relation to the achievement of the
business objectives of the Group This policy 1s
apphed by all business unuts within the Group
in accordance with an annual tmetable

RISK IDENTIFICATION

A full nsk and control assessment 1s
undertaken annually by the management of
each business to idenufy financial and non-
financial nsks and 1s continuously updated
Each business compiles (as part of its regular
management reports) an enhanced and
focussed assessment of key nsks against
corporate objectives The Board at each
meeung recerves from the Execuuve Directors
details of any new high-level risks idenufied
and how they are to be managed, together
with details of any changes to existing nisks
and their management The subsidiary Boards
of South West Water and Vindor also receve
at each meeung similar reports in respect of
thetr awn areas of responsibilicy All Executive
Directors and semior managers are required
to cerufy on an annual basis that they have
effective controls in place to manage nsks and
to operate in compliance with legislanon and
Group procedures All of these processes

serve to ensure that a culture of effective
control and nsk management 1s embedded
within the orgamisauon and that the Group

IS I 2 position to react appropriately to pew
risks as they arse Details of key nisks affecung
the Group are set outin the Business Review

INTERNAL CONTROL FRAMEWORK
As well zs the nsk management policy

and procedures of the Group there 1s an
established internal control framework which
1s operated and which applies in relation

to the process for preparing the Group's
consolidated accounts This framework
comprises

(a) aclearly defined structure which delegates
an appropnate level of authonty,
responsibifity and accountabality, mcluding
respensibifity for internal financial contrel,
o management of operaung units,

®

—

a comprehensive budgeung and reporung
funcuon wath an annual budget approved
by the Board of Directers, which also
monitors the financial reporting process,
monthly results and updated forecasts for
the year aganst budget,

(c

—

documented financial control procedures
Managers of operating units are required
to confirm annually that they have
adequate financial controls in operation
and to report all material areas of financal
risk. Compliance with procedures 15
reviewed and tested by the Company's
internal audie funcuon,

(d) an investment apprasal process for
evaluaung proposals for all major capral
expenditure and acquisitions, with defined
levels of approval and a system for
monitoring the progress of capital
projects, and

(e) a post-investment evaluation process for
major capital expenditure and acquisicons
to assess the success of the project and
learn any lessons to be apphed to future
projects

.
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INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW

An evaluaton of the effecuveness of overall
internal control compliance by the Group
15 undertaken in respect of each financial
year (and subsequently up o the date of
this report) to assist the Audit Committee
in considening the Group internal audit plan
for the forthcoming financial year and also
the Business Review for the Annual Report.
The Group General Counsel & Company
Secretary imitally carries out the evaluation
with Directors and Senior Management for
consideration by the Audit Committee and
subsequently for final evaluation by the Board

In addiuon the Audit Committee regularly
reviews the operation and effectiveness of
the internal control framework and annually
reviews the scope of work, authority and
resources of the Company's internal audic
function The Comruttee reports and makes
recommendatens to the Board on such
reviews For 2009/10 and up to the date

of the approval of the Annual Report and
Accounts, both the Audic Commictee and the
Board were sausfied with the effecuveness of
the nsk management policy and the internal
control framewerk and their operaucn wathin
the Group

GOING CONCERN

The Directors consider, after making
approptiate enquiries, that the Company
and the Group have adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future For thus reason they
conunue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
STATEMENT

The Directors are responsible for prepanng
the Annual Report, the Directors’
Remuneration Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law
and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to
prepare financial statements for each financial
year Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group and Company finanaal
statements in accordance with Internatonal
Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS) as
adopted by the European Union The financial
statements are required by law to give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and the Company and of their profits
and cash flows for the year

In preparing these financial statements the
Directors are required to

* select suitable accounung policies and then
apply them consistently

* make judgements and esumates which are
reasonable and prudent

* state that the financial statements comply
with IFRS as adopted by the European
Union

The Directors confirm that they have
complied wath the above requirements in
preparning the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keeping
proper accounting records which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any ume the financial
posiion of the Group and the Company and
to enable them to ensure that the financial
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statements and the Directors’ Remuneration
Repert comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Group financial statements,
arucle 4 of the International Accounung
Standards (lAS) Regulation They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of

the Group and the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevenuon and
detection of fraud and other irregulanities

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board encourages the participation of
shareholders at the Annual General Meeung
and complies with the provisions of the
Combined Code in respect of relauons with
shareholders

A regular difogue with the Company’s
insutunonal shareholders 1s mantaned
thraugh a comprehensive investor relations
programme Dunng the year meetings with
institutional shareholders were heid and
attended by the Group Director of Finance
and the Company’s Investor Relations
Manager On certain cccasions the Chairman,
the Chief Execunve of South West Water and
the Chief Execunve of Viridor also attended
The Group Director of Finance reports to the
Board regularly on major shareholders’ views
about the Company

By Order of the Boqub;.

KEN WOODIER, Group General Counsel
& Company Secretary

24 June 2010




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF PENNON
GROUP PLC

We have audited the financial statements

of Pennon Group Plc for the year ended 31
March 2010 which compnse the Consohdated
income statement, the Group and Company
Saatements of comprehensive income, the
Group and Cempany Balance sheets, the
Group and Company Statements of changes
n equity, the Group and Company Cash

flow statements and the related notes The
financial reporting framewark that has been
appled in chesr preparauon is applicable law
and Internaucnal Financial Reporung Standards
{IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union
and. as regards the parent company financial
statements, as applied In accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITCRS

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibiliues Statement set out on page

52, the directors are respensible for the
preparaunon of the financial scatements and
for being satisfied that they give 2 true and far
view Our responsibility is to audit the financial
sttements in accordance with applicable law
and International Standards on Audiung (UK
and Ireland} Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board s
Echical Standards for Audicors

This repore, including the opinions, has been
prepared for and only for the Company's
members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Pare 16 of the Companies Act
2006 and for no other purpose We do not,
in giving these opinions, accept or assuma
responsibiiity for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report is shown
or into whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consent in
Writing

SCOPE OF THE AUDIT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An audit involves obtaining evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements suffictent o give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are
free frorn material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or errar This includes an
assessment of whether the accounung
policies are approprate to the Group's and
the Company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequacely
disclosed, the reasonableness of significant
accounung esumates made by the Directors,
and the overall presentaticn of the financial
stmtements

OPINION ON FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

In our opinion

« the financial statements give a tree and
fair view of the state of the Group’s and of
the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2010
and of the Group's profit and Group's and
Company s cash flows for the year then
ended,

= the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance wrth IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union,

* the Company financial staternents have been
properly prepared in accordance wrth [FRSs
as adopted by the European Union and as
apphed in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006, and

» the financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the requirements of the
Compames Act 2006 and, as regards the
Group financral statements, Arucle 4 of the
1AS Regulauon

OPINION ON OTHER MATTERS
PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2006

In our epinion

= the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properiy
prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006,

* the information given in the Directors’
Report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared s
consistent with the financial statements, and

+ the nformation given in the Corporate
Governance Statement set out on pages 49
to 52 with respect to internal contreol and
nsk management systems and about share
capital structures is consistent with the
financral statements

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE
REQUIRED TO REPORT BY
EXCEPTION

We have nothing to report in respect of the
following

Under the Comparies Act 2006 we are
required to report to you if, In our opimion

+ adequate accounung records have not been
kept by the Company, or returns adequate
for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

+ the Company finanaal statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneranon Repert
to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounung records and returns, or

* cerwain disclosures of Directors'
remuneration specified by law are not
made, or

* we have not received ail the information and
explanauons we require for our audit, or

* acorporate governance statement has not
been prepared by the Company

Under the Lisung Rules we are required to
review

+ the Direcrors’ statement, seg cut on
page 29, in relanion to gong concern, and

+ the parts of the Corporate Governance
Suatement relating o the Company's
complance with the nine provisions of the
June 2008 Combined Code specified for

ur review,, C’_\—_\

/ ————————
David Charles (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Chartered Accountants and

Statutory Auditers

Bristol

24 June 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

010 2009
{Restated note 5)
Notes Im m
Revenue 6 1,068.9 9582
Operating costs 7
Manpower costs {excluding restructuring costs) (1323) (108 6)
Raw materials and consumables used (76.3) (59 1)
Other operating expenses (455 &) (402 2)
Depreciauon (135 1) {131 3)
Restructuring costs (50) (50)
Amorusation of intangibles (0 3) (2
Qperating profit 6 2643 2508
Finance income 8 4.4 458
Finance costs 8 (116.0) (1380)
Share of post-tax profit from joint venwres 1.1 08
Profit before tax [ 183.8 1594
Taxauon 9 (44.3) {69 6)
Profit for the year 1395 898
Profit artributable to equity shareholders 139 5 898
Earnings per share (pence per share) I
— Basic 399 258
— Diluted 39.7 257

The notes on pages 5% to 108 form part of these financial statements
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Greup Company
2010 1009 010 2009
(Restated note 5)
Notes im im im tm
Profit for the year 1395 8%8 816 1401
Other comprehensive income
Actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes 29 (44 4) (668) {43) 80}
Cash flow hedges
Net far value (losses)/gains - (210) 1t 19
Share of other comprehensive foss from jeint ventures (31 - - -
Tax on tems taken directy to or transferred from equity 930 174 187 09 22
Other comprehensive loss for the period net of tax 35 (3012) (69 1) {13) 77N
Total comprehensive income for the year 1093 07 793 1324
Total comprehensive income attributable to equity shareholders 1093 207 793 1324

The notes on pages 59 to 108 form part of these fimancial statements
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BALANCE SHEETS AT 31 MARCH 20(0

Group Company
2010 2009 2008 2010 2009
{Restated note 5) {Restated nate 5)
Notes £m £m £m im £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill 5 254.4 2365 2359 - -
Other intangible assets 6 5.1 54 66 - -
Property plant and equipment 17 2,8227 2,7458 26447 02 02
Qther non-current assets 19 101 0 462 84 3385 2713
Derwvative financiab instruments 23 - 02 40 - -
Deferred tax assets 30 - - - 50 26
Investments in subsidiary undertakings 20 - - - 1,032.0 9448
Investments 1n joInt ventures 20 02 12 14 - -
3,183.4 3,0363 29310 1,375 7 1.2189
Current assets
Inventories 21 64 58 66 - -
Trade and other recevables by 1949 1783 1647 84,5 702
Dervative financial instruments 23 34 - 19 34 -
Current tax recoverable 26 - - - 13 14
Cash and cash deposits . 24 4939 3533 3574 1746 1687
698 6 5374 5406 2538 2413
Liabilities
Current habilities
Borrowings 27 (229 0) (2629) (577) (3512) (486 0}
Dervative financial instruments 23 (3 6) (36) {170) - (1 4)
Trade and other payables 25 (195 8) (166 8) (204 0) (173) (76)
Current tax habihties 26 (83 &) (44 8) {44 1) - -
Provisions 3l (21 5) (188) (181) - -
(533 5) (496 9) (340 9) (368 5) (4950)
Net current assets/(habilities) 165 1 405 1997 {104 7) {283 7)
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 27 (2,160 2) (1,982 4) (2.062.8) (462 8) (1895)
Other non-current liabilities 28 (16 0) (37) 40) a7 87
Derwvative financial instruments 23 (14 1) (165) 05) - -
Retiremnent benefit obligaucns 29 (107 9) (66 0) (263) (rn (73)
Deferred tax labilities 30 (311 2) (328 4) (307 4) - -
Provisions 3| (78.2) (79 2) (842) - -
(2,687.6) (2476 2) (2,4852) (4831 (205 5)
Net assets 660 9 800 6 6455 7878 7597
Shareholders’ eqguity
Share capital 2 145 3 1445 1445 1453 1445
Share premwum account i3 0% 17z 7y 109 7
Capital redemption reserve 4 144 2 144 2 1442 1442 144 2
Retained earnings and other reserves 15 3605 3002 345 | 487 4 45913
Total shareholders’ equity 6609 5006 6455 7878 7597

The notes on pages 5% to 108 form part of these financial statements
The financial statements on pages 54 to 108 were approved by the Board of Directors and zuthorised for 1ssue on 24 June 2010 and
were signed on its behalf b

K G HARVEY Chairman

Pennon Group Plc Registered Office Perunsula House, Ryddnrtine, Exeter, Devon, England EX2 7HR Regstered in England No 2366640
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Capieal  Retaned earnings Total equitya
Share premium redemption  and other reserves {Restated
Share capital account reserve (Restated note 5) note 5)
Group Em £m £m £m £m
Ac | April 2008 1445 17 1442 345 | 6455
Profit for the year - - - 898 898
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (69 1) (69 1)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 207 207
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dradends paid or approved - - - 49 1) (69 1)
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments - - - 19 19
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 16 16
Total transacuons with equity shareholders - - - (65 6) (65 8)
Ac 31 March 2009 1445 17 1442 3002 6006
Profit for the year - - - 1395 1395
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - (302) {30 2)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 149 3 1093
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dwvidends paid or approved - - - (734) 734)
Adjustment for shares issued under the scrip
dwidend alternative 08 08) - 96 96
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments - - - 29 29
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - - 19 19
Equity component of convertible bond 1ssued - - - 100 190
Total transacuons with equity shareholders 08 08) - {490) (490}
At 31 March 2010 1453 10.9 144 2 360.5 660 %
Capita
Share premivm redemption  Retained earmings
Share capital account reserve  and other reserves Total oquity
Company im 4] im Em £m
At | April 2008 1445 17 1442 3940 694 4
Profit for the year - - - 140 1 140 1
Other comprehensive loss for the year - - - 7N (V]
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year - - - 1324 1324
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dividends paid or approved - - - (691) {69 1)
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments - - - 04 04
Proceeds from treasury shares re-1ssued - - - 16 16
Total transacuons with equity shareheolders - - - {67 1) (67 1)
At 31 March 2009 1445 1z 1442 4593 7597
Profit for the year - - - 816 8l 6
QOther comprehensive foss for the year - - - 2y (23)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 793 793
Transactions with equity shareholders
Dmidends paid or approved - - - (734) (73 4)
Adjustment for shares 1ssued under the scrp -
dividend alternative 08 {0B) - 96 96
Adjustment in respect of share-based payments - - - 07 o7
Proceeds frem treasury shares re-issued - - - 19 19
Equity component of converuble band issued - - - 100 100
Total ransacuions with equity shareholders 08 {@8) - (512) (512)
At 3| March 2010 145.3 10.9 144 2 487 4 7878

The notes on pages 59 to 108 form part of these financial statements




CASH FLOW STATEMENTS FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Group Company
1010 2009 010 1009
{Restated note 5)

Notes £m £m £m £m
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated/{outflow) from operauons 36 363 4 30086 (113 8) (58)
Interest paid (8412) (103%) (17 4) (484)
Tax (paid)/repaid 38) (30 8) 0 2) 60
Net cash generated/{outflow) from operating activities 2754 1659 {133 4) (482)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 145 238 20.7 226
Dividends recerved - - 80.6 128 6
Acquisiion of subsidiary undertakings (net of cash acquired) 38 %3 (34 - -
Investments i subsidiary undertakings @ - (45 0) -
Loans advanced to joint ventures (307) - - -
Proceeds from investment disposal - - - 1000
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1952) (2379 @©1 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 35 16 - -
Net cash (used in}/from investing actties (2173) (2149) 562 2512
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued 19 16 19 16
Convertible bond 1ssued (net proceeds) I21¢9 - 1219 -
{Deposit)/return of restricted funds (net) (T33) 930 (0 5) (¢3)
Proceeds from new borrowing 23712 1000 2389 3049
Repayment of borrowings (234 9) (149) (115 8) (3214)
Finance lease sale and lease back 89 498 - -
Finance lease principal repayments (185) (16 8) - -
Drndends paid 12 (638) 1) {63 8) {69 1)
Net cash received/{outflow) from financing activities 94 143 6 826 {84 3)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents &75 946 5.4 1187
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 24 3220 227 4 16T 8 49 |
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 24 3895 o 173 2 1678

The notes on pages 59 to 108 form part of these financial statements
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NOTESTOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. GENERAL INFORMATION

Pennon Group Plc 1s a company incorporated in the United Kingdom under the Companues Act 2006 The address of the registered office
1s given on page 40 Pennon Group's business i1s operated through two main subsidiaries South West Water Limited holds the water and

sewerage services appointments for Devon, Cornwall and parts of Dorset and Somerset. Vindor Limited's business 1s waste management,

recycling and renewable energy

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below These pohcies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented

(a) Basis of preparation

These financral statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and International
Financial Reporung Interpretations Commuttee {IFRIC) interpretations as adopted by the European Union, wath those parts of

the Compantes Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and the requirements of the Financial Services Authority

A summary of the principal accounting policies 1s set out below, together with an explanauon where changes have been made to
previous pohces on the adoption of new accounting standards and interpretauons in the year

The following revisions and amendments to existing standards together with new standards and interpretations have been adopted as
of | April 2009 and are relevant te the Group

IAS | “Presentation of financial statements” (revised}

The revised standard requires nan-owner changes in equity to be presented separately from owner changes in equity The Group has
elected to present two statements, an income statement and a statement of comprehenswe ncome

IFRS 7 “Fwancial Instruments Disclosures” (amendment)

The amended standard requires the classification of fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance
of the inputs used in making the measurement. Additional disclosure has been made In these financial statements

IFRS B “Operating segments”

The adopuon of this standard has not required any change in reported segments

IFRIC 14 “IAS |9 — the hmit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and ther interaction”

The apphcaton of this interpretation restricts the arcumstances under which a defined benefit scheme asset (surplus) may be recognised
During the year the Group’s acquisition of Greater Manchester Waste Linuted involved two defined benefit pension schemes which had a
combined surplus of £6 9m at 3| March 2010 Thus surplus was not recogmised in accordance with requirerents of IFRIC 14

The following new interpretation 1s mandatery for the first time n the financial year beginming | April 2009 and the Group’s
accounting policies have been amended accordingly:

IFRIC 12 “Service concession arrangements”

The applicauon of this interpretation has necessitated a restatement of amounts for prior years Where a contract for the provision
of public services meets the scope of IFRIC |2 the service concession 1s to be treated as a contract receivable, split between the
profit on the construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance through interest receivable The Group’s existing
contract with West Sussex County Council for the provision of waste collection and disposal services falls within the scope of IFRIC
12 and accordingly comparatives have been restated The effect of the restatement on the comparauve figures is set out 1n note 5

The following revised standards, amended standards and interpretatuons, which are mandatory for the first ume in the financial year
beginming | April 2009, are relevant to the Group but have no materal impact.

IAS 23 “Borrowing costs” (revised)

IFRS 2 “Share-based payment” {amendment)

IAS 32 “Financial instruments presentauon” {amendment} and consequential amendments to IAS 1
“Presentation of financial statements™

Improvements to IFRS 2008

1AS 3% “Financial instruments recogmtion and measurement” (amendment)

1AS 33 “Financial instruments recognition and measurement” (amendment) and consequential amendments to IFRS 7 “Fiancial
instruments disclosures”

IFRIC9 “Embedded dervates” (amendments to IFRIC 9 and |AS 39)

& 1AS 39
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

At the date of approval of these financial statements the following revised standards, amended standards and interpretations, which
have not been applied in these financial statements, were in 1ssue, but not yet effective

IAS 27  “Consolidated and separate financial statements” {revised)
IFRS 3 “Business combinations” {revised)

Improvements to IFRS 2009

IFRS | “First-ume adoption of IFRS” (revised)

IFRS2  “Share-based payment” {amendment)

IAS32  “Financial instruments presentation”

IFRS ¢  "Financial instruments”

IAS 24 “Related party disclosures”

IFRS | “First-time adoption of IFRS” (amendment)

IFRIC |4 “Prepayments of a minimum funding requirement” (amendment)
IFRIC IS “Agreements for the construction of real estate”

IFRIC 16 *Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation”

IFRIC |7 “Distribution of non-cash assets to owners”

IFRIC 18 “Transfers of assets from customers”

IFRIC |9 “Extnguishing financial habilities with equity instruments™

The prasentational impact of these standards and interpretations i1s being assessed The Directors expect that the adoption of these
standards and interpretations will have no matenal impact on the financial statements of the Group

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the use of estimates

and assumptions which affect the reported amounts of assets and labiliues at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporung period Although these esumates are based on management’s best assessment
of the amounts, actual events or actions and results may ulumately differ from those estimates

(b) Basis of consolidation
The Group financial statements include the results of Pennon Group Plc and its subsidiary and joint venture undertakings

The results of subsidiaries and joint venture undertakings are included from the date of acquisibon or ncorporation, and excluded from
the date of disposal The results of subsidiaries are consolidated where the Group has the power to control a subsidiary The resuits of
joint venture undertakings are accounted for on an equity basis where the Group exercises joint control under a contractual arrangement.

Intra-group trading and loan balances and transactions are eliminated on consolidation

On acquisiuon the assets and habilimes and contingent labilies of a subsidiary or joint venture acquired are measured at their fair
values and any excess of the cost of acquisition over the far values of the idenufiable net assets acquired s recognised as goodwill
Where the cost of acquisition 1s below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired a credit 1s recognised in the income
staternent in the year of acquisition

(<) Revenue recognition

Revenue represents the farr value of consideration recevable, excluding value added tax, trade discounts and inter company sales, in
the ordinary course of business for goads and services provided

Revenue Is recognised once the services or goods have been provided to the customer

Income from main water and waste water charges includes billed amounts for estimated usage and also an estmation of the amount of
unbilled charges at the period end based upon a defined methodology reflecting historical consumption and current tariffs

Income from electricity generated from waste management landfill gas production includes an estmation of the amount to be received
under renewables obligation certificates

Accrued mncome from waste management contracts at the Balance Sheet date Is recognised using management's expectation of
amounts to be subsaquently billed for services rendered to the chent in accordance with the terms of the contract

Income from recychng activities within waste management includes amounts based upon market prices for recyclate products and
industry schemes for waste electrical and electronic equipment (“VWEEE" notes) and packaging volumes ("PRNs") processed
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NOTESTOTHE AINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES contnued

(<) Revenue recognition contnued

Revenue from long-term service concession arrangements 15 recognised based on the fair value of work performed Where an
arrangement includes more than one service, such as construction and operation of waste management facihtes, revenue and profit are
recogrused i proportion to a fair value assessmeant of the total contract value split across the serwice provided

Interest tncome Is recognised on a time-apportioned basis using the effective interest method
(d) Landfill tax

Landfill tax is included within both revenue and operating costs It 1s determined by the Government and s a cost to the Group but 1s
chargeable to customers

(e) Segmental reporting

Each of the Group’s business segments provides services which are subject to risks and returns which are different from those of the
other business segments The Group's internal organisaton and management structure and 1ts system of internal financial reporuing i1s
based primarily on business segments The principal business segments comprise the regulated water and sewerage services
undertaken by South West Water Limited and the waste management business of Virdor Limited Segmental revenue and results
include transactions between businesses Inter-segmental transactions are eliminated on consohdation

{ Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consclidaton from the acquisition of subsidiary and joint venture undertakings represents the excess of the
purchase consideration over the fair value of net assets acquired

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually Any impawment 1s recognised immediately in the
income statement and (s not subsequently reversed Further details are contined in accounting policy ()}

When a subsidiary or joint venture undertaking 1s sold, the profit or loss on disposal 15 determined after including the attributable
amount of unamortised goadwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before | April 2004 (the Group’s date of transition to IFRS) has been retained at the previous UK GAAP
armounts, subject to being tested for impairment at that date and annually thereafter Goodwill written-off to reserves under UK GAAP
prior to 1998 was not renstated on transiuon to IFRS and wall not be included in determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

(g) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets acquired m a business combination are capitalised at fair value at the date of acquisition Following mitial
recognition, finite bfe intangible assets are amorused on a straight-line basis over thewr esumated useful economic lives, with the
expense taken to the income statement through operating costs

{h) Property, plant and equipment
i) Infrastructure assets (being water mains and sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage reservairs, dams, pipefines and sea outfalls)

Infrastructure assets were included at far value on transition to IFRS and subsequent additions are recorded at cost less accumulated
depreciation Expenditure to increase capacity or enhance infrastructure assets 1s capttalised where it can be reliably measured and

it 15 probable that incremental future economic benefits will flow to the entuty The cost of day-to-day servicing of infrastructure
components 15 recogmised i the income statement as it arises

Infrastructure assets are depreciated over their useful economic lives, and are principally

Dams and impounding reservoirs 200 years i
Water mains 40 - 100 years
Sewers 40 - 100 years

Assets In the course of construction are not depreciated untl commssioned
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(h) Property, plant and equipment continued
) Landfill stes

Landfill sites are included within land and buildings at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost includes acqusinon and development
expenses The cost of a landfill 1s depreciated to its residual value (which 15 linked to gas production at the site post-closure) over its
estimated operational life taking account of the usage of void space

Where the obligation to restore a landfill site i1s an integral part of its future economic benefits, a non-current asset within property,
plant and equipment 15 recognised The asset recognised 1s depreciated based on the usage of void space

m) Qther assets (including properties, overground plant and equipment)
Other assets are included at cost less accumulated deprecraton

Freehold 1and i1s not depreciated Other assets are depreciated evenly to their residual value over their esumated economic hives, and
are principally

Freehold builldings 30 - 60 years
Leasehold bulldings Over their esumated economic lives or the finance lease perod, whichever 1s the shorter
Cperational structures 40 — 80 years
Fixed plant 20 - 40 years

Vehicles, mobile plant and computers 3 - 10 years
Assets in the course of construction are not depreciated until commissioned

The cost of assets ncludes directly actributable labour and overhead costs which are incremental to the Group Borrowing costs
directly attributable to the construction of a qualfying asset {an asset necessanly taking a substantial period of time to be prepared for
its mtended use) are capitahised as part of the asset.

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually

{1) Leased assets

Assets held under finance leases are included as property, plant and equipment at the lower of their fair value at commencement or
the present value of the mimimum lease payments and are depreciated over their estimated economic lives or the finance lease period,
whichever is the shorter The correspanding liability 1s recorded as borrowings The interest element of the rental costs i1s charged
against profits using the actuarial method over the period of the lease

Rental costs arising under operaung leases are charged against profits in the year they are incurred

(j) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets with an indefinite useful life are not subject to amorusation and are tested annually for impairment, or whenever events or
changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable

Assets subject to amortisation or depreciation are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances ind:cate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable

An impairment loss 15 recognised for the amount by which an asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverzble amount 1s the higher of an asset’s fair value, less costs to sell, and value in use For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separarely identifiable cash flows {cash-generating units) Value in use
represents the present value of projected future cash flows expected to be derived from a cash-generating unit, discounted using a_
pre-tax discount rate which reflects an assessment of the market cost of capital of the cash-generating unit.

Impairments are charged to the income statement in the year in which they arise

(k) Investment in subsidiary undertakings

Investments 1n subsidiary undertakings are imiuially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration paid, including associated
acquision costs Subsequently, investments are reviewed for impairment on an indwidual basis annually or if events or changes m
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be fully recoverable

P 62 | PENNON GROUP ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS | 2010




NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(I} Joint ventures

Joine ventures are enuues over which the Group exercises joint control [nvestments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the farr values of the identifiable net assets of the joint
venture at the date of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill and 1s included in the carrying value of the nvestment in the joint venture

The carrying value of the Group’s investment 1s adjusted for the Group's share of post-acquisition profits or losses recognised in
the income statement and statement of comprehensive income Losses of a joint venture in excess of the Group’s interest are not
recogrised unless the Group has a fegal or constructive obligation te fund those losses

{m) Cash and cash deposits

Cash and cash deposits comprise cash in hand and short-term deposits held at banks. Bank overdrafts are shown within current borrowings

(n) Derivatives and other financial instruments
The Group classifies its financial instrurments in the following categores
1} Loans and recewables

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at far value, net of transacuon costs incurred Following initial recognition interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the instruments are derecognised or impatred Premia, discounts and
other costs and fees are recognised in the income statement through the amorusation process

Borrowings are classified as current lisbilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the hability for at least
12 months after the balance sheet date

The far value of the lability component of a convertible bond Is determined using the markeat interest rate for an equivalent non-convertble
bond This amount 1s recorded as a llabibity on an amorused cost basis using the effective interest methed unul extinguished on conversion or
maturity of the bonds, The remainder of the proceeds are allocated to the conversion option Thus 15 recognised in shareholders’ equity

1) Denvouve financial instruments and hedging activitres

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, principally interest rate swaps, to hedge risks associated with interest rate
fluctuations Dervative instruments are inimally recognised at far value on the date the dervative contract is entered into and
subsequently remeasured at fair value for the reported balance sheet

The gain or loss on remeasurement is taken to the income statement except for cash flow hedges which meet the condinons for
hedge accounting, when the portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument which 1s determined to be an effective hedge 15
recognised directly in equity, and the ineffective poruon in the income statement. The guns or losses deferred in equity in this way are
subsequently recognised in the income statement in the same period i1 which the hedged underlying transaction or firm commitment
i5 recogmsed in the mcome statement.

In arder to qualify for hedge accountung the Group s required to document w advance the relavonship between the item bewng
hedged and the hedging instrument. The Group s also required to document and demonstrate an assessment of the relationship
between the hedged tem and the hedging nstrument which shows that the hedge will be highly effective on an ongoing basis This
effectiveness testing 15 reperformed at the end of each reporung peried to ensure that the hedge remains highly effecuve

The full farr value of a hedging derivauve 1s classified as a non-current asset or liability when the remaining matunity of the hedged item
15 more than one year, and as a current asset or hability when the remaiming maturity of the hedged item 15 less than one year

Derwatve financial instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounung are classified as a current asset or lability with any change in
farr value recogmised immediately in the income statement.

m) Trade recervables

Trade recewvables do not carry any interest and are recognised inially at fair value and subsequently at amorused cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade recevables 15 established when there 1s
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to cellect all amounts due according to the original terms of the recevables
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(n) Derivatives and other financial instruments contnued
v} Trade payables

Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are recognised inually at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method

(o) Taxation including deferred tax

The tax charge for the year is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date
Deferred tax i1s provided in full using the lability method on temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements A deferred tax asset 1s only recognised to the extent it is probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be avatlable in the future for it tc be utilised

{p) Provisions

Provisions are made where there 1s a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it 1s probable that there
will be an outflow of economic benefits to settle this obligation and a rehiable esumate of this amount can be made Where the effect
of the time value of money 1s material the current amount of a provision 1s the present value of the expenditures expected to be
required to settle obligations The unwinding of the discount to present value 1s included as a financial item within finance costs

The Group’s policies on provisions for specific areas are
1) Landfill restorgtion costs

Provisions for the cost of restoring landfill sites are made when the obligation arises VWhere the obligation recognised as a provision
gives access to future economic benefits, an asset in property, plant and equipment 1s recognised Provisions are otherwise charged
aganst profits

i} Enwvironmental control and aftercare costs

Environmental control and aftercare costs are incurred during the operational life of each landfill site and for a considerable period
thereafter Provision for all such costs 1s made over the operational life of the site and charged to the income statement on the basis of
the usage of void space at the site

i) Restructuring costs

Provisions for restructuring costs are recognised when a detailed formal plan for the restructuring has been communicated to
affected parties

Where the effect of the tme value of money 1s material the current amount of a provision 1s the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle chligations The unwinding of the discount to present value Is included as 2 financial item within
fimance costs

(q) Share capital and treasury shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

V¥here the Company purchases the Company’s equity share capital (treasury shares) the consideration pad, including any directly
attributable costs, 15 deducted from equity until the shares are cancelled or reissued Where such shares are subsequently re-issued
any consideration received, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, 1s included in equity

The Group balance sheet includes the shares held by the Pennon Employee Share Trust and which have not vested by the balance
sheet date These are shown as a deduction from shareholders’ equity until such ume as they vest.

(r) Dividend distributions

Dwidend distributions are recognised as a liabilicy in the financial statements in the peried 1n which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders Interim dividends are recognised when paid, final dividends when approved by shareholders ac the Annual
General Meeting
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

(s) Employee benefits
) Retirement benefit obligations
The Group operates defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes

Defined benefit pension schemes

Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using bid price Defined benefit pension scheme habilities are measured by
independent actuaries who advise on the selection of Directors’ best estimates The projected unit credit method 15 employed and
habiliues discounted at the current rate of return on high quality corporate bonds of equivalent term to the labilities The increase
in habiliues of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes expected to arise from employee service in the period 15 charged against
operatng profit.

The expected return on scheme assets and the increase during the period in the present value of scheme habilities are included in other
finance Income or cost.

Past service costs arsing from changes in benefits are recognised immediately in income

Actuarial gains and losses anising from experience items and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity through
inclusion 1n the statement of comprehensive iIncome

Defined contribution scheme
Costs of the defined contrmbution pension scheme are charged to the income statement in the peried in which they arise

u} Share-based payment

The Group operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment plans for employees The farr value of the employee services
required in exchange for the grant 1s recogrised as an expense over the vesting period of the grant.

Fair values are calculated using an appropriate pricing model Non market-based vesung condiions are adjusted for in assumptions as
to the number of shares which are expected to vest

(t) Pre-contract costs

Pre-contract costs are expensed as incurred, except where it 1s probable that the contract will be awarded, in which case they are
recognised as an asset which 1s amortised to the income statement over the hfe of the contract.

{u) Fair values

The fair value of the interest rate swaps I1s based on the market price of comparable struments at the balance sheet date if they are
publicly traded

The fair values of short-term depeosits, loans and overdrafts with a matunity of less than one year are assumed to approximate to
their book values In the case of non-current bank loans and other lcans the far value of financial liabilictes for disclosure purposes
15 estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate avalable to the Group for similar
financial instruments

{v) Service concession arrangements

Where the provision of waste management services 1s performed through a contract with a public sector entity who controls a
significant residual interest in asset infrastructure at the end of the contract, then consideration s treated as contract receivables, spht
between profit on the construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance recognised as interest recervable
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks market risk (interest rate risk}, liquidity risk and credit risk. The Group’s
treasury function seeks to ensure that sufficient funding 1s available to meet foreseeable needs, maintains reasonable headroom for
conungencies and manages inflaton and interest rate risk.

The principal financial risks faced by the Group relate to nterest rate and counterparty credit risk,

These nisks and treasury operations are managed by the Group Director of Finance in accordance with policies established by the
Board Major transactions are individually approved by the Board Treasury activities are reported to the Board and are subject to
review by internal audit.

Financial instruments are used to raise finance, manage risk and optimise the use of surplus funds The Group does not engage in
speculative activity

i} Market nsk

The Group has a policy of maintaining az least 50% of interest bearing habilities at fixed rates The Group uses a combination of fixed
rate and index-hnked borrowings and fixed rate interest swaps as cash flow hedges of future variable interest payments to achieve

this policy At the year end 65% of net borrowings were at fixed rates {including 50% of South West Warer's borrowings fixed for the
period to March 2015) and 23% index-linked after the impact of financial derivatives The notional principal amounts of the interest rate
swaps are used to determine settlement under those swaps and are not therefore an exposure for the Group These instruments are
analysed in note 27

The interest rate for index-linked debt 1s based upen an RPl measure which is also used in determining the amount of income from
customers in South West Water

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets upen which the net return fluctuates from market risk Deposit interest recevable
is expected to fluctuate in hne with interest payable on floating rate borrowings Consequently the Group's inceme and operating cash
flows are substantally independent of changes in market interest rates

For 2010 f interest rates an net borrowings had been on average 0 5% higher/lower with all cther variables held constant, post-tax
profit for the year would have decreasedfincreased by £2 3m (2009 £2 Om)

u  Ligudity nsk

The Group actively mantans 2 mixture of long-term and short-term committed facilities which are designed to ensure the Group has
significant available funds for cperavons and planned expansions equivalent to at least one year's forecast requirements art all times
Details of undrawn committed facihties and short-term uncommitted facilities are provided in note 27

Refinancing risk s managed under a Group policy that permits no more than 20% of Group net borrawings to mature in any ‘
financial year
\

The Group and South West Water have entered into covenants with lenders Whilst terms vary, these typically provide for mits on
gearing {primarily based on South West Water Limited’s Regulatory Capital Value and Viridor Limited’s EBITDA) and interest cover
More details are provided in the Directors’ Report on page 31
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

{a) Financial risk factors contmued

u}  Liquidity risk (continued)

Contractual undiscounted cash flows were

Cue withun Dus batween Due between Over 5§ Towl
1 year | and 2 years 2and 5 years years
fm &m m £m n

Group
31 March 2010
Non-derivative financial habdties
Borrowings excluding finance lease habiliues 1973 317 4252 94% 6 1,603 8
Interest payments on borrowngs 271 229 410 3482 441 2
Finance fease liabiliues 459 470 1937 3229 24105
Denvative finencal habiiues
Derivative contracts — net payments 143 83 129 - 355
31 March 2009
Non-dervative finanaal habiities
Borrowings excluding finance lease labiliues 2318 1941 733 937 4 | 497 6
Interest payments on borrowings 240 178 325 367 4 4417
Finance lease liabilides 623 622 2646 19511 23402
Demvative financial habilities
Cenvauve contracts ~ net payments I79 44 32 03 258
Company
31 March 2010
Non-denvatve finanaal habiities
Borrowings excluding finance lease habiliues 706 106 3519 998 5329
Interest payments on borrowings 193 145 139 - 477
31 March 2009
Non-denivative finanaal habiities
Borrowings excluding finance lease liabitiues 2058 800 100 1000 3958
Interest payments on borrowmngs 113 72 Q1 - 186
Dervative financial abiities
Dervative contracts — net payments 15 - - - 15

w} Credit nisk

Credit and counterparty risk anses from cash and cash deposits, dervative financral instruments and deposits with bank and
financral insututions, as well as exposure to customers, including outstanding receivables Further information on the credit risk
relating to trade receivables 1s given in note 22

Counterparty risk arises from the investment of surplus funds and from the use of derivative financial instruments The Board has
agreed a policy for managing such risk which 1s controlled through credit hmits, counterparty approvals, and rigorous monitoring
procedures The Group has no other significant concentration of credit risk. The Group's surplus funds are usually placed in
short-term fixed interest depeosits or the overmght money markets Deposit counterparties must meet a credit raung threshold
set by the Board of Aa2 (Moody's) or AA (Standard and Poor’s)

wv} Foreign currency nisk
Foreign currency risk occurs at transacuional and translauon level from borrowings in foreign currencies These risks are managed
through cross-currency interest rate swaps whrch provide certainty over all interest and principal repayments
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT continued

{b) Capital nsk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to conunue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an opumal capital structure to minimise the cost of capital

In order to maintain or adjust the capunal structure the Group seeks to mantain a balance of returns to shareholders through
dividends and an appropriate capital structure of debt and equity for each business segment and the Group

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing rauo This rauo is cafculated as net borrowings divided by tol capital Net
borrowings are analysed in note 37 and calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash deposits Total capral 1s calculated as total
shareholders’ equity plus net borrowings

The gearing ratios at the balance sheet date were

1040 2009

[Restated note 5)

im £m

Net borrowings (note 37) 1,8953 1,8920

Toul shareholders’ equity 660 9 600 &

Toral capital 2,556 2 24916
Gearing Rue T4 1% 759%

South West Water Limited 1s also monitored on the basis of the ratio of its net borrowings to Regulatory Capital Value Ofwat's
epumum range for gearing 1s 55% — 65%

The Group has entered into covenants with lenders, whilst terms vary, these typically prowvide for limits on gearing and interest
cover The Group has been in comphance with its covenants during the year

2010 2009

£m m

Regulatory Capital Value 2,555 0 24610

Net borrowings 1,547 2 1,571 |
Net borrowings/Regulatory Capital Value &0 6% 63 8%

(c) Determination of fair values

Effecuve | April 2009 The Group adopted the amendment to IFRS 7 for financial instruments which are measured in the balance
sheet at fair value This requires disclosure of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or habilives (level 1)

+ Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly {that s,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market darta (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The disclosures are set out in note 23

The far value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and avallable-for-sale securities) 15 based on quoted
market prices at the balance sheet date The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group s the current bid price

The fair value of financial instruments not traded 1n an active market (for example over-the-counter derivatves) 1s determined by
using valvauon techniques A variety of methods and assumpuons are used based on market condiuons exisung at each balance
sheet date Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for Jong-term debt Other techniques, such as
estmated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial nstruments The fair value of interest
rate swaps s calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows

The carrying values less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate to their fair values
The fair value of financial abilities 15 esumated by discounung the future contractuzl cash flows at the current market interest rate
available to the Group for similar financial instruments

\
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The Group's principal accounting policies are set out n note 2 Management 1s required to exercise significant judgement and make
use of estmates and assumptions in the application of these polcies

Areas which manpagement believes require the most criucal accounung judgements are

Underlying business performance

Underlying business performance 1s presented to provide a more useful companison of business trends and performance The
term underlying 1s not a defined term under IFRS, and may not be comparable with similarly-uded profit measurements reported
by other companies Reconciliations between underlying and reported measures are included in the Directors’ Report on page 5
and in note | | for earnings per share

Environmental and landfill restoration provisions

Restorauon and aftercare provisions are recognised in the financal statements at the net prasent value of the esumated future
expenditure required to setde the Group's restoration and aftercare obligatons A discount 1s apphed to recognise the ume value of
money and s unwound over the life of the provision This is included in the income statement as a financial item within finance costs
As at 31 March 2010 the Group's environmental and landfill restoration provisions were £96 4m

Where a provision gives access to future economic benefits, an asset Is recognised and depreciated in accordance with the Group's
depreciation policy

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

The Group capitalises material borrowing costs directly attributable to the constructuon of qualifying assets (assets necessarily
taking a substantial period of time to be prepared for their intended use) At the balance sheet date only the assets under
construction in the joint ventures for the constructuon of Energy from Waste plants meet the criteria for capitahisation of related
borrowing costs

Retirement benefit abligations
The Group operates defined benefit pension schemes for which actuarial valuations are carried out as determined by the trustees
at intervals of not more than three years

The pension cost under IAS {9 15 assessed in accordance with Directors’ best estmates using the advice of an independent
qualified actuary and assumptions in the latest actuarial valuation The assumptions are based on information supplied to the
actuary, supplemented by discussions between the actuary and management. The principal assumptions used to measure schemes’
habihities, sensiuvities to changes in assumpuons and future funding cbligations are set out in note 29 of the financral statements

Cash-generating units

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identfiable
cash flows (cash-generating units) The waste management segment (s considered to be a single cash-generating umit as it s an
tntegrated business

Areas which management believes require the most critcal accounting estimations are

Service concession arrangements

Consideration from public sector entiues for the operanon of waste management service concessions Is treated as contract
receivables, split between profit on the construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance recogmsed as
interest receivable Management’s allocation between these three elements 15 assessed according te prevailing external market
conditions according to the type of service prowded

Site development costs

The development of waste management sites for additional landfill capacity and new projects (such as Energy from ¥Waste plants)
are subject to obtaiming planning perrussions Development costs are capitalised using management's assessment of the hikelihood
of a successful outcome for each project. To the extent that planning permission is not recesved any capitalised development costs
would be expensed

Landfill costs :

The esumation of landfill reserves 1s of parucular importance in assessing landfill costs, since the cost of a landfill site 1s
depreciated over its estimated operauonal life taking into account the usage of void space and gas production at the site post
closure The estimates of landfill reserves are regularly reviewed and updated during the financal year for usage and other events
(for example site extensions) Esumates are also subject to physical review by external advisors
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES contnued

A number of factors impact on the depreciation of landfill reserves including the available landfill space, future capital expenditure
and operating costs The assumptions are revised as these factors change -

The esumate of gas production at landfill sites post-closure reduces the depreciauen of landfill reserves An assessment 1s
undertaken for individual sizes of the historic profile of gas production during landfilling activity and the projected generation
post-closure according to the type of waste contained in the landfill and expected profile of gas production over ume

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment

The Group's accountng policy for property, plant and equipment assets I1s set out In note 2 The carrying value of property,
plant and equipment as at 31 March 2010 was £2,822 7m In the year ended 31 March 2010 additions totalled £190 2m and the
depreciaton charge was £136 5m Estmated useful economic lives of property, plant and equipment are based on management’s
judgement and experience WWhen management identfies that actual useful lives differ materially from the esumates used to
calculate depreciauon, that charge 1s adjusted prospecuvely Due to the significance of capital investment to the Group, variations
between actual and estimated useful lives could impact operaung results both positively and negatvely Asset hives and residual
values are reviewed annually and historically changes to remaiming esumates of useful hives have not been matenal

Defined benefit pension schemes
Directors' best estimates are based upon an assessment, with advice from the schemes’ actuanes, of key financial and
demographic assumptions

The rate used to discount schemes’ liabilities reflects the market rate for long-term corporate bonds, adjusted for the projected
duration of Iiabilites Inflation 1s based upon the market rate observed at 31 March by reference to long-term index-linked bonds

Mortality assumptions are set upon actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics using 2 “medium cohort” basis and
scheme-specific experience

A schedule showing the impact upon the schemes’ habilities of any change in the assumption made 1s included in note 29 to these
financial statements

Revenue recognition
The Group recognises revenue at the time of delivery of services Payments received in advance of services delivered are recorded
as a habiity

South VWest Water raises bills and recognises revenue in accordance with its entitlement to receve revenue in hne with the hmits
established by the Periodic Review price-setuing process For water and waste water customers with water meters, revenue
recognised 1s dependent upon the volume supplied including an estimate of the sales value of units supplied between the date

of the last meter reading and the financial year-end Estimated usage 1s based on historic data, judgement and assumpuons, actual
results could differ from these estmates which would resclt in operaung revenue being adjusted in the peried in which the
revision of the esumates 1s determined

Provision for doubtful debts

At each balance sheet date each subsidiary evaluates the collectability of trade recewvables and records provisions for doubtful
debts based ¢n experience including comparisans of the relative age of accounts and consideration of actual write-off history
The actual level of debt collected may differ from the esumated levels of recovery and could impact future operating results
posiuvely or negauvely As at 31 March 2010 the Group's current trade receivables were £174 5m, against which £50 6m was
provided for impairment.

Impairment of intangible assets
The Group records all assets and habilities acquired in business acquisitions, including goodwill, at fair value Intangible assets
which have an indefinite useful Iife, principally goodwill, are assessed at least annually for impairment.

The rutial goodwill recorded and subsequent impairment analysis require management to make estimations of future cash flows,
terminal values and an assessment of the long-term pre-tax discount rate te be applied to those cash flows which reflects an
assessment of the cost of capital of the cash-generating unit.

Taxation
The Group corporation tax provision of £83 6m reflects management’s estmation of the amount of tax payable for fiscal years
with open tax computations where habilities remain to be agreed with Her Majesty's Revenue and Customs
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5. PRIOR YEAR AD|USTMENT

Accounting policy for service concession arrangements

The application of IFRIC 12 “Service concession arrangements” has required a restatement of amounts for prior years Where a contract for
the prowvision of public services meets the scope of IFRIC [2 the service concession Is to be treated as a contract recemvable, sphit becween
the profit on the construction of assets, operation of the service and provision of finance through interest recetvable The Group’s existing
contract with ¥est Sussex County Council for the provision of waste collection and disposal services falls within the scope of IFRIC |2

As a result of the above change in accounung policy and other restatements required, comparative figures have been restated

Year ended 31 March 1009

Application of Resmated now
Previously FRIC 12 reported
reported £m im
£m
INCOME STATEMENT
Revenue 9529 53 9582
Other operating expenses (394 2) 20 (4022) !
Depreciation {1320) 07 {1313)
Finance income 435 23 458
Taxatign — current tax (307) (06) {313)
Taxauon ~ deferred tax (369) (1 4) (383)
Profit for the year 915 (N 898
11 March 2009 31 March 2008
Apphcatan of Resated now Application of Restated now
Previously reported IFRIC 12 reported Previously reported IFRIC |2 reported
£m £m £m &m fm £m
BALANCE SHEET
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 27742 (28 4) 27458 26658 (21 26447
Other non-current assets 108 58 462 104 280 384
Current liabrities
Current tax . (432) (1 6 (44 8) 430 [{NY] (44 1)
Non-current habdtres
Deferred tax {326 3) 21 (328 4) (306 7) {07) {307 4)
Shareholders’ equity |
Retamed earnings
Brought forward 3413 52 3465 3182 29 321 1
Profit for the year s (7 898 1336 23 1359
Carned forward 376 35 3211 3413 52 3465
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash generated from operations
Profit for the year 915 (7 898 1336 23 1359
Deprecration charge 1320 [( 0] 13§ 3 1279 07N 1272
Finance income {435) (23) (45 8 (42.0) (18 438
Taxation 676 20 696 160 04 164 |
Increase in trade and other |
recavables (154) 3 207 299) (4 4) (343)
Purchase of property, plant and
(245 %) 80 (237 9) (2192) 42 (2150)

equipment

During the year the Group's joint venture Vindor Laing {Greater Manchester) Limited was established, ks operations also fall within the
scope of IFRIC 12
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& OPERATING SEGMENTS

Operanng segments are reported 1n a manner consistent with internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker,
which has been 1dent:fied as the Pennon Group Ple Board

The water and sewerage business comprises the regulated water and sewerage services undertaken by South West Water Limited
The waste management business 1s the waste treatment, recycling and renewable energy services provided by Viridor Limited
Other includes parent company financing of business acquisitions made before 1999 Segment assets inciude goodwill and other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, mventories, trade and other recewvables and cash and cash deposits Segment
habilines compnise operaung habilities and exclude mxauon The other segment liabihiues include the Company’s finanting of
business acquisitons and Group taxation habilites Capital expenditure comprises additions to property. plant and equipment,
including additions resulting from acquisitions through business combinations

000 2009
{Restated note 5)
m im
Revenue
Water and sewerage 444.2 4317
WWaste management 626.5 5280
CQther 8.5 87
Less intra-segment trading* (10.3) (i02)
1,068.9 9582
Segment result
Underlying operating profit before depreciation and amortisation {EBITDA)
Water and sewerage 290.1 28] 4
VWaste management i14.8 1052
Other {0.2) 17
404.7 3883
Underlying operating profit
Water and sewerage 196.5 1916
Waste management 73.1 635
Other - 19
269 6 2570
Operating profit
Water and sewerage 1915 186 6
VVaste management 72.8 623
Other - 19
2643 2508
Underlying profit before tax
VYater and sewerage 132.5 1219
VVaste management 55.4 411
QOther 12 16
189.1 1656
Profit before tax
Water and sewerage 127.5 169
Waste management 551 399
Other 12 16
1838 159 4

* Intra-segment trading between and to other segments by the water and sewerage and waste management segments (s under normal commercial
terms and conditions that would also be available to unrelated third parues Intra-segment revenue of the other segment is at cost.

Underlying measures exclude restructuring costs in South West Water and amortisation of intangibles in Vinder A full reconciliaton
between underlying and reported measures is included in the Directors’ report on page 5 and in note |1 for earnings per share

P 71 | PENNON GROUP ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS | 2010




NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS contnued

Water and Y¥aste management Other Group
tewerage (Restated nota 5) {Restated nate 5) Eliminations  (Restated nots 5)
m i m tm £m

Balance sheet
31 March 2010
Assets {excluding investments in joint ventures) 275112 10188 g0l | (789 3) g8l 8
Investments n joint ventures - 012 - - 02
Total assets 27512 10190 901 | {7893) 38820
Liabilities (1.985 8) (777 2} {1.247 4) 7893 (3221 1)
Net assets/(liabilities) 765 4 241.8 (346.3) - . 6609
31 March 2009
Assets (excluding investments i joint vantures) 26849 B48 2 8096 712 35715
Investments 1n joINt ventures - 22 - - 1.2
Total assets 26849 8504 8096 (771 2) 35737
Liabiliwes (1.959 7} {7102) (1,074 4) 772 (2973 1)
Net assets/(liabilities) 725.2 140 2 (264 8) - 600 &

Segment liabilities of the water and sewerage and waste management segments comprise operatng habdittes The other segment
habilities include the Company's financing of business acquisimons before 1999 and Group taxaton labilities

Wacar and Wvaste management Group
sewerage (Restated nota 5) Other (Restated note 5)
&m tm tm £m
Other information
31 March 2010
Amorusauon of other intangible assets (note 16) - 03 - 03
Capital expenditure {including acquisiuons) 1433 559 03 1995
Deprecianion 936 417 ©2) 1351
Finance income (note 8) 181 122 41 344
Finance costs (ncte 8) 822 310 28 1160
31 March 2009
Amarusation of other intangible assets {(nota {6) - t2 - 12
Capital expenditure (ineluding acquisitens) 1478 874 - 2352
Deprectaton 828 407 o 1343
Finance income (note 8} 298 72 ag 458
Finance costs {note 8) 995 304 8l 1380

Geographical segments
Separate disclosure by geographical segment 1s not shown since the operations of the Group are substanually located in the
United Kingdom
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7. OPERATING COSTS

2010 1009
{Restated note 5)
£m £m
Manpower costs {note |3) 1323 108 6
Raw materials and consumables 763 591
Other operaung expenses include
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (36) 21}
Operating lease rentals payable
= Plant and machinery 77 69
- Property 63 52
Research and development expenditure 02 02
Trade receivables impairment 79 67
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment:
— Owned assets 988 971
— Under finance leases 383 342
Amorusation of other intangble assets (note |6) 03 12
Fees payable tc the Group's auditors in the year were
1010 2009
L0000 £000
Fees payable to the Company 3 audrtors for the audit of the Company’s accounts 47 47
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for other services to the Group
Audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislauon 360 318
Total audit fees 407 363
QOther services pursuant to legislation 103 130
Tax services 199 135
Services relaung to corporate finance transactions 1,346 570
All other sernces 31 37
2,086 1,235
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors in respect of Penncn Group pensian schemas
Audit 24 24

Expenses reimbursed to the auditors in refation to the audit of the Group were £38,000 (2009 £31,000)

Corporate finance services in 2010 include fees of circa £1 2m relaung to the conclusion of the Financial Close of the Greater
Manchester PFl contract,

A descripuon of the work of the Audit Committee 1s set out in its report on page 50 which includes an explanaton of how
auditor objectivity and independence are safeguarded when nen-audit services are provided by the auditors

8. NET FINANCE COSTS

2010 2009
{Restated note 5)
im [£,]

Finance income
Interest receivable é.1 188
Interest recervable on shareholder loans to joint ventures 341 23
Interest receivable on service concession arrangements 2.7 23
Expected return on defined benefit pension schemes' assets (note 29) 225 224
344 458
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

010 2009
(Restated note 5)
{m m
Finance costs
Bank borrowings and overdrafts (41.6) (489)
Interest element of finance lease rentals (457) (54 6)
Other finance costs (2.2} {15
interest cost on reurement benefit obligauons {note 29) (24.8) (24 0)
Unwinding of discounts in provisions {note 3|} (3 8) (45)
(s n (1335)
Net gains/{losses) on derivative instruments
Ineffectiveness on derivatives designated as cash flow hedges {note 23) - 04
On denvatives deemed held for trading (note 23} 21 {49)
(116.0) (138 0)
Net finance costs (8l &) (922}
? TAXATION
2010 2009
{Re3tated note 5)
£m &m
Analysis of charge in year
UK corperauon mx 43.0 313
Deferred tax — other 1.3 134
Deferred tax ansing on aboliwon of industral buildings allowznces - 249
Total deferred tax (note 30) 1.3 383
44.3 696

Tax charge for year

UK corporation tax 1s calculated at 28% (2009 28%) of the esumated assessable profit for the year

The deferred tax charge for the year ended 3} March 2009 was increased by a non-recurring charge of £24 9m arising from the
phasing out of industrial buildings allowances over the three years commencing | April 2008 as contained in the 2008 Finance Act.

The &x for the year differs from the theoretcal amount which would anse using the standard rate of corporation @ax i the UK (28%) from

wio 2009

(Restated nata 5)

£m £m

Prafit before tax 1838 159 4
Profit before tax muluplied by the sandard rate of UK corporavon tax of 28% (2009 28%) 515 445

Effects of

Expenses not deducuble for tax purposes 13 1
Other {35) (10}
Capital gamns reduced by capral losses - 07
Tax rebef no langer available on industral builldings - 249
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pnor years (5.0) {2.3)
44.3 694

Tax charge for year

The average applicable tax rate for the year was 24% (2009 44%})

In addition to the amount debited to the iIncome statement, a deferred tax credit relating to actuarial losses on defined benefit
pension schemes of £12 4m (2009 credit of £18 7m on actuarial losses) and a deferred tax credit relating to gains/losses on cash
flow hedges of £5 Om (2009 nil), has been credited directly to aquity A deferred tax credit relaung to share-based payments of
£0 2m (2009 charge £0 8m) has been taken directly to equity
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10. PROFIT OF PARENT COMPANY

2010 2009
im &m
Profit attrmbutable to equity shareholders dealt with in the accounts of the parent company 8l 6 140 |

As permitted by Secuon 408 of the Compantes Act 2006 no income statement Is presented for the Company

I1. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the earmings attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year, excluding those held in the employee share trust {note 35}, which are
treated as cancelled

For diluted earmings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares tn 1ssue 1s adjusted to include all diluuve potenual
ordinary shares The Group has two types of dilutive potenual ordinary shares — those share options granted to employees where
the exertise price is less than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year,and the contingently
issuable shares under the Group's Performance and Co-investment Plan and the deferred shares element of the Incentive Bonus
Plan, 1o the extent that the performance criteria for vesting of the awards are expected to be met. The convertible bonds 1ssued
in August 2009 did not have a dilutive effect on earnings per share during the year

The weighted average number of shares and earnings used in the calculations were

010 2009
Number of shares (miliions)
For basic earnings per share 350.0 348 1
Effect of dilunve potenual ordinary shares from share oputions 1.5 17
For diluted earnings per share 3515 3498

Underlying basic and diluted earnings per share

Underiyng earnings per share are presented to provide a more useful comparison on business trends and performance The term
underlying i1s not a defined term under IFRS and may not be comparable with a similarly utled profit measure reported by other
companies Underlying earnings have been calcufated

2010 2009 (Rescated note 5)
Proflz Earnings per share Profic Earnings per share

after tax Basic Diluted afer wx Basc Oilured

fm P P fm P P

Statutory earnings per share 139.5 99 397 a¢8 258 257
Restructuring costs {net of tax) 4.4 12 1.2 33 09 09
Amortisanon of intangibles 0.3 0l 0.1 12 03 03
Deferred tax 1.3 0.4 04 383 Hel 110
Undertying earnings per share 145.5 41.6 4] 4 1326 81 379
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12. DIVIDENDS

010 2009
&m £m

Amounts recognised as distributions te equity holders in the year
Interim dividend paid for the year ended 31 March 2009 6 75p (2008 6 25p) per share 236 218
Final dividend pard for the year ended 3| March 2009 14 25p (2008 |3 56p) per share 498 473
734 6% 1

Proposed dividends

Proposed interim dvidend for the year ended 31 March 2010 6 95p (2009 é 75p) per share 245 236
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010 |5 é0p (2009 14 25p) per share 55.1 498
796 734

The proposed interim and final dividends have not been included as liabihues n these financial statements

The proposed interim dividend for 2010 was paid on | April 2010 and the proposed final dividend 1s subject to approval by
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting

13 EMPLOYMENT COSTS

1010 2009
Erm £m
WWages and salanes 1174 959
Social security costs 10.7 92
Pension costs 15.9 132
Share-based payments 1.7 27
Total employment ¢osts 146.7 1210
Charged
Manpower costs i32.3 108 6
Capital schemes 100 103
Restructuring costs 4.4 21
Total employment costs 146.7 1210

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 14 There are no personnel, other than Directors, who as key management
exercise authority and responsibtlity for planning, direcung and controlling the acuvities of the Group

2010 2009
Employees (average number)
The average monthly number of employees (including Execuuve Directors) was
Water and sewerage 1,191 1,227
Waste management 2,853 2,154
Other 43 4|
Group totals 4,087 3,422

The total number of employaes at 31 March 2010 was 4,089 (2009 3,417)
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14. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

2010 2009
£000 €000

Executive Directors
Salary 975 975
Performance-related cash bonus paid or payable 458 257
Share-based payments 847 689
Other emoluments 65 67
Payment :n lleu of pension provision 95 35
Non-executve Directors 399 376
1839 2459

The cost of share-based payment represents the amount charged to the income statement, as described in note 32

The aggregate gains on vestng of Directors’ share-based awards amounted to a total of £378,000 {2009 £569,000)

Total gains made by Directors on the exercise of share options were £3,000 (2009 ml)

Total emoluments include £1,301,000 (2009 £995,000) payable to Directors for services as directors of subsidiary undertakings

At 3| March 2010 reurement benefits were aceruing to two Directors under defined benefic pension schermes (2009 two) The accrued
pension enutlement at 31 March 2010 under defined benefit schemes of the highest paid Diectar was £146,000 (2009 £122,000)
No pension contributions were payable to defined contnbution schemes but one Director received payments in lieu of pension provision

More detaled information concerning Directors' emoluments (including pensions and the highest paid Director) and share
interests is shown in the Directors’ remuneration report.

15. GOODWILL

m
Cost.
Ac | April 2008 2359
Recognised on acquisiuon of subsidiaries 06
At 31 March 2009 2365
Disposals (06}
Recogrised on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 38) 185
At 31 March 2010 254 4
Carrying amount
Az 31 March 2009 2365
At 31 March 2010 154 4

Goodwill acquired in a business combenation 15 allocated at acquisition to the cash-generating unit (CGU) expected to benefit
from that business combination All of the carrying amount of goodwill 1s allocated to the waste management segment which 15
considered to be a single CGU, as it 1s an integrated business

Goodwill 1s reviewed annually or when other events or changes in circumstance indicate that the carrying amount may not be fully
recoverable

The recoverable amount of the waste management segment 1s determined from value in use calculations The key assumptions in
those calculations relate to discount rates, cash fiows, price increases and for landfill, the compaction rate Cash flow projections
are based on approved budgets and plans for the next five yearrs based on growth rates and margins achieved historically and
expectations for market development. Beyond this period long-term growth rates for the waste sector are based on UK Gross
DOomestic Product. The cash flows have been discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 12 5% (2009 12 5%) which reflects the
overall business risks associated with the waste management segment acuvities
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Customer contracts Patents Totd
£m im &n

Acquired intangible assets
Cosc
At | April 2008 125 02 127
At 31 March 2009 125 02 127
At 31 March 2010 125 02 127
Amorusanon
Ac | April 2008 61 - 61
Charge for year 12 - 12
At 31 March 2009 73 - 713
Charge for year 03 - 03
At 3| March 2010 76 - 76
Carrying amount
At 3| March 2005 52 02 54
At 31 March 2010 4.9 02 51

Customer contracts are amorused over the useful economic life of each contract which at acquisition ranged between two
and |5 years The average remaining life is three years

Patents are amortised over their esumated useful econome lives which at acquisition was |3 years The average remaining life 1s
seven years

The carrying values of other intangible assets are reviewed annually or when events or changes in circumstance indicate that the
carrying amounts may not be fully recoverable
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Fixed and mebile
phant. vehicles and

Land and Infrastructurs Operational COMpUTers Landfill  Consuructon Total
buildings actaty propertiaes {Restated note S} restoration in progren {Resmtad note 5)
&m im tm m £m &m m

Group
Cost:
Ac 1 April 2008 3318 1,.2608 5855 1,1368 47 1347 34943
Arising on acquisitions 24 - - 07 - - 31
Addiuions 403 537 17 279 - 1082 2318
Other - - - - |4 - 14
Grants and contributions - (19 - - - - (19
Drspesals 03) on - {66) - - (76)
Transfers/reclassificauons e 340 105 189 - (953 -
At 31 March 2009 3861 1,345 9 5977 14977 45 | 1476 3721 )
Arising on acquisiuons 87 - - 135 - - 222
Addiuons 207 360 08 333 - 994 1902
Other (note 31} - - - - 6 - 26
Grants and contribunons - o4 - - - - (R
Disposals - en (12} (198) - - 207)
Transfers/reclassifications 19 363 81 975 - {1438) -
Ac 31 March 2010 4174 14171 606 4 13222 487 1032 39150
Depreciatuon
Ac | April 2008 1373 554 1423 5050 96 - 8496
Charge for year 125 187 108 808 30 - 1328
Disposals (01} ©7n - {63) - - 7N
At 31 March 2009 1567 734 1531 5795 126 - 9753
Charge for year 158 05 10% 869 2.4 - 1365
DChsposals - on 02 (18 6) - - (195)
At 3| March 2010 1725 932 1638 6478 150 - 1,0923
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 2294 1,272 5 444 6 61812 335 1476 2,7458
At 3| March 2010 2449 1,323.9 441 6 674 4 137 1032 2,8227

Of the total deprecianon charge of £136 5m (2009 £132 8m), L1 4m (2009 £1 5m) has been charged to capital projects and
£135 Im (2009 £131 3m) aganst profits

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually
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t7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

Assets held under finance leases included above were

Fixed and mobile
Land and Infrastructure Cperational plant, vehicles and Landfill Construction
buildings 3aty properties computers Festonuon in progress Total
£m £m £m (] fm £m £
Cost:
At 31 March 2009 - 3501 4449 3351 - 148 1145t
At 31 March 2010 - 3550 4599 3218 - g1 1,145 8
Depreciation 54 738 1720 2612
At 31 March 2009
At 31 March 2010 - 206 81 4 1653 - - 2673
Net book amount:
- 3347 7 1633 - 148 8839
At 31 March 2009
At 31 March 2010 - 334 4 3785 1875 - 81 8785
Fixed and mobila plant, vehicles and compurers
m
Company
Cost
At | April 2008 03
At 31 March 2009 03
Addinons 01
At 31 March 2010 04
Deprecianon
At | April 2008 01
At 3| March 2009 01
Charge for year 01
At 31 March 2010 02
Net book value
At 31 March 2009 02
At 31 March 2010 02

Asset lives and residual values are reviewed annually
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18 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The accounting palicies for financial instruments have been applied to the line tems

Fair value Amortised cost
Dertvatrves
used for Denvatves deemed Loans and Trade receivables
hedging held for trading recervables and rade payables Total

Note £m {m £m im Em
Group
31 March 2010
Financlal assets
Trade and other receivables 22 - - - 1239 1239
Derrvative financial instruments 23 34 - - - 34
Cash and cash deposits 24 - - 4939 - 4939
Total 34 - 49319 1239 6212
Financial habilities
Borrowings 27 - - (2,389 2) - (2389 2)
Dervative financial instruments 23 (176) on - - (77
Trade and other payables 25 - - - (821} {821)
Total (17 6) @ (23892) (821} (2,489 Q)
31 March 2009
Financial assets
Financial assets
Trade and other recevables 22 - - - s 118
Denvative financial instruments 23 02 - - - 02
Cash and cash depesits 24 - - 3533 - 3533
Total 02 - 3533 118 4653
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 27 - - {2,245 3) - (2,245 3)
Dervative financial nstruments px (179) {22) - - (201)
Trade and other payables 25 - - - 772) 772)
Total {(179) 22) {2245 3) (772) (2,342 6)
Company
31 March 2010
Financial assets
Derrative financial instruments 23 34 - - - 34
Cash and cash deposits 24 - - 174 6 - 174 6
Total 34 - 174 6 - 1780
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 27 - - (814 0) - (814 0)
Trade and other payables 25 - - - 02 02)
Total - - (8140) (02) 8142)
31 March 2009
Finanecial assets
Cash and cash deposits 24 - - 1687 - 1687
Toral - - 1687 - 1687
Financial liabilities
Borrowngs 27 - - (675 5) - (675 5)
Dervauve financial instruments 23 (14) - - - (14
Trade and other payables 25 - - - on on
Total (14) - (675 5) 0 (6770)
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19. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
{Rescated not 5)
&m im £m m
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 31375 2713
Amounts owed by related parues (note 42) 45.9 106 - —
Other recevables 55.1 56 10 -
101.0 462 3385 2713
Other recevables include site development and pre-contract costs of £15 6m (2009 nil)
Non-current assets were due
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
{Restared note §)
Em im Lm £m
Berween | and 2 years 166 Q6 838 678
Between 2 and 5 years 62 11 154.7 2035
Over 5 years 78.2 435 - -
101.0 462 338.5 2713
The fair values of other non-current assets were
Group Company
2010 2009 010 1009
(Restaced note 5}
£m tm tm Zm
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 3369 2713
Amounts owed by related parues 909 173 - -
Other recevables 55.1 356 1.0 —
146.0 529 337.9 2713

The fair value of amounts owed by related parues 1s based on cash flows using a rate based on the borrowings rate of 2 5% (2009 5 7%)
The discount rate is equal to London Interbank Cffered Rate plus an allowance to reflect an appropriate credit margin

The effecuve interest rate on amounts owed by related parties was |1 3% (2009 |5 0%)

20. INVESTMENTS
Subsidiary undertakings
&m
Company
At | April 2008 1,044 8
Disposals (100 0)
At 31 March 2009 944 8
Additions 872
At 31 March 2010 1,032.0
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20 INYESTMENTS continued

joint ventures

Shares
im
Group
At | April 2008 1 4
Share of profic 08
At 3t March 2009 22
Addinons 0l
Share of profit '
Share of other comprehensive lass 3y
At 31 March 2010 02

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiary and jeint venture undertakings are set out in note 39

The Group's share of the results, assets and habiliues in its joint ventures, which are equity accounted in these financial statements, are

Assers Liabilides income Other
comprehenive
Nonscurrent Current Non-current Current Revenues Profit income
m &m £m &m im €m im
010
Lakeside Energy from VVaste
Holdings Lirmited 842 26 03) (863) 144 ] G
Virndor Lamng
(Greater Manchester) Limited 160 810 (70} (900) 440 0! orn
2009
Lakeside Energy from Waste
Holdings Lirmited 764 B4 (58) 752) 39 o8 -
21 INVENTORIES
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
m £m &m £m
Raw materals and consumables 64 54 - -
Finished goods and goods for resale - 04 - -
64 58 - -
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22.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - CURRENT

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
m fm m m
Trade recevables . - 1745 1549 - -
Less provision for impairment of recervables (5086) 431 - -
Trade recesvables 123 9 1118 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertkings - - 3412 &89
Other receivables 8.1 233 0.3 13
Other prepayments and accrued income 62 9 432 - -
1949 1783 84.5 702

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recevables approximates to their far value

There 15 no concentration of credit sk in trade receivables The Group has a large number of customers who are dispersed and there
1s no significant loss on trade receivables expected that has not been prowided for The Group has created IAS 39 portfolo provisions,
but cannot pracucably idenufy which recevables specifically are the ones mpatred It 1s Group policy to consider a recevable ina
portfolio to which an impairment has been allocated on a collecuve basis as not being impaired for the purposes of IFRS 7 disclosures

untll the loss can be spectfically idenufied with the recenable

The ageing of trade recevables which are past due but not specrfically impaired was.

2010
im

Group
Past due | — 30 days 274
Past due 31 — 120 days 103
More than 120 days 7.7

200%

2512
102
617

The Group's two principal operating businesses specifically review separate categories of debt to identify an appropriate provision for
impairment. South ¥West Water Limited has a duty under legislauen to conunue to provide domestic customers with services regardless

of payment,

The movermnent in the aliowance for impairment in respect of trade recetvables was

2010 2009

£m &m

At | Apnil 43.1 362
Provision for recewvables impairment 79 67
Recervables wnitten-off during the year as uncollectible 5.9 s
Cumulaove amounts previously excluded from debr 45 49
Ansing on acquisions - 04
At 31 March 50.6 43|

Other recevables and prepayments include site development and pre-contract costs of £4 Om (2009 £18 0m)
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23. DERIVATIYE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
im £m im £m
Derwvatives used for hedging
Non-current assets - 02 - -
Current assets 34 - 34 -
Current liabiliues 3.5 {4 - )]
Non-current liabilities (14 1) (165) - -
Derwvatrves deemed held for trading
Current liabihues {0.1) {2.2) - -

The far value of hedging dervatives is spht between current and non-current assets or liabilities based on the maturity of the cash flows
The ineffective portion recognised in the income statement arising from cash flow hedges amounts to a gam of nil (2009 £0 4m)

Interest rate swaps and fixed rate borrowings are used to manage the mix of fixed and floating rates to ensure at least 50% of Group
net borrowings are at fixed rate At 3| March 2010 65% of Group net barrowings were at fixed rate (2009 57%)

At 31 March 2010 the Group had interest rate swaps to swap from floating to fixed rate and hedge financii labilities with a notional
value of £775 Om and a weighted average maturity of 4 4 years {2009 £760 Om, with 2 4 years) The weighted average interest rate of
the swaps for their nominal amount was 4 0% (2009 4 5%)

At 3| March 2010 the Company had cross-currency interest rate swaps to swap from floaung to fixed rate and hedge financral liabidiues,
refaung to a borrowing in the year of 70m Australian Dollars, with a weighted average maturity of 30 years The weighted average
interest rate of the swaps was 3 7%

Dervauves held for trading relate to interest rate swaps which no longer qualify for hedge accounting
The amounts above are the far value of swaps based on the market value of equivalent instruments at the balance sheet date

Valuation fuerarchy
The amounts of financial instruments carried at fair value by valuauon method were

31 March 2010 31 March 2009
Level | Levell  Level3 Total Level | Level 2 Lewel 3 Total
im m fm m £m m £m tm

Assets
Dervatives used for hedging - 34 - 14 - 02 - 02
Total assets - 14 - 34 - 02 - 02
Liabrlities
Denvatves used for hedging - 176 - 176 - 179 - 179
Derivatives deemed held for trading - 0.1 - 0l - 22 - 22
Total habilities - 177 - 177 - 201 - 201
Level | - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idenucal assets or labilives

Level 2 - Inputs {other than quoted prices mcluded within fevel 1) that are observable for the asset or hability, esther directly {that 1s,
as prices) or indirectly (that 1s, derived from prices)
Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liabiiy that are not based on observable market datra (that is, unobservable inputs)
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24. CASH AND CASH DEPOSITS

Group Company
10 200% w10 0y
£m fm tm tm
Cash at bank and in hand 9.2 102 s 770
Short-term bank deposits 132.8 144 6 151 4 808
Other deposits 251.9 1985 114 109
493.9 3533 1746 1687

The effective interest rate on Group short-term deposits was 0 7% (2009 | 4%) and these deposits have an average matunty of one day
The effectve interest rate on Group other deposits was 0 9% (2009 2 3%) and these deposits have an average maturity of 39 days.

Group other deposits mclude restricted funds of £33 5m {2009 £167m) to serde long-term lease labilities (note 27) and £56 3m
{2009 ml) relating to letters of credit.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement cash and cash equivalents comprise

Group Company
2010 2009 010 1009
m £m im £m
Cash and cash deposits as above 493.9 3533 174.6 1687
Bank overdrafts (note 27} {zn (2% - -
481.2 340 4 174.6 1687
Less deposits with a maturity of three months or more (resuricted funds}) (?1.7) {184) (1.4) 09
3895 3220 1732 1678
25.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — CURRENT
Group Company
1010 2009 2010 2009
im £m £m im
Trade payables 82.1 772 02 0l
Amounts awed to subsidiary undertakings - - 1.6 24
Amounts owed to oIt venture (note 43) 5.0 - 50 -
Other tax and soaal secunty 491 394 02 03
Other creditors 172 77 3.9 44
Accruals 422 425 04 04
1958 1668 17.3 76

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to ther far value

26 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES/{(RECOVERABLE)

Group Company
2010 2009 010 009
(Restated note 5)
£m €m £m im
UK corporanon tax 836 448 V3) (24}
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27 BORROWINGS

Group Company
110 2009 010 2009
£m im tm £m
Current
Bank overdrafts 127 129 - -
Short-term loans 1700 2050 Too 2050
European Investment Bank 14} 141 - -
Unsecured loan stock notes - 08 - [+2:]
Amounts owed to subsidary undertakings - - 28112 2802
196.8 2328 3512 4860
Obligauons under finance leases 312 301 - -
Total current borrowings 12%.0 262% 35112 4860
Non-current
Bank and other loans 568.9 5075 3502 1895
Converuble bond 112.6 - 1126 -
European Investment Bank 2731 6 2877 - -
955 | 7952 4628 1895
Obligations under finance leases 1,205.1 11872 - -
Total non-current borrowings (note 37) 2,180.2 1,9824 4628 1895
Total borrowings 2,389.2 2,2453 2140 6755

The Company issued £125m 4 625% convertible bonds on 20 August 2009 The bonds mature five years from the 1ssue date at their
nominal value of £125m or can be converted into shares at the holders option at the maturity date on the conversion price of 597 81
pence per ordinary share

The values of the liability component and the equity conversion component were determined at issuance of the bond The value of
the equity conversion component was datermined to be £10m, using the Black-Scholes valuaton mode! and has been recognised in
shareholders’ equity in retained earmings {note 35}

The fair values of non-current borrowings were.

1010 2009
Booik value Fair value Book valus Fair value
m ém m L
Group
Bank and other loans 5689 53313 5075 4450
Converuble bond 1126 127 6 - -
European Investment Bank 273 46 23585 877 2456
955 1 896 4 79512 6906
QObligations under finance leases 1,205.1 9677 1.1872 1,070 2
2,160.2 1,864 1 19824 1,750 8
Company
Bank and other loans 462 8 471 1 1895 1947

Where market values are not avallable, fair values of borrowings have been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows at
prevailing interest rates
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27 BORROWINGS continued

The maturity of non-current borrowings was

Group Company
2010 009 1018 009
im im £€m im
Between | and 2 years 55.0 2335 10.0 800
Between 2 and 5 years 516.2 206 4 3529 100
Over 5§ years 1,589.0 1,542.5 99.9 995
1,160.2 1,982.4 4628 1895

The weighted average maturity of non-current borrewings was 22 years (2009 23 years)

Finance lease liabiities — mimimum lease payments

Within one year 479 620 - -
In the second to fifth years inclusive 242.6 3197 - -
Afer five years 21,3232 1,702 - -
26137 23519 - -
Less future finance charges (1,376 4) (1,134 6) - -
1,237 3 1,2173 - -

Included above are accrued finance charges arising on obligations under finance leases towlling £135 3m (2009 £135 9m), of which
£11 $m (2009 £13 8m) 1s repayable within one year

Within obligatons under finance leases, South West Water Limited has utihsed finance lease faciues of £180 Gm for certain water
and sewerage business property, plant and equipment which are secured by bank letters of credit issued by United Kingdom financial
mstitutions These lerters of crediy, covering the full period of cthe finance leases, are renewable between the financal insttutions and
South West Water Limited at five-yearly intervals, the next being March 201 |

During 2007 the penod for repayment of these leases was extended with an agreement to deposit with the lessor group amounts
equal to the difference between the original and revised payments due The accumulated deposics, £24 Im ac 31 March 2010 (2009
£16 7m), are being held to settle the lease hability over the period from the end of the original lease term The deposits are subject to
a registered charge given as security to the lessor for the balance outstanding

During 2010 the period for repayment of certain exisung leases was extended with an agreement to deposit with the lessor group
amounts equal to the difference between the original and revised payments due The deposit at 3| March 2010 of £9 4m (2009 nid) 15
being held to settle the lease labibty at the end of the lease term, subject to rights to release by negotation with the lessor
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27. BORROWINGS continued

The effecuve interest races at the balance sheet date and the exposure to interest rate changes and the repricing dates were

& months 612 months =5 years Over 5 peant Total
Effective rate or less
% £m Im £m m £m
Group
31 March 2010
Bank overdrafts 15 126 - - - 126
European Investment Bank [N 2877 - — - 2877
Bank and other loans 39 stz 2187 2510 - 8514
Finance leases 29 246 4 7009 1989 912 1,237 4
9284 9196 449 9 92 23891
Effect of swaps 40 (8138} 2550 soee 500 -
1146 11746 9587 1412 23891
31 March 2009
Bank overdrafts IS 129 - - - 129
European Investment Bank 2.1 08 - - - s
Unsecured loan stock notes 14 08 - - - o8
Bank and other loans i 2950 2180 1995 - 7125
Finance leases 446 4615 5402 124 4 912 12173
10720 7582 3239 2 22453
Effect of swaps 45 (5900) 00 3250 1750 -
4820 8482 6489 2662 22453
Company
31 March 2010
Bank and other loans 23 2817 — 2510 - 53127
Effect of swaps 37 {38 8) - 3gg - -
2429 - 2899 - 5327
3| March 2009
Unsecured loan stock notes | 4 o8 - - - 08
Bank and other loans 34 2950 - 995 - 3945
2958 - 995 - 3953
Effect of swaps 45 (500) 500 - - -
2458 500 995 - 3953
Undrawn commutted borrowing facihues
Group Company
1010 0% 000 2009
im £m im £m
Foatng rate.
Expiring within one year 250 940 50 800
Expiring aftar one year 1750 1100 650 -
1000 2040 900 [:{e]1]

In addiuon the Group has short-term uncommitted bank facihiues of £60 Om avaifable to the Company or South West Water Limited
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28. OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Group Company
1010 2009 2060 009
im £m tm m
Amounts owed to subsidary undertakings - - 8.7 B7
Other creditors 16.0 37 - -
16.0 37 87 a7

29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT CBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes including a defined contribution secuion within the main scheme

During the year the acquisition of Greater Manchester Waste Limited resulted in the Group parucipating i two further defined benefit
pension schemes The amounts acquired are shown in the analysis of the fair value of the schemes’ assets and the present value of the
schemes’ defined benefit obligatons below

The assets of the Group's pension schemes are held in separate trustee administered funds The trustees of the funds are required
to act in the best interest of the funds’ beneficiaries The appointment of schemes’ trustees 15 determined by the schemes’ trust
documentauon The Group has a policy for the main fund that one-half of all trustees, other than the Chairman, are nominated by
members of the schemes, including pensioners

Defined contribution schemes
Pension costs for defined contnibuuon schemes were £2 4m (2009 £1 9m)

Defined benefit schemes

Assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions at 31 March were

' 2010 2009
% %
Expected return on scheme assets 7.3 70
Rate of increase in pensionable pay 4.1 375
Rate of increase for current and future pensions 3¢ 275
Rate used to discount schemes’ abiliues 5.5 65
Inflation 3¢ 275

Mortality
Assumptions regarding future mortlity experience are set based on actuarial advice i accordance with published statustcs and
experience The mortality assumpuon uses a scheme-specific ‘medium cohort’ basis

The average Iife expectancy in years of a member having reured at age 62 on the balance sheet date 1s projected ae

2010 2009
Male 210 219
Female 254 254

The average life expectancy in years of a future pensioner retiring at age 62, 20 years after the balance sheet date 15 projected at

2000 2009
Male 214 234
Female 266 265
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29. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS conunued

The sensitiviues regarding the principal assumpuons used to measure the schemes’ habilites are

Impact on
Change in schemes
assumpton llabilicies
Rate of increase in pensicnable pay +-05% +-20%
Rate of increase in current and future pensions +/~ 0 5% +—-57%
Rate used to discount schemes' habiiues +~05% +-90%
Inflation +~05% +-83%
Life expectancy +/— | year +i~ 28%
The amounts recognised in the INcome statement were
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m £m m m
Current service cost (105) (102) (08) (08)
Past service cost (1.1) (1) - -
Total included in employment costs (1 5) (113 (08) [(F:)]
Expected return on pension schemes’ assets 22.5 224 22 23
Interest cost on rearement benefit obligations (24 8) (240) (2.8) (2.6)
Total mcluded within net finance costs (2.3) {16) {0.4) (03)
Total charge {13.9) (129 F) n
The actual return on schemes’ assets was a profit of £98 5m (2009 loss of £79 2m)
The amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensve income were
Group Company
2000 2009 010 1009
£m &n m £m
Actuarnl losses recognised in the year (44.4) (66 8} 43) 80)
The amounts recognised in the balance sheet were
Group Company
2000 1009 010 2009
im m &m im
" Farr value of schemes’ assets 402.4 2764 373 296
Present value of defined benefit obligations (510 3) (342 4) (490) (36 9)
Net habiliy recognised in the balance sheet (107 9) (660) (nn 73
The schemes’ assets and the expected long-term rates of return at the year end were
2010 2009
Expected Expected
return ¥Yalua Fund retum Value Fund
% tm % % tm %
Equittes 8.5 244 5 L1} a7 1282 46
Property 9.0 3.3 6 79 212 8
Bonds 5.0 125.8 k] 52 951 35
Other 4.5 8.8 2 875 309 B
402.4 100 1764 100

Other assets principally represent cash contributions recerved from the Group towards the year-end which are invested during the

subsequent financial year
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29.RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS continued

The Company’s share of the schemes’ assets at the balance sheet date were

2010 009

&m €m

Equities 229 136
Property 13 23
Bonds 118 102
Other 03 35
373 296

The expected return on schemes’ assets s determined by considertng the long-term returns and the balance between risk and reward
on the various categories of investment assets held Expected returns on equity and property investments reflect long-term rates of

return expertenced in the respective markets Expected yields on fixed interest investments are based on gross redempuon yields as at
the balance sheet date

In conjunction wath its investment advisers, the trustees have structured the schemes’ mvestments with the objectve of balancing
investment returns and levels of msk. The asset allocauon for the main scheme has three principal elements

= holding of bonds which 1s expected to be less volaule than most other asset classes and reflects the schemes’ labilives
— a proporton of equites, with fund managers having freedom in making investment decisions to maximise returns

— mvestment of a relatively small proporuon of the schemes’ assets {cirea 10%) in alternatve asset classes which give the potential for
ganing higher returns {property and currency}

The habilues of the defined benefit schemes are measured by using the projected unit credic method which 1s an accrued benefits
valuauon method in which the scheme liabiliies make allowance for projected earnings

Movements in the net liability were

Group Company
2010 2009 20190 2009
im m tm £m
At | Apnl (66 0) {26 3) (73 29
Income statement (139) {129) (12) (n
Statement of comprehensive income (44.4) (56 8) (43) (80)
Regular contributions 32 13 - -
Other employer contributions 132 is7 I 47
At 3| March (107 9) (66 0) [ULRA) (73
Mavements in the fair value of schemes’ assets were
Group Company
2010 2009 010 2004
im m £m tm
At | April 276.4 3315 296 339
Expected return on schemes’ assets 215 224 212 23
Actuarial gains/{losses) 657 (101 ¢) 63 96)
Acquisibon 3812 - - -
Members' contributons Io 04 - 0l
Benefits paid (78) (163) 1.9 {18
Group regular contnbutons 3.2 13 - -
Other employer contribuuons 132 387 11 47
At 31 March 402 4 2764 373 296
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29.RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS contnued

Movements i the present value of schemes’ defined benefit obligatons were

Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
Im £m m £m
At 1 April (342.4) (357 8) (369 (36 8)
Service cost (11 6) (113 (08 {08)
Interest cost (24 8) (240) (26) (26)
Actuaral (losses)/gains (11o.1) 348 (106) 16
Acquisinon (38 2) - - -
Members' contributions (10) (04 - 1)
Benefits paid 178 163 19 18
At 31 March (5103) 3424 {49 0) {369)

The future cash flows arising from the payment of the defined benefits are expected to be settled primarily 1n the period between
I5 and 40 years from the balance sheet date

The five-year lustory of experience adjustments is

2010 1009 1008 2007 006
m m £m £m m

Group

Fair value of schemes’ assets 402.4 2764 3315 3476 3175

Present value of defined benefit obligauons (5103) (342.4) (357 8) {388 8) (3592)

Net hability recognised (107 9) (660) (263) (412) @ n

Experience gains/{losses) on schemes’ assets

Amount (£m) 657 (101 6) (447 I's 342

Percentage of schemes’ assets 16 3% (36 N% (13 5)% 0 4% 108%

Expenience gans/(lcsses) on defined benefit obligatons

Amount (£m) 23 348 498 @n (370)

Percentage of defined benefic cbligations 04% 102% 139% oN% (103)%

The cumulative actuarral gains recognised 1n the Group statement of comprehensive income at 31 March 2010 were £194m (2009 gains of £63 8m)

010 2009 1008 2007 2006
im m £m im im

Company

Fair value of schemes’ assets 373 296 339 270 54

Present value of defined benefit obligations (49 0) (36 9) (368) (304) (287)

Net hability recognised (1.7 {73) {29 (34) {(33)

Experience gains/{losses) on schemes’ assets

Amount (£m}) 60 (96} 40 ol 39

Percentage of schemes” assets 16.1% (324)% 1] 8% - 153%

Experience gains/{losses) on defined benefit cbligauons

Amount {£m) 04 16 (CEN) o4 ©3)

Percentage of defined benefit obligations 08% 43% (14 4% (132 {1 0%

The cumutative acruaral gans recogrised i the Company statement of comprehensive income at 31 March 2010 were £1 9m (2009 gains of £6 2m)

In 2008 the Group completed the trtennial actuarial valuation of its defined benefit schemes as at | Apnl 2007 which resulted in higher future
service and deficit recovery contnibuuons The Group updated the valuauon of the main scheme ta 3t March 2009 and has made defiat
recovery contnbunons of £13 2m duning the year (2009 £38 7m) The Group monitors funding levels on an anmual basis and expects to pay
total contnbutons of £34 4m during the year ended 3| March 2011
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30. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax s provided in full on temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 28% (2009 28%)

Movements on deferred tax were

Group Company
1010 009 2010 2009
{Restated note 5)
im im £m im
Lizbilities/{assets) at | April 328 4 074 (2.6) {1 &)
Charged/{credited) to the income statement 13 383 (1.5) 10
Credited to equity (17 6) (179 0.9 29
Arising on acquisitions o 06 - -
Liabiliues/{assets) at 31 March 3112 3284 (50) (2.8)

Deferred tax assets have been recogmised n respect of all temporary differences giving rse to deferred tax assets because it 1s probable
that these assets will be recovered

All deferred tax assets and liabslives within the same junsdiction are offsec.
The movermnents in deferred tax assets and habilitues were

Group
Deferred tax habilities

Accelerated mx deprecavon

Owmned assers Leased assers Other Tomal
(Restated note 5) (Restated {Restated
note 5) note 5}
£m im £m £m
At | Aprl 2008 2896 155 222 3273
Credited/(charged) to the income statement 268 o8 08 270
Arising on acquisiuons 0l - 05 06
At 3| March 2009 JI6s 163 221 3549
Charged/(credited) to the income statement 51 07 {9 39
Arising on acquisiuons 22 - 1 4 36
At 31 March 2010 3218 17.0 21.6 3624
Deferred tax assets |
Ratirement
benefit
Provisions cblations Ochar Towl
£m £m fm m
At | Apnl 2008 (66) 74 G9 (199
Charged to the income statement 15 76 22 I3
(Credited)/charged to equity - {187} 08 (179
At 3| March 2009 Gn {18 3) 1% (26 5)
{Credited)/charged to the income statement (18) 07 {I 5} (26
Credited to equity - (12.4) {52} (17 6)
Arising on acquisiuon (14 - an (45)
At 31 March 2010 (83) (30 2) (12.7) (512)
Net deferred tax habilites
At 31 March 2009 378 4
At 31 March 2010 2

|
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30. DEFERRED TAX continued

Company
Deferred tax assets

Retrement
banefic
obligations Other Tormal
£m im Im
At | April 2008 {08 (08) (16)
Charged to the income statement 10 - 10
{Credited)/charged to equity 2.2) 02 (20)
At 31 March 2009 20) (06) (26)
Credited to the income statement - {1 5) (15
(Credited)/charged ¢ equity (12 03 09
At 31 March 2010 (32) (1 8) (5.0)
Deferred tax credited to equity during the year was
Group Company
2010 2009 2010 2009
£m m £m £m
Actuarial losses on defined benefit schemes i24 187 12 22
MNet farr value losses/{gains) on cash flow hedges 50 - (0.3) -
Deferred tax on other comprehensive loss 174 187 09 22
Share-based payments {note 35} 02 (08) - (02)
176 179 09 20
31L.PROVISIONS
Environmental and
landfili restorauon Restruesuring Orher provsions Toal
£m m £m m
Group
Ac | April 2009 975 03 02 980
Charged to the income statement 45 50 - 95
Landfill restoration 26 - - 26
Arising on acquisition (note 38) 32 - - 32
Utlised during year {114 22} - (136)
At 3| March 2010 96 4 31 02 997

The amount charged to the income statement includes £3 8m (2009 £4 5m) charged to finance costs as the unwinding of discounts
In provisions

The addimen to landfill restoration provision of £2 ém recognised in the year has been matched with an addiuon to property, plant
and equipment.

The analysis of provisions between current and non-current is

010 2009

&m £m

Current 215 188
Non-current 782 792
997 980

Ervironmental and landfill restoration provisions are expected to be substantally utiised over the penod from 2011 to beyond 2051
The provisions have been established assuming current waste management technology based upon esumated costs at future prices which
have been discounted to present value The restructuring provision related principally to severance costs and will be unlised within one year
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32. SHARE CAPITAL

010 2009
im m
Authorised
429,975,270 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 175 0 1750
Altotted, called up and fully pad
Number of shares
Treatury Ordinary £m
shares shares
At | April 2008

Ordinary shares of 40 7p each 6,411,406 348,752,868 1445

For consideration of £1 6m, shares re-issued under the Company’s Sharesave Scheme (687,275} 687,275 -
At 31 March 2009 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 5,724,131 349,440,143 144 5
Shares issued under the scrip dividend alternauve - 1,986,553 08

For consideration of £1 9m, shares reassued under the Company's Sharesave Scheme (631,557} 631,557 -
At 31 March 2010 ordinary shares of 40 7p each 5,092,574 352,058,253 145.3

Shares held as treasury shares may be sold or re-issued for any of the Company's share schemes, or cancelled

Employee share schemes
The Group operates a number of equity-settled share plans for the benefit of employees Details of each plan are

1) Sharesave Scheme

An all-employee savings related plan 1s operated that enables employees, including executive directors, to invest up to a maximum of
£250 per month for three or five years These savings can then be used to buy ordinary shares at 2 price set at a 20% discount to the
market value at the start of the savings period at the third, fifth or seventh year anniversary of the option being granted Options expire
six months following the exercise date and, except for certun specific eircumstances such as redundancy, lapse f the employee leaves
the Group before the option exercise period commences

Qutstanding options to subscribe for ordinary shares of 40 7p each under the Company's share opuon schemes are

Period when Thousands of shares in respact of

Dats granted and eptions normally which options outstanding at 31 March

subscription prics fully paid exerciuabla w010 2009

9 July 2002 189p 2005 - 2009 - 37
8 July 2003 177p 2006 - 2010 59 63
& July 2004 200p 2007 - 2011 70 278
5 July 2005 270p 2008 - 2012 244 270
4 July 2006 358p 2009 - 2013 155 559
3 July 2007 522p 2010 — 2014 307 472
8 July 2008 517p 2011 - 2015 306 464
6 July 2009 i86p 2012 - 2016 1,321 -
1,472 2,143

At 31 March 2010 there were [,492 parucipants in the Sharesave Scheme (2009 1,299}
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32, SHARE CAPITAL continued

Employee share schemes continued

1) Sharesave Scheme (continued)

The number and weighted average exercise price of Sharesave options are

2010 2009

Number of Weighted Number of Waighted

erdinary shares average exercise ordinary shires average exercise

(thousands) price per share (p) {thousands) pnca par share (p)

At | April 2,143 389 2519 322
Granted 1,351 386 495 517
Forferted @7 493 (158) 431
Exeraised (632) 295 * (687) 228
Expired ) 370 26) 377
At 3| March 2,472 396 2143 389

The weighted average price of the Company’s shares at the date of exercise of Sharesave options during the year was 468p (2009

594p) The opuons outstanding at 3| March 2010 had a weighted average exercise price of 396p {2009 389p) and a weighted average
remaining contractual fe of 3 0 years (2009 | 9 years)

The aggregate far value of Sharesave options granted during the year was £1 5m (2009 £0 8m), determined using the Black-5choles
valuation model The significant mputs into the valuaton model at the date of issue of the options were

1010 2009
Weighted average share price 482p 646p
Veighted average exercise price 386p 517p
Expected volauhty 290% 21 3%
Expected life 38 years 38 years
Risk-free rate 2.5% 49%
Expected dvidend yield 47% 13%

Expected volaulity was determined by calculaung the historical volaulity of the Group's share price over the previous two years

ii) Restrrcted Share Plan

Under this plan Executve Directors and senior management receive a conditional award of ordinary shares in the Company
The eventual number of shares, f any, which vest 1s dependent upon the achievement of the performance condiuon of the plan

over the restricted period, being not less than three years

The number and weighted average price of shares in the Restricted Share Plan are

080 200%

Numbar of Weighted Number of Weighted

ordinary shares average exercise ordinary shares verage exercise

(thousands) price per share (p) {thousands}) prce per share {p)

At | April 332 498 684 449
Vested - - (233) 357
Lapsed (332) 498 (119) 494
At 31 March - - 32 498

The plan was succeeded in 2007 by the Perfarmance and Co-investment Plan
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31. SHARE CAPITAL contnued

Employee share schemes continued
iif) Performance and Co-nvestrment Plan

Execuuve Directors and senior management receive a condiuonal award of ordinary shares in the Company and are also required
to hold a substanual personal shareholding in the Company The eventual number of shares, if any, which vest 15 dependent upon the
achievement of conditions of the plan aover the restricted period, being not less than three years.

The number and price of shares in the Performance and Co-investment Plan are

2010 w067
Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
ordinary shares xvzrage exercise ordinary shares Treragn exErCise
{thousands} price per share {p} {thourands) price per share (p}
At | Aprid 8846 598 436 557
Granted 579 486 450 638
At 3| March 1,465 554 886 598

The awards outstanding at 31 March 2010 had a weighted exercise price of 554p (2009 598p) and a weighted average remaining
contractual hfe of | 4 years (2009 | 9 years)

The aggregate fair value of awards granted during the year was £| $m (2005 £1 8m) determined using a Mente-Cario simulation model
The significant inputs into the valuation medel at the date of the share awards were

1010 2009
Weighted average share price 486p 638p
Expected volaulity 29 0% 213%
Risk-free rate 2.5% 49%

Expected volaulity was determined by calculating the historical volaulity of the Group's share price over the previous two years

v} Annual Incentrve Bonus Plan — Deferred Shares

Awards under the plan to Executive Directors and senior management involve the release of ordinary shares in the Company to
partictpants There 1s no performance condition since vesting s conditonal upon continuous service with the Group for a period of
three years from the award The number and weighted average price of shares in the Incentve Bonus Plan are

018 009

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted

ondinary shars average axercise ordinary shares average exarcite

(thousands) price per share (p) (thausands) price per thars (p)

At | April 358 575 368 465
Granted 146 475 153 630
Vested @m 543 (163) 368
At 3| March 291 547 358 575

The awards outstanding at 3| March 2010 had a weighted average exercise price of 347p (2009 575p) and a weighted average remaining
contractual Iife of | 8 years (2009 | 4 years) The Company's share price at the date of the awards ranged from 473p to 620p

The aggregate fair value of awards granted during the year was £0 7m (2009 £0 9m). determined from market value No opuon pricing
methodology 1s apphed since dividends declared on the shares are recewvable by the parucipants in the scheme

Further details of the plans and opuons granted to Directors, included above, are shown in the Directors’ Remuneration Report.
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33.SHARE PREMIUM ACCOUNT

£m
At | April 2008 17
At 31 March 2009 "7
Adjustment for shares i1ssued under the scrip dividend alternauve {08)
At 3| March 2010 109

34. CAPITAL REDEMPTION RESERVE

The capital redempuon reserve represents the redemption of B shares and cancellation of Deferred shares arsing from a capital return
to shareholders undertaken during 2006

m
At | April 2008 144 2
At 31 March 2009 1442
At 3] March 2010 144.2
35. RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES
Tota!
Crwm Retained eamings {Restared
shares Hedging reserve (Restaced note 5) nota S}
im m m £m
Group
At | April 2008 45) 31 3465 3451
Profit for year - - 898 898
Other comprehensive loss for the year - (21 Q) (48 1} (69 1)
Dividends paid relaung te 2008 - - (69 1} [CERD]
Crednit to equity in respect of share-based payments - - 27 27
Charge in respect of share options vesting 15 - (15) -
Deferred tax in respect of share-based payments - - (08) {€8)
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 16 16
Ac 31 March 2009 (30) {179) 3211 3002
Profit for year - - 1395 1395
Cther comprehensive income/(loss) for the year - 50 (352 (302)
Dinidends pard refating to 2009 - - {73 4) {73 4)
Adjustment for shares Issued under the scnp dividend alternative - - 26 96
Credit to equity in respect of share-based payments - - 7 27
Charge in respect of share options vesung 08 - 08) - N
Deferred tax in respect of share-based payments - - 012 02
Equity component of convertible bond issued - - 100 oo
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - - 19 19
At 3| March 2010 (2.2) (129 3758 3605

The own shares reserve represents the cost of ordinary shares in Pennon Group Plc issued to or purchased in the market and held by
the Pennon Employee Share Trust to sansfy awards under the Group’s Restricted Share Plan and Incentive Bonus Plan

The market value of the 596,000 ordinary shares (2009 810,000 ordinary shares) held by the trust at 31 March 2010 was £3 Im
(2009 £33m)
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35 RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES continued

Hedging Renined
reserve earmings Tonal
tm am &m
Company
At | Apnil 2008 05 IS 3940
Profit for the year - 140 | 140 1
Other comprehensive loss for the year (19 {58 7N
Diidends paid relaung to 2008 - 62 1) &N
Credit to equity in respect of share-based payments - 06 06
Deferred tax in respect of share-based payments - 02 ©2)
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 16 16
At 31 March 2009 % 4607 4593
Profit for the year - 816 8l 6
Orther comprehensive income/(loss) for the year I (34) {23)
Dividends paid refaung to 2009 - (73 4) (73 4)
Adjustment for shares issued under the scrip dividend alternative - 96 26
Credit to equity in respect of share-based payments - 07 07
Equity component of convertble bond issued - 100 100
Proceeds from treasury shares re-issued - 19 19
At 31 March 2010 (0.3) 4877 487 .4
36 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Reconcilianon of profit for the year 1o cash generated from operations
Cash generated from operations
Group Company
2010 2009 1010 2009
(Restaced note 5)
im m im £m

Continuing eperations
Profit for the year 139.5 898 8l é 140 |

Adjustments for

Employee share schemes 2.8 27 0.7 06
Profit on disposal of property plant and equipment (3.6) 2 - -
Depreciation charge 135.1 1313 ot -
Amortisation of intangibie assets 0.3 12 - -
Share of post-tax profit from |omt ventures (1.1} €8 - -
Finance income (34.4) (458) {22 9) {243)
Finance costs 116.0 1380 218 318
Dividends recervable - - (80 6) (128 8)
Taxation chargef{credit) 44.3 896 {02) {03)
Changes in working capral (excluding the effect of acquisiion of subsidiares)
Decrease in inventones 03 08 - -
Increase in trade and other recervables (32.4) (207} (1237) (2
Decrease/{(increase) in trade and other payables 913 (245 97 {21}
Decrease in retrement benefit obligations from contributions (4.8) 287 03) (39
Decrease in provisions (7.9) (103 - -
Cash generated/(outflow) from cperauons 363.4 3006 (1138) (58)
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37.NET BORROWINGS
Group Company
010 2009 2010 2009
im £m im £m

Cash and cash deposits 493 ¢ 3533 174 6 1687
Borrowings — current
Bank overdrafts (xmn (129) - -
Other current borrowings (184 1) {2199 (700) (205 8)
Finance lease obligatons (312) (30 1) - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - (28112) (280 2)
Total current borrowangs (229.0) (2629) 35112 (486 0)
Borrowings — non-current
Bank and other loans (‘8 1.5} (507 5) (462.8) (189 5)
Other non-current borrowings (273.6) (287 7) - -
Finance lease obligations (1,205.1) {1.1872) - -
Total nen-current borrowings (2,160 2) (1,982 4) (462 8) {1895)
Total net horrowings (1,895 3) {1.8920) (639 4) {506 8)

Bank overdrafts at the balance sheet date arise from the timing of the payment of unpresented cheques
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38 ACQUISITIONS

On 8 April 2009 the entire 1ssued share capital of Greater Manchester Waste Limited (now renamed Vindor Waste (Greater
Manchester) Limited) was purchased by Virdor Waste Management Limited for a nominal consideration  The acquisiuon has been
accounted for using the acquisition method

Viridor Waste {Greater Manchester) Limited contribured revenues of £75 5m and a profit before tax of £6 5m for the perncd from
8 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 These amounts have been calculated after applying the Group’s accounting policies and adjusting the
results to reflect the fair value adjustments

The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwill The goodwaill is attributed to the profimbility of the
acquired business

Fair value
Book value adjustment Faur value
fm im m

Other intangible assets 1 an -
Property, plant and equipment 265 (10 86) 159
Inventories 04 - 04
Recewables 63 - 63
Payables (11 4) (197) (3rn
Retirement benefit obligations (15) 15 ~
Provisions - environmental - (32 32)
Taxauon — current 07 {02) Q5
Taxaton — deferred 03) {0 6) ©9%
Cash and cash deposits 63 - 63
Net assets/(liabilities) acquired 281 (319 (58
Goodwill 58
Total consideration -
Satisfied by
Cash -
Directy attributable costs -
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition
Cash considerauon -
Cash and cash deposits acquired 63

63
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18. ACQUISITIONS continued

On 5 June 2009 the entre 1ssued share capial of London Recycling Limited (now renamed Vindor London Recycling Limited) was
purchased by Yirdor Vaste Management Limited for a cash consideration of £1 1 1m, including cests of £0 5m The acquisiion has been
accounted for using the acquisition method

Yindor London Recycling Limited contributed revenues of £7 3m and a loss before tax of £0 5m for the period from 5 June 2009 to
31 March 2080 If the acquisition had occured on | April 2009 Group revenues for the year would have been £1,070 3m and profic for
the year would have been £139 4m These amounts have been calculated after applying the Group’s accounting policies and adjusting
the results to reflect the prowisional far value adjustments

The residual excess over the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwill The provisional goodwill is attnibuted to the
profitabilicy of the acquired business

Fair value
Book value adjustiment Far value
&m £m
Property, plant and equipment 32 - 32
Inventones 0l - o1
Recervables 16 - 16
Payables {08) - {08)
Loans 12 - {I 2}
Leases (©3) - {03}
Net assets acquired 256 - 26
Goodwill 85
Total consideration Pl
Satisfied by
Cash 166
Directly attributable costs a5

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration N

Cash and cash deposits acquired -
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On 31 july 2009 the entire 1ssued share capital of Intercontinental Recychng Limited (now renamedVindor Polymer Recycling Limited)
was purchased by Viridor Waste Management Limited for a cash considerauon of £4 7m, including costs of £0 5m The acquisiuon has

been accounted for using the acquisiion methed

Vindor Polymer Recycling Limited contributed revenues of £6 9m and a loss before tax of £0 4m for the peniod from 31 July 2009 to
31 March 2010 If the acquisiuon had oceured on | April 200% Group revenues for the year would have been £1,071 5m and profit for
the year would have been £138 9m These amounts have been calculated after 2pplying the Group's accounung policies and adjusung

the results to reflect the provisional fair value adjustments

The residual excess aver the net assets acquired has been recognised as goodwill The provisional goodwnll 1s attributed to the

profitabilicy of the acquired business

Farr value
Book valus adjustment Fair valua
£m €m im
Property, plant and equipment 3] - 31!
Inventones 04 - 04
Recervables 11 - (]
Payables {23) - 23)
Taxavon — deferred 18 - 18
Loans {3 8) - (38)
Cash and cash deposits 02 - 02
Net assets acquired 05 - 0s
Goodwill 42
Total consideration 47
Satisfied by
Cash 42
Directly attributable costs 05
47
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition
Cash consideration 47
Cash and cash deposits acquired 02)
45
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39. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY AND JOINT YENTURE UNDERTAKINGS AT 31 MARCH 2010

Country of incorporation, registration and principal operations

Water and sewerage

South West Water Limized* England
South West Water Finance Pic England
Waste management
Vindor Limited* England
Vindor Waste Limited England
Vindor Waste Exeter Limited England
Vindor Waste Management Limited England
Virndor EnvireScot Limited Scotland
Vindor Glass Recychng Limted England
Virndor Parkwood Holdings Limited Briush Virgin Istands
Parlewood Group Limited England
Virdor Waste (Sheffield) Limited England
Viridor Resource Management Limited England
Virndor Waste Kent Limited England
Virdor Waste {Landfill Restorauon) Limited England
Yiridor Waste (Somerset) Limited England
Vindor Waste {Thames) Limited England
Virndor Waste {Greater Manchester) Limited England
Virdor London Recycling Limited England
Virdor Polymer Recycling Limited England
Vindor Waste Suffolk Limited England
Vindor Waste (VWest Sussex) Limiced England
Other
Peninsula Insurance Lemited* Guernsey

* Indicates the shares are held directly by Pennon Group Ple, the Company
1 Operations are carned out m England

The subsidiary undertakings are wholly-owned and all shares in 1ssue are ordinary shares All companies above are consohdated in
the Group financial statements

Joint ventures and associate *

All jont ventures, the associate and the subsidiary undertakings of Lakeside Energy from Waste Holdings Limited, Virder Laing
(Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited and INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Holdings Limited are incorporated and registered in England
which 1s also their country of operauon

Share capital in 1ssue  Percentage held Activity
Lakeside Epergy from Waste Holdings Limited 1,000,000 A ordinary shares -
1,000,000 B ordinary shares 100%

Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited Waste management

Shares in Lakeside Energy from VWaste Hotdings Limited are held by Vindor Waste Management Limited

Viridor Laing {(Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited 2 ordinary shares 50%
Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited Waste management

Shares in Vindor Laing (Greater Manchester) Holdings Limited are held by Vinder Waste Management Limited

INEQOS Runcern {TPS) Holdings Limited 1,000 A ordinary shares 20%
186,750 Bl ordinary shares 50%
62,250 B2 ordinary shares -

INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Limited Vvaste management

Shares in INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Holdings Limited are held by Viridor Waste Management Limited
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Group Company

p {11} 009 2010 009
im £m ém m

The future aggregate mintmum lease payments undar non-cancellable

operating leases are

Within one year 74 72 - -
Later than one year and less than five years 238 191 - -
After five years 89 1 812 - -
1203 107§ - -

The Group leases various offices, depots and workshops under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have various
terms, escalavon clauses and renewal nights Property leases are negouated for an average term of 25 years and rentals are reviewed on

average at five yearly intervals

The Group also leases plant and machinery under non-cancellable operating lease agreements

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Group Company
2010 2009 2040 2009
£m m £m n
Guarantees

Borrowing facilies of subsidiary undertakings - - 3638 452 4

Contractors’ claims on capital schemes 3o 13 - -
Performance bonds 1048 966 1048 966
Other 69 69 69 69
1i47 1048 47535 5559

Guarantees in respect of performance bonds are entered into in the normal course of business No hakility 15 expected to arise in

respect of the guarantees

Viridor YWaste Management Limited has given a commitment to supply 200,000 tonnes of waste per annum (or pay market price based
compensation) to the energy from waste plant of the joint venture in Lakeside Energy from Vvaste Holdings Limited The Directors
consider that the committed waste volume will be available in the ordinary course of business

Other conungent hiabiliues relate to a possible obliganon to pay further consideration in respect of a previously acquired business when

the outcome of planning apphcations 1s known

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Group Company
20t0 2009 2010 009
im tm &m m
Contracted but not provided 104.1 853 - -
Share of commitment contracted but not prowided by joint ventures 135.2 6l - -
239.3 914 - -

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Durtng the year, Group compantes entered into the following transactions with related parues who are not members of the Group

2010 2009
im £m
Sales of goods and services
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited 02 -
Viridor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited 490 -
Purchase of goods and services
Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited 3g -
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS contnued

Year end balances

010 2009
im £m
Recervables due from reloted parties
Viridor Laing (Greater Manchester) Limited 07 -
Lakeside Energy from Vaste Linuted 195 106
INEOS Runcorn (TPS) Limited 57 -
459 106
Payables due to related parties
Lakeside Energy for Waste Limited 50 -

The £5 Om payable relates to consortium relief due to Lakeside Energy from Waste Limited

The £45 9m {2009 £10 ém) relates to loans to related parues mcluded within recevables and due for repayment in instalments batween
2011 and 2033 Inwerest 1s charged at an average of || 3% (2009 15%)

Company
The following transacuons with subsidiary undermkings oceurred (n the year

2000 2009
tm tm
Sales of goods and services (management fees) Tl 73
Purchase of goods and services (support services) 0s 05
Interest receivable (loans) 194 176
Interest payable (short-term funding} 0l 17
804 1286

Dwmadends recerved

Sales of goods and services to subsidiary undertakings are at cost Purchases of goods and services from subsidiary undertakings are
under normal commercial terms and condiuons which would also be available to unrelated third parues

Year end balances

2010 2009
tm fm

Recervables due from subsidiary undertakings
Loans 4204 3371
09 09

Trading balances

Interest on £104 8m of the loans has been charged at a fixed rate of 5 0% and on £104 3m at a fixed rate of 6 0% (2009 £76 2m, 6 0%)
Interest on the balance of the loans 1s charged at 12 menth LIBOR + | 5% (2009 Barclays Bank Plc base rate +1%) The loans are due
for repayment in instalments over the peried 201 | to 2014 During the year there were no further provisions {2009 £0 Im) in respect of
leans to subsidiartes not expected to be repad

2010 009
£m im
Payables due 1o subsidiary undertakings
Loans 28112 2802
Trading balances 163 1
Payables due to joint venture
50 -

Trading balances

The loans from subsidiary undertakings are unsecured and interest-free without any terms for repayment.
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FIVE-TYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

101 2009 2008 2007+ 006"
{Restatad {Restated
note 5) note 5)
Em im im £m m
Income statement
Revenue 1,068 ¢ 9582 8794 7483 6457
Underlying operaung profit 269.6 2570 2430 202§ 1767
Net finance costs (8l.8) {922) (85 €) (69 2) (64 3)
Share of profit in joint ventures i 08 02 03 ol
Undertying profic before tax and excepuonal icems 189.1 1656 157 6 1332 1125
Non-underlying and exceptional items {before tax) (5.3) (62) 53) zn (584)
Taxaton (44.3) {69 6} (164) (372 (163)
Profit for the year 1395 898 1359 939 378
Dwidends proposed 796 734 621 656 610
Underlying earnings per share (basic)
From conunuing operauons
Earnings per share 39.9p 258p 89 26 5p 99
Non-underhying and excepuonal items (net of tax) 13p 12p 13p G6p 104p
Deferred tax 04p I lp (2-6p) igp 53p
Underlying earnings per share 41 &p dlip 376p 309 25 6p
Declared dvidends per share 22 55p 2| 0p 1981p 18 55p 17 2p
2010 2009 2008 2007 006™
{Resated (Restared
nate 5) note 5)
m £m £m &m tm
Capital expenditure
Acquisitions 93 34 890 370 458
Property, plant and equipment 1902 FEIN: 2077 245 | 2497
Balance sheet
Non-current assets 3,183 4 3,0363 29310 27286 25275
Net current assets/{liabiliues) 1651 405 1997 {567) (6112)
Non-current habilities (2,687 6) (2476 2) (24852) (20447 (1,885 1)
Net assets 660 9 600 6 6455 6272 5812
Number of employees (average for year)
Warter and sewerage business 1,191 1,227 1,276 1,301 1,299
Waste management 2,853 2,154 2,059 1.686 1,388
Other businesses 43 41 42 18 35
4,087 31422 3377 3,025 2,722

* Prior to the apphcation of IFRIC 12 “Service concession arrangements”
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Financial year-end

Twenty-first Annual General Meetng

Ex-drnidend date for 2010 Final dividend

Record date for 2010 Final dividend

2010 Finat dividend payable

201Q/11 Half yearly financial report announcement
2011 Interim dividend payzble

2011 Prelminary results announcement
Twenty-second Annual General Meetng

2011 Final dividend payable

31 March

29 July 2010

Il August 2010*
13 August 2010%
8 October 2010*
November 2010
Aprit 201 1

May 2011

July 2011

October 201t

* the above dates are subject to cbtaning shareholder approval at the 2010 Annual General Meeting to the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010

SCRIP DIVIDEND ALTERNATIVE

Subject to obtaiming shareholder approval at the 2010 Annual General Meeting to the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2010, the tmetable for offering the
Serp Dividend Alternative will be as follows

1l August 2010 Ordinary shares quoted ex dividend

I3 August 2010 Record date for final cash dividend

27 August 2010 Posting of Scnp dividend offer

20 September 2010 Final date for receipt of Forms of Elecion/Mandate
7 Cctober 2010 Posung of dividend cheques and share ceruficates
8 October 2010 Final cash dividend payment dace

B October 2¢10 First day of dealing in the new ordinary shares

SHAREHOLDERS’ ANALYSIS AT 31 MARCH 2010

Rangs Number of Percantage of Percentage of
shareholders  toml sharsholders  ordinary shares
1-100 2,441 1008 002
101 - 1,000 9.555 3940 1 4]
1,001 - 5,000 10,492 4326 629
5,001 - 50,000 1,433 591 440
50,001 - 100,000 80 033 158
100,001 - HIGHEST 252 {04 B630
24,253 100 00 {0000
Indmiduals 20,602 8495 8&7
Companies 223 092 154
Trust companies {penston funds 3 0al 000
etc)
Banks and nominees 3,425 1412 8779
24,253 10000 10000

Further shareholder information may be found at pennon-group.co.uk
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Pennon Group Plc 13 histed on the London Stock
Exchange and meets the requirements of a
Premium Listing This i1s a listing that meets the
mare stringent UK ‘super-equivalent standards’
compared with a ‘standard lisung’ which meets

EU murmimum standards

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS
At |4 June 2010 interests in the issued share
capital had been noufied pursuant to the
Financial Service Authority’s Disclosure and
Transparency Rules

Invesco Ld 11 58%
Amenpnse Finanaal Inc 998%
Pictet Asset Management SA 7 24%

AXA SA and ns Group Companies 6 14%

Legal & General Group Plc 591%

Prudenual Pic 539%




SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

Share dealing service

The low-cost share dealing service offered

by Stocktrade enables sharehalders to buy
and sell shares in the Company on a low-cost
basis and to make regular investments in the
Company Telephone Stocktrade on 0845 601
0995 and quote LOW COI107 Commussion
1s 0 5% (subject to a mimimum charge of

£17 50) to £10,000, then 0 2% thereafter

Change of Registrar

On 10 May 2010 the Company changed 1ts
registrar from Equintt to Capita Registrars
Capica Registrars can be contacted as follows

Capita Registrars
Northern House
Yoodsome Park
Fenay Bridge
Huddersfield
HD8 0GA

Telephone 0871 664 9234
Overseas telephone +44 800 |41 2954
Emall pennon@capitaregistrars.com

¥{calls cost 10p per minute plus network extros)
Lines are open 8 30am - 5 30pm Mon - Frt

Share pift service

Through Sharegift, an independent chanty
share donation scheme, shareholders who
only have a small number of shares with a
value that makes 1t uneconomical to sell them,
can donate such shares to chanty Donations
can be made by complenon of a simple share
transfer form which is available from the
Company’s registrars, Capta Registrars

Individual Savings Accounts

By holding their shares in the Company in 2n
Individual Savings Account {ISA), shareholders

may gain tax advantages

Scrip Drvidend Alternative

The Company operates a Scnp Dvidend
Alternative The Scrip Dividend Alternative
provides sharehelders with an opportumity
o invest the whole of, or part of, the cash
diwidend they recewve on their Pennon
Group Plc shares to buy further shares in
the Company without incurring stamp duty
or dealing expenses Subject to obtaining
shareholder approval at the 2010 Annual
General Meenng to the payment of a final
dmdend for the year ended 3| March 2010,
full decails of the Scrip Dwvidend Alternatrve,
induding how to join, will be sent out to
shareholders on 27 August 2010 The full
umetable for offering the Scnp Dmdend
Alternative 1s given opposite on page (10

Online portfolio service

The online portfolio service provided by
Capita Registrars gives shareholders access 1o
more informauon on their investments Detals
of the portfolio service are available onfine at
capitashareportal.com

Electronic communications

The Company has passed a resoluuon which
allows It to communicate with its shareholders
by means of its website

Shareholders currently receving a printed
copy of the Annual Report who now wish

to sign up to recerve all future shareholder
communications electronically, can do so by
registening with Capia Registrars’ share portal
Go w capitashareportal.com to register,
select "Account Registration” and then follow
the on-screen instrucoons by snputung your
surname, your Investor Code (which can

be found on your Form of Proxy) and your
postcade as well as entening an e-mail address
and selectuing a password Some facilines will
require an acuvauon code which will be sent
to you n the post following registration

Electronic Proxy voting

Sharehclders also have the opportunity to
register the appointment of a proxy for any
generzl meeting of the Company once nouce
of the meeung has been given and may do so
via capitashareportal.com Shareholders
who register an ‘e-mal’ preference will not
recerve a paper proxy form Instead they

will receve an e-mail alert advising them of
general meeungs of the Company, with links
to the Nouces of Meeungs and annual and half
yearly accounts

The Pennon website

Pennon's website pennon-group co.uk
provides news and detals of the Company’s
acuvittes plus links to its business websites
The Investor Information section contains
up-to-date informauon for shareholders
including comprehensive share price
informacon, financial results, dividend
payment dates and amounts, and Stock
Exchange announcements There 15 also a
comprehensive share services secton on
the website which includes informauon

on buying, selling and transfernng shares,
and on the acuon to be undertaken by
shareholders in the event of a change In
personal circumstances, for example, a change
of address

Pennon Group Plc Registered Office Peninsula House, Rydon Lane, Exeter EX2 7HR

Registered in England No 2366640

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

‘Brokers’ Contacting Shareholders -
Boiler Room Scams

A number of compantes, including Pennon
Group Pic, contnue to be aware that therr
shareholders have received unsolicited

phone lls or correspondence concerning
wvestment matters which imply a connection
to the cormpany concerned These are
typically from overseas based ‘brokers’ who
target UK sharehclders offering to seli them
what can turn out to be worthless or high nsk
shares in US or UK investments They can

be very persistent and extremely persuasive
and a 2006 survey by the Financial Services
Authority (FSA) has reported that the average
amount lost by investors is around £20,000

Ie 1s not just the novice investor who has been
duped in thus way; many of the vicums had
been successfully investing for several years

Shareholders are advised to be wary of any
unsoliczed advice, offers to buy shares at 3
discount or offers of free reports inte the
Company If you are contacted in this manner,
please make sure you obtain the correct name
of the persan and orgarusauon and where they
are based You should also check that they are
property authonsed by the FSA before getting
involved and should call the organisation back
using thewr details i the FSA register to verify
thesr zuthorisabion - you can check online
fsa.gov uldregisterfhome.do |f you deal
with an unauthorised firm, you would not

be eligble to receve any payment under the
Finanoal Services Compensation Scheme The
FSA can be contacted by compleung an online
form at fsa.gov.uk/pages/Doing/Regulated/
Law/Alertsioverseas.shtml

Details of arty share dealing faciliues that
the Company endorses will be included in
Compary malings

Maore detailed informanon on this or similar
actvity can be found on the FSA websne
moneymadectear.fsa.gov uk/consumer
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